(AR

02029020

II! I

North American Coal

2

- il | The Nation’s
R Leading Producer
of Lignite Coal,
Lift Trucks and
Kitchen Electrics

2001 ANNUAL REPORT
AND 10-K



ABOUTTHE COMPANY

NACCO Industries, Inc. is an cperating holding company with three principal businesses: lignite coal mining, lift trucks and housewares. The North
American Coal Corporation mines and markets lignite coal primarily as fuel for power providers. NACCO Materials Handling Group designs, engineers,
manufactures and sells a full line of lift trucks and reptacement parts marketed worldwide under the Hyster” and Yale® brand names. NACCO Housewares
Group consists of Hamilton BeachOProctor-Silex, a leading manufacturer and marketer of small electric motor and heat-driven household appliances as well
as commercial products for restaurants, bars and hotels, and Kitchen Collection, a national specialty retailer of brand-name kitchenware and small electrical
appliances and related accessories.

NACCO INVESTMENT HIGHLIGHTS

Strong Competitive Positions: NACCO Materials Handling Group is a world leader in the fift truck industry, with an estimated 12 percent market share
worldwide, 27 percent in the important Americas market and significant market share in all other geographic markets. Hamilton BeachOProctor-Silex is North
America’s leading full-line manufacturer of small kitchen electric appliances. North American Coal is the nation's largest producer of lignite coal and ninth
largest coal company.

Leading Brand Names: NACCO subsidiaries own the leading brand names in their respective industries: Yale® and Hyster” lift trucks and Hamilton
Beach”and Proctor-Silex” kitchen appliances. General Electric-branded kitchen appliances are also produced for WaldeMart by Hamilton Beach¢Proctor-Silex.

Complete Product Lines: NACCO Materials Handling Group manufactures ift trucks in all five principal product classes, including electric rider, electric
narrow-aisle, electric motorized handheld and internal combustion engine lift trucks for indoor or outdoor use. Hamilton Beach¢Practor-Silex manufactures
kitchen electrics in 35 product categories.

Significant Cost-Reduction Benefits: Significant cost-reduction benefits at NACCO's subsidiaries are expected to be realized over the next several
years as a result of actions taken in 2001.
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= Selected Financial and Operating Data

NACCO Industries, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Year Ended December 31
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(In millions, except per share and employee data)
Revenues ...oovvviniii i $ 2,637.9 $ 2,871.3 $ 2,635.9 $ 2,569.3 $ 2,276.0
Operating profit . ..............oovit $ 5.7 $ 117.9 $ 1313 $ 1981 $ 1320
Income (loss) before extraordinary
gain and cumulative effect
of accounting changes . ............... $  (34.7) $ 37.8 $ 54.3 $ 1023 $ 618
Extraordinary gain, net-of-tax............ - 299 - - -
Cumulative effect of accounting
changes, net-of-tax . .................. (1.3). — (1.2 - -
Net income (10ss) . vvvviriniinnnnn, $  (36.0) $ 67.7 $ 53.1 § 1023 $ 61.8
Total @ssets .ot i i $ 2,161.9 $ 2,1939 $ 2,013.0 $ 1,898.3 $ 1,729.1
Long-termdebt...... ...l $ 2481 $ 4500 $ 3263 $ 2564 $ 2302
Stockholders’ EQUILY + v $ 5293 $ 6064 $ 5622 $ 5183 $ 4251
EBITDA .. i $ 78.1 $ 1647 $ 1826 $ 2436 $  170.7
Basic earnings per share:
Income (loss) before extraordinary
gain and cumulative effect
of accounting changes .............. $ (429 $ 4.63 $ 6.67 $ 12,56 $ 7.56
Extraordinary gain, net-of-tax . ........ - 3.66 - - -
Cumulative effect of accounting
changes, net-of-tax . ............... (0.16) — (0.15) - -
Netincome (loss) ... vvvvvevnvenan.... $  (4.40) 3 8.29 $ 6.52 $§  12.56 $ 7.56
Diluted earnings per share:
Income (loss) before extraordinary
gain and cumulative effect
of accounting changes .............. $  (4.24) $ 4.63 $ 6.66 $ 1253 $ 7.55
Extraordinary gain, net-of-tax . ........ - 3.66 - - -
Cumulative effect of accounting
changes, net-of-tax . ............... {0.16) - (0.15) - -
Netincome (loss) .................... $  (4.40) $ 8.29 $ 6.51 $ 1253 $ ' 755
Per share data:
Cashdividends...................... $ 0930 $ 0.890 $ 0850 $ 03810 $§ 0773
Market value at December 31 .......... $ 5679 $ 43.69 $ 55.56 $  92.00 $ 107.19
Stockholders’ equity at December 31 .... $§  64.58 $ 7421 $ 6892 $ 63.83 $ 5213
Average shares outstanding .. ............. 8.190 8.167 8.150 8.147 8.171
Total employees . ... 13,500 17,200 16,000 14,100 13,400

*EBITDA represents income before taxes, minority interest, extraordinary gain and cumulative effect of accounting changes plus net interest and depreciation,
depletion and amortization. However, interest expense, depreciation, depletion and amortization attributable to project mining subsidiaries are not included.
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The impact of a severe cyclical downturn in the U.S.

lift truck market, a weak retail environment and significant

restructuring, realignment and downsizing programs at
several NACCO subsidiaries resulted in a net loss for the
Company of $36.0 million, or $4.40 per share, in 2001
compared to net income before an extraordinary gain of
$37.8 million, or $4.63 per share, and net income after an
extraordinary gain of $67.7 million, or $8.29 per share, in
2000. Revenues for 2001 were $2.6 billion compared to $2.9
billion in 2000.

The Company incurred approximately $35 million
after-tax in costs for restructuring, realignment and down-
sizing programs at its Hamilton Beach{Proctor-Silex,
NACCO Materials Handling Group (NMHG) Wholesale
and NMHG Retail subsidiaries in 2001. These programs
were designed to put these businesses into the best possible
position for achieving improved operating results in
2002, both at current low market levels and when market
conditions improve.

« At Hamilton BeachOProctor-Silex, actions were taken
to restructure manufacturing operations i_n Mexico,
increase low-cost product sourcing from China and
reduce the work force at its Richmond, Virginia,
headquarters. The company also made a strategic
decision to withdraw from selected low-margin,
opening-price-point business and to strengthen its
better margin business.

« At NMHG Wholesale, the company completed the
phase-out of its Danville, Illinois, assembly plant.

+ At NMHG Retail, programs included restructuring
and realigning operations in Europe, downsizing
operations in the United States and completing the
integration of Asia-Pacific’s Australia dealership

operations.
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These restructuring, realignment and downsizing
programs were largely completed in 2001, although some
additional costs are expected in the first quarter of 2002.
Significantly, these programs did not affect our subsidiaries’
ongoing strategic programs, such as new product develop-
ment and procurement initiatives, quality improvement,
Demand Flow Technology and Value Improvement, all of
which are expected to have a significant impact in the
years ahead.

NACCO Industries today is comprised of strong,
competitive businesses. NACCO is the nation’s leading
producer of lift trucks, lignite coal and kitchen electrics. Its
brand names —Yale®, Hyster®, Hamilton Beach® and Proctor-
Silex® — are well known to customers and have strong
market positions. Further, as a result of the restructuring,
realignment and downsizing programs implemented in
2001, all of our businesses are now well-positioned to meet
the challenges of today’s marketplace and to respond

quickly when markets improve.

North American Coal

North American Coal reported net income of $25.6
million in 2001 compared to $12.6 million in 2000. This
increase was due primarily to increased lignite coal tonnage
at the Red River Mine in Louisiana and the start-up of the
Red Hills Mine in Mississippi. The Red Hills Mine made
initial coal shipments and received approximately $12.7
million after-tax of contractual liquidated damages pay-
ments in 2001. Improved results were partially offset by
increased interest expense due to the Phillips Coal acquisi-
tion in 2000.

The company’s six operating mines sold a total of 31.4
million tons of lignite coal in 2001 compared to 31.6 million
tons in 2000. Limerock production at the Florida dragline

operations was 10 percent ahead of last year.




To enhance its long-term growth opportunities,
North American Coal is in discussions with current and
potential customers regarding the development of its 2.6
billion tons of lignite coal reserves in the United States.
Internationally, a new mine-power plant project is awaiting
government approval in India. i

North American Coal’s industry leadership in both
environmental stewardship and on-the-job safety was
recognized in 2001 with eight awards from local, state

and national organizations. These awards reaffirm the

and to set the stage for significantly improved results in the
future. Phasing out the Danville, Illinois, manufacturing
plant is expected to have a net positive impact of $12.0
million after-tax in 2002.

Concurrent with the Danville phase-out, NMHG *
Wholesale also eliminated the significant manufacturing
inefficiencies related to reducing production levels, reduced
its headcount, postponed salary actions, cut non-strategic
capital investment, reduced inventories and took a number

of other cost-reduction actions.

“The Company incurred approximately $35 million after-tax in

costs for restructuring, realignment and downsizing programs ...

which were designed to put these businesses into the best possible

position for achieving smproved operating results in 2002 ... ”

company’s commitment to preserving the environment

and protecting the health and safety of its employees.

NMHG Wholesale

NMHG Wholesale’s net loss of $14.1 million for 2001,
compared to net income of $37.0 million for 2000, reflected
a deep cyclical downturn in the U.S. lift truck market as
worldwide shipments declined 19 percent to 68,929 units in
2001 from 84,825 units in 2000. By the end of 2001, the rate
of industry factory bookings in the United States and Canada
had declined almost 50 percent from peak 2000 levels.

NMHG Wholesale’s results were also affected by now
largely completed restructuring and downsizing programs,
by the related reduction in the absorption of manufacturing
overhead costs and by lower parts sales as a result of the
cyclical downturn. Revenues for 2001 were $1.5 billion
compared to revenues of $1.8 billion in 2000.

NMHG Wholesale incurred significant costs in 2001
for implementing programs which were designed to

achieve break-even results in 2002 at current volume levels

Despite an unfavorable operating environment in
2001, NMHG Wholesale remained committed to its long-
term strategic programs. For example, the development of
a new generation of 1-to-8-ton counterbalanced lift trucks
is on schedule for completion in 2004-2005. This impor-
tant program ties together NMHG Wholesale’s design,
engineering, procurement and manufacturing functions
to create a family of products that closely matches our
customers’ application needs.

NMHG Wholesale’s European distribution system was
significantly strengthened when the assets of company
owned Hyster® dealers in Germany were sold to ZEPPELIN
GmbH, which has a strong presence in that country.
Zeppelin will also become our dealer in Central and Eastern
Europe. Also in Germany, several former Steinbock and

Clark dealers converted to the Yale® brand.

NMHG Retail
NMHG Retail’s operations, which include the required

elimination of intercompany transactions between NMHG




Wholesale and company owned retail dealerships, reported
a net loss of $35.3 million in 2001 compared to a net loss of
$15.7 million in 2000. NMHG Retail’s strategy has been to
build lift truck distribution through NMHG ownership in
countries where NMHG Wholesale has weak market shares
and which lack strong, independent Yale® and Hyster®
dealers to distribute products.

NMHG Retail’s net loss in 2001 included substantial
costs for restructuring and realigning its global operations,
particularly in Europe, where the sale of its Hyster® Germany
dealers occurred, downsizing operations in the United
States to reflect current low market levels and completing
the integration of Asia-Pacific’s Australia dealership and

rental company operations.

¢4

million after-tax in restructuring charges to reduce the
work force at its headquarters in Richmond, Virginia, and
to restructure manufacturing operations in Mexico. The
company also reorganized its management structure and
implemented new inventory reduction initiatives.
Hamilton Beach(¢Proctor-Silex made a significant
strategic decision in 2001 to withdraw from selected low-
margin, opening-price-point business, since it did not
produce a return on investment commensurate with its cost.
The impact of this action on revenues in 2001 was
partially offset by increased sales of General Electric-
branded products to Wal%Mart and by increased sales of
home health products. Hamilton Beach@Proctor-Silex’s

partnership with Wal¥Mart to supply General Electric-

... all of our businesses are now well-positioned to meet the

challenges of today’s markeivlace and to respond quickly when
) I :

markets improve.”

In Australia, where NMHG Retail owns a significant
part of its distribution network, the Rentpac lift truck rental
business was acquired. This acquisition is expected to enable
NMHG Retail to better service the important region of

New South Wales with a full range of lift truck services.

NACCO Housewares Group

NACCO Housewares Group, which includes our
Hamilton Beach®Proctor-Silex and Kitchen Collection
subsidiaries, reported a net loss of $12.2 million for 2001,
including $10.7 million in special charges, on revenues of
$632.1 million compared to net income of $8.8 million on
revenues of $649.9 million in 2000.

Results in 2001 were affected by a difficult retail
environment for Hamilton BeachOProctor-Silex, which
faced weak consumer markets and aggressive competition.

In addition, Hamilton Beach{Proctor-Silex incurred $8.2

branded kitchen electric and garment care products
continued with a broadened assortment of products. The
GE program was expanded in 2001 to include stores in
Canada and Mexico. Additional GE-branded products
are expected to be introduced at Wal® Mart in the spring
of 2002.

Another important development in 2001 was the
successful introduction of a new line of home odor
eliminator products sold under the TrueAir™ brand name.
The introduction was supported by a broad television
campaign. Additional TrueAir™ product line extensions
are expected to be introduced in 2002.

Kitchen Collection achieved its 16th consecutive year
of sales growth in 2001. Sales increased at both its Kitchen
Collection® and Gadgets & More® store formats. Kitchen
Collection also continued to expand its successful Hamilton

Beach® and Proctor-Silex® branding program to include




gadgets, barbecue tools, cutlery and cookware. Additionally,

Kitchen Collection’s Web site — kitchencollection.com —
continued to be an important channel for selling Hamilton

Beach{Proctor-Silex products directly to consumers.

Outlock
North American Coal

Overall lignite coal production is expected to increase
in 2002 since the Choctaw power plant, which our Red
Hills Mine supplies, advised the mine that it had reached
commercial operation status in the first quarter of 2002.
Lignite coal deliveries at the Red Hills Mine are expected to
reach approximately 3.5 million tons annually. North
American Coal expects to continue to identify new domes-
tic mining opportunities, particularly for coal-fired power
plants which could use some of the company’s 2.6 billion

tons of lignite coal reserves.

NMHG Wholesale

Actions taken by NMHG Wholesale in 2001 to restruc-
ture, realign and downsize its operations were designed to
achieve break- even results in 2002 based on the assumption
that current lift truck markets in the U.S. will not improve
significantly during the year and that some additional
restructuring costs will accur in the first quarter of 2002,
NMHG Wholesale, however, is prepared to respond quickly
when North American markets improve. In Europe,
NMHG Wholesale expects to increase market share as a
result of the sale to Zeppelin of the Hyster® dealerships in
Germany as well as other steps taken to strengthen its

Hyster® and Yale® independent dealership network.

NMHG Retail
NMHG Retail has largely completed the restructuring
and realignment of its global operations. These programs

were undertaken with the objective of putting NMHG

Retail’s global operations at break-even in 2002 at current
market levels. NMHG Retail expects to continue focusing on
improving the performance of its wholly owned dealerships

in 2002.

NACCO Housewares Group

Hamilton BeachOProctor-Silex expects that actions
taken in 2001 to reduce costs, improve efficiencies and
increase profitability will put the company in a significantly
improved operating position in 2002, even if the U.S.
economy does not improve. Revenues are expected to
benefit from improved sales of home health products, sales
of General Electric-branded products to Wal#Mart and
sales to newly developing retail channels.

Kitchen Collection expects to continue opening
additional Kitchen Collection® and Gadgets & More®
stores throughout 2002 and to introduce additional
new Hamilton Beach® and Proctor-Silex®-branded non-

electric products.

In summary, the restructuring, realignment and
downsizing actions taken in 2001 are largely completed. In
the short term, these programs are expected to help improve
results significantly in 2002. Over the long term, they
provide the groundwork for future growth and increased
profitability as these programs and our longer-term strategic
programs mature and markets strengthen.

Finally, I want to thank all NACCO employees for
their support, hard work and commitment through a very

difficult year.

| | Alfred M. Rankm Ir.

| , / _'{ Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
o ___x_'_l NACCO Industries, Inc.







ABOUT THE COMPANY

The North American Coal Corporation is the nation’s largest miner of lignite coal. The company is known throughout the power generation industry for
its mining expertise, professional experience and operational skills. North American Coal currently operates six surface lignite coal mines for electric
power providers in North Dakota, Texes, Louisiana and Mississippi and one dragline mining operation at a limerock quarry in Florida. Lignite coal reserves total
approximately 2.6 billion tons.

LONG-TERM OBJECTIVES

North American Coal provides customers with low-cost mining services under long-term contracts. The company's objective is to continue developing
new mining operations with internal rates of return exceeding its cost of capital while increasing levels of steady cash flow and earnings from existing
mining operations.
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Net Income Increased In 2001

North American Coal’s net income for 2001 increased
to $25.6 million compared to $12.6 million in 2000. The
increase in net income was due primarily to increased
lignite coal tonnage at the Red River Mine in Louisiana
and the start-up of the Red Hills Mine in Mississippi. The
Red Hills Mine made initial shipments to its customer and
received $12.7 million after-tax of contractual liquidated
damages payments in 2001. These improved results were
partially offset by increased interest expense due to the
2000 acquisition from Phillips Coal of its interest in the Red
River and Red Hills Mines.

Return on Equity in
Properly Capitalized Tangible Assets
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North American Coal’s mines sold 31.4 million tons
of lignite coal in 2001 compared to 31.6 million tons in
2000. The Florida dragline operations produced 10 percent
more limerock in 2001 than in 2000. North American Coal
was the nation’s largest lignite coal producer and ninth
largest coal producer in 2001 based on total coal tons sold.
Lignite reserves total 2.6 billion tons, of which 1.2 billion

tons are committed to current customers.

Focus On Employee Safety
The company’s emphasis on employee safety was

recognized with several prestigious awards in 2001. Four of

Return on Equity in Total Assets
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The Mississippi Lignite Mining Company’s Red Hills Mine uses a variety of heavy-duty equipment to mine lignite coal, including a Marion dragfine, P&H shovel, Huron Easi-Miner, and several

Caterpillar dump trucks and graders.



Land reclamation efforts at North American Coal's Falkirk Mine have created a natural habitat for waterfowl and coyotes.

North American Coal’s six mine operations worked a
combined total of 782,925 hours without a lost-time
accident in 2001. These four mines received the federal
government’s Mine Safety Health Administration’s (MSHA)
Sentinels of Safety Award. The mining industry average is

two to three lost-time accidents per 100,000 hours worked.

The Coteau Properties Company (North Dakota)
Coteau’s Freedom Mine, the nation’s largest lignite coal
mine, sold 15.7 million tons in 2001, slightly less than the 16.2
million tons in 2000, due to reduced customer require-
ments. The mine received four environmental excellence
awards from various local, state and federal agencies,
adding to the 10 environmental awards it had already won

since 1993. Also in 2001, Coteau completed preparations

income Before Taxes and Lignite Tons
Sold by Operating Mines
fin millions)

i 239 317 31.3 316 314 |
i s298 $30.7 $285 $23.9 $49.7

sso i

$40 I
20— ‘ : |

820 —| ef el ! q

s L — j i q@t

$0 Ll L] ; L | A

1997 1938 1999 2000

' tncome Before Taxes  £___J Tons Sald

for the largest mining permit application in North Dakota

history, encompassing more than 18,000 acres.

The Falkirk Mining Company (North Dakota)

The Falkirk Mine sold 7.7 million tons of lignite coal
in both 2001 and 2000. Falkirk Mine employees incurred
no lost-time accidents during 2001. Falkirk continued to
work with its customer, the Coal Creek Power Generating
Station, on improvement projects, including coal drying
and the utilization of power plant byproducts as well as on
the potential use of Falkirk’s lignite coal reserves to supply

a possible third unit for the Coal Creek Power Station.

Mississippi Lignite Mining Company

Development of the Mississippi Lignite Mining
Company’s Red Hills Mine continued throughout 2001 as
1.0 million tons of lignite coal were stockpiled for the
power plant. The Red Hills Mine delivered 0.5 million tons
of lignite coal in its first year of operation compared to an
originally projected delivery of 3.0 million tons. The reduced
tonnage delivered and consequent receipt of liquidated
damages of approximately $12.7 million after-tax were the
result of the customer’s delays in achieving commercial
operation status at the Choctaw power plant. The power

plant notified the mine that it achieved commercial operation




status in the first quarter of 2002. The mine also received

a Sentinels of Safety award for outstanding performance

from the MSHA.

Red River Mining Company (Louisiana)

Increased customer requirements for lignite coal
enabled Red River’s Oxbow Mine to deliver 0.9 million
tons in 2001 compared to 0.8 million tons in 2000. Red
River employees continued their record of no lost-time
accidents since the mine began operations in May 1988 and
no reportable accidents for four consecutive years. The mine
received a Certificate of Achievement from the MSHA. The

mine also continued its outstanding environmental record.

The Sabine Mining Company (Texas)

Sabine delivered 3.2 million tons of lignite coal in
2001 compared to 3.5 million tons in 2000. Deliveries fell
short of 2000 levels primarily due to reduced customer
requirements. Sabine began its first deliveries of lignite coal
to a second customer in December. The mine’s outstanding
record of land reclamation continued with the completion
of final land reclamation in three areas of its South Hallsville
Mine reserves in 2001. Sabine also received a Sentinels of

Safety award from the MSHA.

San Miguel Lignite Mine (Texas)

Despite record torrential rains that flooded the mine
in November, San Miguel delivered 3.4 million tons of
lignite coal in 2001, the same amount as in 2000. San
Miguel’s dragline completed its 12-mile move to a new
mine area in January 2001. San Miguel received both
an Award of Excellence from the Texas Mining and
Reclamation Association and a Sentinels of Safety award

from the MSHA.

Florida Dragline Operations

Limerock production at the Florida dragline operation
increased 10 percent in 2001, and a second limerock pit was
opened. The mine has maintained an excellent environ-

mental record during its six years of operation.

Outlook

Lignite coal production at most of North American
Coal’s operating mines in 2002 is expected to be compara-
ble to volumes produced in 2001. The Red River Mine in
Louisiana is expected to sell fewer tons of lignite coal in
2002 due to a reduction from the unusually high tonnage
taken by its customer in 2001. Reduced tonnage at Red
River, however, is expected to be more than offset by
tonnage produced at the Red Hills Mine in Mississippi,
whose power plant reached commercial operation status
in the first quarter of 2002. Annual lignite deliveries at
Red Hills are expected to be approximately 3.5 million
tons. The Red Hills Mine expects to earn normal
operating revenues, resulting in enhanced cash flow, but
also incur additional operating costs and lower reported
earnings in 2002.

Internationally, North American Coal and its partner,
Reliance Industries, are continuing to pursue the potential
Jayamkondam coal mine/power plant project in India.
North American Coal is optimistic that this project will
receive necessary approvals from Indian governmental
authorities.

Overall, North American Coal’s mining operations
are expected to continue running smoothly in 2002. Led by
a strong management team and a supportive work force,
the company is optimistic about the prospects for current
operations. The company also expects to continue focusing
on identifying new domestic mining opportunities. North
American Coal is well-positioned to provide lignite coal
for expansion of coal-fired electric power generation in
the U.S. Those prospects, however, will be significantly
influenced by the shape of the nation’s future energy policy

decisions.
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| N Clifford R. Miercort

i S President and Chief Executive Officer
The North American Coal Corporation
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ABOUT THE COMPANY

NACCO Materials Handling Group (NMHG is the largest producer of lift trucks in the United States and the third largest worldwide. NMHG consists of
two operating units, NMHG Wholesale and NMHG Retail. NMHG Wholesale designs, engineers, manufactures and sells a full line of fift trucks and replace-
ment parts marketed worldwide under the Hyster® and Yale® brand names. Lift trucks are manufactured in the United States, the United Kingdom, the
Nethertands, Brazil, italy, Japan, Mexico, the Philippines and China. NMHG Retail sells lift trucks and replacement parts through company owned Hyster” and
Yalg” dealers.

LONG-TERM OBJECTIVES AND TARGETS

NMHG's long-term markst position objective is to attain a minimum of 20 percent share of the §ift truck market worldwide and & minimum 15 percent
share in any significant geographic markst or product class. Its financial objectives are to eamn a minimum average operating profit of 9 percent over the business
cycle and a minimum return on equity in total assets of 12 percent.
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Wholesale Results Reflect Cyclical Downturn

NMHG Wholesale’s reported net loss of $14.1 million
for 2001, compared to net income of $37.0 million in 2000,
was driven primarily by significantly reduced volumes in
the Americas as a result of a cyclical downturn in the lift
truck market, the deepest since the early 1980s. Worldwide
shipments declined 19 percent to 68,929 units in 2001
from 84,825 units in 2000.

NMHG Wholesale’s 2001 results were also reduced
by now largely completed restructuring and downsizing
programs, by the related reduction in the absorption of
manufacturing overhead costs and by reduced parts sales as

a result of the cyclical downturn. Revenues in 2001 were

Return on Equity in
Properly Capitalized Tangible Assets

4% 191% 215% 261% 1%
491% 636% 203% 12.0% [11.9)%
%
50% 7
a% — | } ,‘:
20% ___; B || | 2
e L] ] T T
-20% —
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001

@ Actual

B s&P 500 Average

$1.5 billion compared to revenues of $1.8 billion in 2000.
Results in 2000 also included costs for restructuring and

downsizing programs.

Broad Cost Reduction Actions Taken

In response to the cyclical downturn, NMHG
Wholesale took significant actions to reduce costs and
lower overhead.

Danville plant phase-out, In the fourth quarter of
2000, even before the U.S. lift truck market began to
decline, plans were annournced to phase out manufacturing
activities at the company’s Danville, lllinois, assembly

plant by the first half of 2002. As economic conditions

Return on Equity in Total Assets
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Easy and simple to operate, Yale's narrow-aisle warehouse trucks feature advanced ergonomics and performance for increased productivity.




worsened in 2001, that timetable was accelerated and the
phase-out was completed by year’s end. Total restructuring
costs for Danville were $8.3 million after-tax in 2000 and
$7.2 million after-tax in 2001.

The Danville plant closure is expected to result in a net
positive impact of $12.0 million after-tax in 2002 compared
to 2001. The plant’s lift truck assembly operations were
transferred to NMHG plants in Berea, Kentucky, and

Nijmegen, the Netherlands.

NACCO Materials Handling Group
Revenues by Geographic Region
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Procurement initiatives. NMHG Wholesale moved
aggressively in 2001 to reduce material costs, which comprise
80 percent of total lift truck costs. Significant progress was
made in further consolidating the company’s supplier base,
implementing enhanced supplier quality standards and
enhancing global sourcing strategies.

Salary and incentive restrictions. Al NMHG employee
salary increases were deferred for six months from their
normal effective dates. In addition, matching 401(k) con-
tributions from the profit sharing plan were temporarily
suspended for 2002 and all long- and short-term incentive
compensation for 2002 was eliminated unless results during
the year are well above expectations. NMHG will return to its
normal compensation structure when business improves.

Reductions in factory work force levels. Work force
levels were significantly reduced at NMHG plants and
facilities worldwide. This process of rebalancing plants to
much lower operating levels resulted in significant short-

term manufacturing inefficiencies.

Other actions. Other actions taken in 2001 included
reduced non-strategic capital investments, inventory
reductions, restrictions on corporate travel and improved

working capital management.

Strategic Programs Maintained

Despite the difficult operating conditions NMHG
experienced in 2001, the company did not cut back strategic
programs that are necessary to maintain its long-term
competitive advantage.

New product development. New product introduc-
tions included a high-volume pallet truck, a 6-to-8-ton
internal combustion engine truck, an electric rider truck
and a new big truck for the North American market.

NMHG?’s 1-to-8- ton counterbalanced, internal com-
bustion engine project represents a milestone in developing
new lift trucks. This program, which is expected to mature
in 2004-2005, is enabling NMHG to implement common
components across all of its 1-to-8-ton product lines and to
tie the procurement process more closely into the design
and engineering phases of product development. The 1-to-
8-ton project is the most significant new product develop-
ment program in the company’s history.

Mexico phase two. NMHG’s Mexican component
manufacturing plant was doubled in size to 168,000 square
feet in 2001. This plant utilizes the latest technology in
robotic welding and laser burning to produce lift truck
frames and other parts for the company’s U.S. assembly
operations. It is anticipated that this plant will provide
significant long-term savings in materials and labor costs.

Software implementation. SAP software financial and
management reporting systems became fully operational
during 2001 after a 16-month installation period. Although
the systems installation has been challenging, NMHG
now has substantially improved management tools with
which to extract useful analytical data cost effectively on a

global basis.

Hyster's new H70-120XM series of counterbalanced lift trucks are built for applications that require plenty of power and high stacking capabiiity.
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Yale's line of p ic, internal

Quality enhancement. NMHG initiated a far-reaching
program that focuses on identifying and standardizing its
best business practices on a global basis. As the program
matures through 2003, the company expects to implement
these best practices in 14 areas, including product design
and development, sales and marketing, procurement,
manufacturing and information systems. This program is
designed to further emphasize the quality driven culture
at NMHG.

14

engine trucks are engineered for outstanding performance, rider comfart, dependable service and low life-cycle costs.

Demand Flow Technology (DFT) and Value Improve-
ment Program (VIP). Both programs have been an integral
part of NMHG’s operations for several years and continue
to deliver cost-saving results. DFT is the company’s pull-
through manufacturing system that reduces production
time and plant floor space requirements, and eliminates
non-value added activities, while VIP focuses on reducing
product costs and implementing improved product

designs.
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Strong Wholesale Operations Continue

Despite the recession in the North American lift truck
market, NMHG Wholesale is among the world’s largest
and best positioned lift truck companies.

In 2001, NMHG modestly increased its market share
leadership in North America due to improved national
account and fleet management business. NMHG also
increased its market share in the Asia-Pacific, China and
Japan markets. China represents an emerging market with
significant future growth potential as it makes the transition
into the World Trade Organization. The company expects
that the product line expansion at its Shanghai assembly
facility will support future share growth in this market.

NMHG’s global distribution strength helps to achieve
our goal of having sound market share positions virtually
everywhere in the world. Nevertheless, the company is
actively taking steps to strengthen its distribution system.
The sale in 2001 of company owned Hyster® dealers in
Germany to Zeppelin offers growth potential for the
Hyster® brand in that country.

Zeppelin’s designation as a Hyster® dealer in Central
and Eastern Europe will also continue to strengthen our
global distribution. In addition, NMHG Wholesale’s inde-
pendent distribution network in Germany was strengthened
by the conversion of several former Steinbock and Clark
dealers to NMHG’s Yale® brand.

NMHG Wholesale is among the few lift truck
companies in the world that can meet the needs of a
diversified customer base with a complete product line,

from simple hand trucks to counterbalanced and ware-

house trucks to heavy duty big trucks. The company’s
Hyster® and Yale® brands are recognized worldwide and

have well-established dealer support capabilities.

Retail Operations Are Restructured

NMHG’s Retail operations reported a net loss of $35.3
million in 2001 compared to a net loss of $15.7 million for
2000. Revenues for 2001 totaled $209.1 million compared
to $182.1 million in 2000.

The net loss for 2001 included substantial charges
for restructuring and realignment programs in Europe,
integrating the Asia-Pacific’s Australia dealership and
rental company operations, and downsizing operations in
the United States to reflect current low market levels.

NMHG Retail continued to strengthen its rental equip-
ment distribution in Australia in 2001 with the acquisition
of Rentpac’s lift truck rental business. NMHG Retail owns

most of its Hyster® and Yale® distribution in Australia.

Outlook

NMHG Wholesale expects that the broad cost
reduction actions taken in 2001 will lead to an improved
cost position in 2002. The objective of those programs was
to establish the groundwork for at least break-even results
in 2002 and for long-term growth and profitability as
markets recover. In Europe, NMHG Wholesale expects to
improve its market share as a result of strengthened distri-
bution by its new Zeppelin Hyster® dealers ‘and by its new
independent Yale® dealers.

NMHG Retail’s programs to restructure and realign its
dealership operations were undertaken with the objective
of putting global retail operations at break-even results in
2002 at current market levels. The actions involved were

largely completed by the end of 2001.

Wwﬂw

Regmald R. Eklund
President and Chief Executive Officer
NACCO Materials Handling Group
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ABOUT THE COMPANIES

Hamilton BeachOProctor-Silex is North America’s leading full-line manufacturer of small kitchen electric household appliances. Hamilton Beach(¢Proctor-
Silex also makes small electric products for restaurants, bars and hotels. The company’s consumer products are primarily distributed through mass
merchandisers, department stores, warehouse membership clubs and other retail sales outlets. Principal customers include WalsMart, Kmart, Target, Dollar
General, Canadian Tire and Family Dollar.

Kitchen Collection is a national specialty retailer of brand-name kitchenware, small electric appliances and related accessories. At year-end, the company
operated 168 Kitchen Callection® and Gadgets & More® stares located primarily in factory outlet malls throughout the United States.

LONG-TERM OBJECTIVES AND TARGETS

Hamilton BeachQProctor-Silex's objectives are to increase its overall share of the North American small electric household appliance market in all product
tategories and at all price points, earn at least its cost of capital on all products offered and eam a minimum operating profit of 10 percent and a minimum
return an equity in total assets of 12 percent.

Kitchen Collection’s objectives are to maintain its leadership in the factory outlet mall niche of the retail housewares industry, while improving store sales
and margins. Other objectives include growth through development of new retail formats and expansion of electronic merchandising through the Intemet.
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NACCO Housewares Group, which includes Hamilton
Beach{Proctor-Silex and Kitchen Collection, reported a net
loss of $12.2 million for 2001 on revenues of $632.1 million
compared to net income of $8.8 million on revenues of
$649.9 million in 2000.

The Housewares Group’s net loss for 2001, compared
to net income for 2000, was primarily due to a weak retail
environment and to special charges, including $8.2 million
after-tax in restructuring charges at Hamilton Beach¢

Proctor-Silex for actions taken to reduce its work force at

its manufacturing operations in Mexico, and $2.5 million
after-tax for charges against receivables.

Revenues in 2001 declined due to weaker retail
markets, which lasted through the important holiday
season, and to Hamilton BeachOProctor-Silex’s decision
to withdraw from selected low-margin, opening-price-
point business. Decreased revenues were partially offset
by increased sales of General Electric-branded products
at WalxMart, the introduction of TrueAir™ home

odor eliminators and increased revenues at Kitchen

its headquarters in Richmond, Virginia and to restructure Collection.

Return on Equity in
Properly Capitalized Tangible Assets
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Photo left: New products introduced by Hamilton Beach®Practor-Silex
include {clockwise from top) Proctor-Silex® Simply Coffee Coffeemaker,
Hamilton Beach® Intellitoast Toaster, TrueAir™ Home Odor Eliminator,
Proctor-Silex® Clear Steam Iron, Hamilton Beach® Stainless Cooking
Utensils, General Electric-branded Oval Slow Cooker, Proctor-Silex®
Power Opener Can Opener and Hamilton Beach® Soft Grip Knives.

Photos right: Among the poputar new products from Hamilton Beach®
Proctor-Silex are (from left to right) the Hamilton Beach® Indoor Grift, the
General Electric-branded Oval Slow Cooker and the Proctor-Silex® Clear
Steam Iron.
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A Year Of Significant Actions
Hamilton BeachOProctor-Silex faced a very demanding
retail environment in 2001 characterized by weak markets,
aggressive competition, lower pricing and unsatisfactory
profitability. In response to this environment, the company
initiated a series of far-reaching actions that not only are
expected to reduce costs, improve efficiency and increase
profitability in the short term, but also position the com-
pany for long-term growth, profitability and free cash flow.
Hamilton Beach{Proctor-Silex made a significant
strategic decision to withdraw from selected low-margin,
opening-price-point business and to focus on increasing
better-margin business. This action, combined with weak
retail conditions, caused revenues to decline in 2001.
Partially offsetting decreased revenues were improved
sales of General Electric-branded kitchen electric and
garment care products at WalxMart, The Hamilton Beach¢
Proctor-Silex/Wal%Mart partnership continued with an
expanded product assortment targeted to the “better” and
“best” product categories. The GE program also expanded
to stores in Canada and Mexico, where sales were above
expectations. Additional GE-branded products are expected
to be introduced at Wal#Mart in the spring of 2002.
Revenues in 2001 also benefited from the successful

introduction of an innovative home odor eliminator
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product marketed under the TrueAir™ brand name. The
introduction was highlighted by a broad television adver-
tising campaign that generated strong sales at retail stores
nationwide. TrueAir™ products are covered by utility and
design patents from the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

Net income in 2001 was affected by reduced sales
volumes and by actions taken to reduce costs, including
restructuring manufacturing operations in Mexico,
increasing low-cost product sourcing in China and
reducing the company’s work force at its Richmond,
Virginia, headquarters. These actions resulted in a special
fourth-quarter charge of $8.2 million after-tax. Net income
was also reduced by $2.5 million after-tax for charges
against receivables and by manufacturing inefficiencies as

aresult of ongoing consolidation programs.

Other Significant Actions Taken
In addition, Hamilton BeachOProctor-Silex took other
actions that are expected to have a significant impact on
operations and profitability in 2002 and beyond. These
actions included:
* Reorganizing the company’s management structure
to focus more sharply on its three core business
groups: food preparation, beverage preparation and

home care.

Photo right: The Hamilton Beach® Indoor Grill can easily cook a
variety of healthy and delicious foods in a matter of minutes.

Phatos left: Hamiltan BeachOPractor-Silex’s new products include
{from left to right) the Proctor-Silex® Mix Smart Hand-Held Mixer,
the Hamilton Beach® Flavor Plus Coffeemaker, and the TrueAir™
Home Odor Eliminator.
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Phota left: The General Electric-branded Oval Slow Cooker provides a
convenient and easy way to prepare nutritious meals ahead of time,

Photos right: New products from Hamilton Beach{¢Practor-Silex
include {from left to right} the General Electric-branded Cordless
Kettle, the Proctor-Silex® Bagel Smart Toaster and the Proctor-Silex®
Belgian Waffle Baker.

+ Establishing a brand management function that
develops strategies for aligning Hamilton Beach® and
Proctor-Silex® brands, features, styling and pricing
with the appropriate consumer segment and distri-
bution channel.

* Restructuring the company’s engineering and pur-
chasing departments.

+ Implementing programs to reduce inventories by
improving forecasting and production planning and
working more collaboratively with customers. Excess
inventory was reduced by $18 million in 2001, and
further enhanced results are expected in 2002.

+ Introducing additional new products under the
Hamilton Beach® and Proctor-Silex® brand names in
response to customer needs. These products include a
blender with an electronically controlled blending
program, an iron with a removable water reservoir,
a Double Dish® slow cooker, a SureCut® can opener
and a Bagel Smart® toaster.

+ Doubling the size of the company’s Memphis distri-
bution center to 900,000 square feet in order to provide
better customer service and improved operational
efficiencies and cost control.

+ Using a business analysis model called Economic
Value Income (EVI) to determine which products fail
to earn a return equal to their cost of capital as well as

the key levers for improving returns.

21

+ Reorganizing the commercial products division to

strengthen marketing, reduce manufacturing costs
and focus on developing innovative new products.
A Hamilton Beach® commercial stand mixer and a line
of premium bar blenders are among the new products
that are expected to be introduced to the restaurant

and bar markets in 2002.

Outlook

Hamilton BeachOProctor-Silex expects that actions
taken in 2001 will result in improved operating margins in
2002, even if retail markets remain weak. The company
expects that increased sales of TrueAir™ home odor elimi-
nators, increased sales of “better” and “best” products
and decreased sales of opening-price-point products will
result in a higher-margin mix of business in 2002.
Operating results in 2002 are also expected to reflect
Hamilton Beach{Proctor-Silex’s significantly improved
cost position, especially in its manufacturing and sourcing
activities.

Revenues in 2002 are expected to benefit from
increased sales to non-traditional channels such as ware-
house clubs and home improvement centers and to
WalxMart from General Electric-branded products. Over
the longer term, Hamilton Beach{Proctor-Silex expects
the impact from programs implemented in 2001 will pay
off increasingly in future years as the programs mature and

markets improve.

LA

| Dr. Michael J. Morecroft
. President and Chief Executive Officer
Hamilton Beach(Proctor-Silex, Inc.
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16 Consecutive Years Of Sales Growth

Despite weak consumer spending in 2001, Kitchen
Collection achieved its 16th consecutive year of record sales
and also realized improved profitability. November and
December, in particular, were record months as increasing
numbers of value-conscious housewares consumers were
attracted to Kitchen Collection® and Gadgets & More®
stores. Kitchen Collection operated a total of 168 Kitchen
Collection® and Gadgets & More® stores at the end of 2001
compared to 157 at the end of 2000.

Kitchen Collection® Stores

Kitchen Collection® stores, which sell a wide assort-
ment of kitchenware, small electric appliances and related
accessories, are located primarily in factory outlet malls.
In 2001, the company enhanced its product offerings
by introducing new items and new product categories,

including a successful candy program.

Gadgets & More® Stores

Kitchen Collection currently operates six Gadgets &
More® stores. These stores are located primarily in upscale
regional malls, including the Mall of America in Minnesota
and the new Polaris Fashion Place in Ohio. Gadgets &
More® stores are smaller than Kitchen Collection stores and
sell a broad range of primarily higher-margin products,
including kitchen gadgets as well as other selected categories
of housewares products. Prospects for expansion of this
format look promising based on results in 2001, which were

in line with expectations.

Expanded Private Label Program

Kitchen Collection also expanded its successful
private label program, which extends the Hamilton Beach®
and Proctor-Silex® brand names to non-electric kitchen
products, including gadgets, barbecue tools, cutlery

and cookware. These products are sold in both Kitchen

Collection® and Gadgets & More® stores and through the

Kitchen Collection Web site.

Disciplined Operating Controls

Kitchen Collection uses a disciplined business model to
improve margins in a highly competitive retail environment
by objectively evaluating product offerings and optimal
store size. This model, called Economic Value Income (EVI),
enables Kitchen Collection to determine where to invest its
resources to achieve the greatest possible return per cubic
foot of retail space. For example, EVI helps management
analyze the most profitable mix of products, the amount
of space to give each product and the most appropriate

store size.

- Web Site Enhancements

Kitchen Collection continued to improve its Web site —
kitchencollection.com — by providing a broader product
selection, easier navigation and enhanced graphics. The
site has enabled the company to build its Internet sales

volume steadily over the last several years.

Outlook

Kitchen Collection® is a superior purveyor of small
kitchen appliances, gadgets and cookware in the factory
outlet industry. Gadgets & More® is a new, but related,
format tailored to the needs of the regional mall market.
Both store formats are positioned for growth. However, the
emphasis will increasingly be on the new Gadgets & More®
format. Growth in both formats should also be reinforced by

the Harnilton Beach® and Proctor- Silex® branding program.
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\ | Randolph J. Gawelek
) President and Chief Executive Officer
The Kitchen Collection, Inc.

Kitchen Collection’s popular new Gadgets & More® store in Polaris Fashion Place in Columbus, Ohio, features kitchen gadgets and a variety of other kitchen-related products.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General

NACCO Industries, Inc. ("NACCO" or the "Company") is a holding company whose principal operating
subsidiaries function in three distinct industries: lignite mining, hift trucks and housewares. ‘

(a) North American Coal. The Company's wholly owned subsidiary, The North American Coal Corporation,
and its affiliated coal companies (collectively, "NACoal"), mine and market lignite primarily as fuel for power
providers. NACoal also provides dragline mining services for a limerock quarry near Miami, Florida.

(b) NACCO Materials Handling Group. NACCO Materials Handling Group consists of the Com any's
wholgf owned subsidiary, NMHG Holding Co., and its wholly owned subsidiaries (collectively, " G"),
including NACCO Materials Handling Group, Inc. ("NMHG Wholesale") and NMHG Distribution Co. ("NMHG
Retail™). NMHG, throu%h NMHG Wholesale and NMHG Retail, designs, engineers, ma&lufacmres@sells, services
and leases a full line of lift trucks and service parts marketed worldwide under the Hyster™ and Yale™ brand names.
NMHG Wholesale includes the manufacture and sale of lift trucks and related service parts, primarily to
independent and wholly owned Hyster and Yale retail dealerships. NMHG Retail includes the sale, leasing and
service of Hyster and Yale lift trucks and related service parts by wholly owned retail dealerships and rental
companies. .

(¢) NACCO Housewares Group. NACCO Housewares Grrou%l ("Housewares") consists of two of the
Company's wholly owned subsidiaries:%amilton Beach#¢Proctor-Silex, Inc. ("HB#PS"), a leading manufacturer and
marketer of small electric motor and heat-driven appliances as well as commercial products for restaurants, bars and
hotels, and The Kitchen Collection, Inc. ("KCI"), a national specialty retailer of brand-name kitchenware, small
electrical appliances and related accessories.

Additional information relating to financial and operating data on a segment basis (including NACCO and Other) is

set forth under the heading "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

gperafgions" contained in Part I hereof and in Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Part IV
ereof.

NACCO was incorporated as a Delaware corporation in 1986 in connection with the formation of a holding
company structure for a predecessor corporation organized in 1913. As of February 28, 2002, the Company and its
subsidiaries had approximately 13,300 employees.

Sigrificamt Events

On QOctober 11, 2000, NACoal acﬁuired certain assets from Phillips Coal Company, including its 75% joint
venture interest in Mississiﬁ)pi Lignite Mining Company ("MLMC"), its 50% joint venture interest in Red River
Mining Company and the related lignite reserves under committed contracts at both of these mines. As a result of the
acquisition, NACoal now owns 100% of MLMC and Red River Mining Company. In addition, NACoal acquired
from Phillips Coal Company approximately 560 million tons of undeveloped lignite reserves in Texas, Mississippi
and Tennessee. In the fourth quarter of 2001, MLMC commenced limited deliveries of lignite to its customer. As of
December 31, 2001, the customer's power plant had not yet reached Commercial Operations Date ("COD?, as
defined in the lignite sales agreement. As a result, MLMC has been collecting monthly contractual liquidated
damages from its customer since January 2001. Subsequent to December 31, 2001, MLMC was notified that the
customer declared COD effective March 1, 2002. MLMC does not expect to continue to receive contractual
liquidated damages payments related to the ongoing operations of the mine once such COD has been confirmed.

On January 2, 2001, NMHG announced that it would close its manufacturing and assembly 03)erations in
Danville, lllinois as part of a manufacturing plant consolidation strategy that will enable NMHG to reduce its cost
structure while optimizing its global manufacturing capacity. The phase-out of the Danville facility was substantially
completed by December 31, 2501.

In 2001, NMHG implemented, and largel¥1 comg)leted, a restructuring and downsizing program in Europe.
The restructuring is expected to be completed by the end of 2002.

On December 31, 2001, NMHG Retail sold all of its company-owned Hyster retail dealerships in Germany to
ZEPPELIN GmbH and designated ZEPPELIN GmbH as its Hyster dealer in parts of Germany, Austria, and several
Central and Eastern European countries.

In 2000, HB¢PS introduced several air purification and humidification products under the Hamilton Beach®
brand, thus entering the home environment segment of the small appliance industry for the first time. In 2001,
HB#PS launched TrueAir™, an odor elimination product. The national launch of this product was supported by
national television advertising in both the second and fourth quarters of 2001.




In the second quarter of 2001, HB<PS expanded its 500,000 square foot distribution center in Memphis,
Tennessee, which has been operational since the second quarter of 1999, by an additional 400,000 square feet. The
expanded Memphis distribution center is expected to allow HB ¢PS to enhance efficiencies and customer service.

. In 2001, HB<PS approved a plan to restructure its manufacturing activities in Mexico. The restructuring plan
includes outsourcing of certain of the company's products and consolidating production in three of the company's
Mexican manufacturing plants into one of those plants.

In the fourth quarter of 2001, HB<PS initiated a restructuring and downsizing glan at its headquarters as a

cost-cutting measure in response to reduced overall consumer demand caused by the 2001-U.S. economic slowdown.

BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION
A. North American Coal
General

NACoal is engaged in the mining and marketing of lignite primarily as fuel for power providers. Sales by
NACoal are made primarily through wholly owned project mining subsidiaries pursuant to long-term, cost plus a
profit per ton contracts. The utility customers have provided, arranged and/or guaranteed the financing of the
development and operation of the project mining subsidiaries. There is no recourse to NACCO or NACoal for the
‘ﬁnanmﬁg of these subsidia? mines. Lhe balance of NACoal's szles are from non-project mining subsidiaries for
which NACoal has arranged and provided the necessary ﬁnancin%. NACoal also provides dragline mining services
for a limerock quarry near Miami, Florida. At December 31, 2001, NACoal's operating mines consist of mines
where the reserves were acquired and developed by NACoal, except for the South Hallsville No. 1 Mine and the San
Miguel Lignite Mine where reserves are owned by the customers of these mines. NACoal also earns royalty income
from the lease of various coal and gas properties. For further information as to the financing of the project mining
subsidiaries, see Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Part IV hereo%

Sales, Marketing and Operations

The principal customers of NACoal are electric utilities, an independent power provider and a synfuels plant.

Sales to Dakota Coal Company, which supplies coal to four facilities, accounted for 40%, 47% and 47% of

?I%Coal's revenues in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The distribution of sales in the last five years has been as
ollows:

Distribution
Klectric
Total Utilities/
Toms Sold Independent Symfuels
(Riioms) Power Provider lamt
2001 314 80% 20%
2000 316 80% 20%
1999 313 80% 20%
1998 31.7 80% 20%
1997 29.9 80% 20%

The contracts under which the project mining subsidiaries were organized provide that, under certain
conditions of default, the customer(s) involved may elect to acquire the assets (subject to the liabilities) or the capital
stock of the subsidiary, for an amount effectively equal to bock value. NACoal does not know of any conditions of
default that currently exist. In one case, the customer may elect to acquire the stock of the subsidiary after a
specified 1%eric»d of time without reference to default, in exchange for certain payments on coal thereafter mined. In
addition, NACoal does not know of any customer's intent to acquire stock of a subsidiary or terminate a contract for
convenience.

~ The location, mine type, reserve data, coal quality characteristics, customer, sales tonnage and contract
expiration date for the mines operated by NACoal in 2001 were as follows:
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Government Regulation

NACoal, like other coal producers, continues to be subject to Federal and state health, safety and
environmental regulations. The 2(?02 expenditures which will be required for comphiance with the provisions of
governmental regulations, including mined land reclamation and other air and water pollution abatement
re%uirements, are estimated at $3.2 million for certain closed mines and are included in the caption "Other current
liabilities" in NACCO's Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Part IV hereof. The active operations are
required to make certain additional capital expenditures to comply with such governmental regulations, which
expenditures will be recovered under the terms of the coal sales agreements with the utility customers.

NACoal's management believes that the Clean Air Act Amendments, which became effective in 1990, have
not had and will not have a material adverse effect on its current operations, because substantially all of the power
generating facilities operated or supplied by NACoal's customers meet or exceed the requirements of the Clean Air
Act.

Competition

The coal industry competes with other sources of energy, particularly cil, gas, hydro-electric power and
nuclear power. Among the factors that affect competition are the price and availability of oil and natural gas,
envircnmental considerations, the time and expeng)itures required to develop new energy sources, the cost of
transportation, the cost of compliance with dgovemmental regulation of operations, the impact of Federal and state
energy policies and the current trend toward deregulation of energy markets. The ability of NACeal to market and
develop its reserves will depend upon the interaction of these factors.

There is no official source of information on the subject, but NACoal believes that it was the ninth largest
coal producer in the United States in 2001 based on total coal tons sold.

Employees

As of February 28, 2002, NACoal had approximately 1,100 employees.
B. NACCQO Materials Handling Group

1. NMHG Wholesale
General

NMHG Wholesale is a leading worldwide designer, manufacturer and marketer of forklift trucks, which
comprise the largest segment of the materials handling equipment industry.

The Industry

Forklift trucks are used in a wide variety of business applications, including manufacturing, warehousing and
retailing. The materials handling industry, especially in industrialized nations, is generally a mature industry, which
has historically been cyclical. Fluctuations in the rate of orders for forklift trucks reflect the capital investment
decisions of the customers, which in tumn depend upon the general level of economic activity in the various
industries served by such customers.

From 1990 through 2000, the worldwide market for forklift trucks gradually increased to approximately
600,000 units. Although individual geographic markets have been subject to cyclicality over this time, all markets
worldwide fell during 2001 as a result of the declining global economy. In 2001, the worldwide market decreased tc
a level of approximately 560,000 units. A substantial portion of this decrease was a result of the decline in the North
American market from approximately 224,000 units in 2000 to approximately 161,000 units in 2001.

Company Operations

NMHG Wholesale maintains product differentiation between Hyster and Yale brands of forklift trucks and
distributes its products through separate worldwide dealer networks. Nevertheless, NMHG Wholesale has integrated
cverlapping operations and takes advantage of economies of scale in design, manufacturing and purchasing. G
Wholesale provides virtually all of its own design, manufacturing and administrative functions. Products are
marketed and sold through two separate, primarily independent, dealer networks which retain and promote the
Hyster and Yale brand names. In Japan, NMHG Wholesale has a 50% owned joint venture with Sumitomo Heavy
Industries Ltd. which is generally known as Sumitomo-NACCO Materials Handling Group ("'S-N"). 8-N performs
certain desxgn activities and produces lift trucks and components which it markets in Japan under the brand name
"Sumitomo” and which are exported for sale by NMHG Wholesale and its affiliates in the Americas, Europe and
Asia-Pacific under the Hyster and Yale brand names.

Product Lines

NMHG Wholesale designs and manufactures a wide range of forklift trucks under both the Hyster and Yale
brand names. The principal categories of forklift trucks include electric rider, electric narrow-aisle and electric
motorized hand forklift trucks primarily for indoor use and internal combustion engine ("ICE") forklift trucks for
indoor or outdoor use. Forklift truck sales accounted for approximately 81%, 81% and 82% of NMHG Wholesale's
net sales in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
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- NMHG Wholesale also derives significant revenues from the sale of service parts for its products. Profit
marﬁlsns on service parts are greater than those on forklift trucks. The large population of Hyster and Yale forklift
trucks now in service provides a market for service %ﬂ].gs. In addition to parts for its own forklift trucks, NMHG
Wholesale has a program in North America, UNISOURCE™, and in Europe, MULTIQUIP™, designed to supply
Hyster dealers with replacement parts for most competing brands of forklift trucks. NMHG Wholesale has a similar
program, PREMIER™, for its Yale dealers in the Americas and Europe. Accordingly, NMHG Wholesale dealers can
offer their mixed fleet customers a "one stop” supply source. Certain of these parts are manufactured by and
urchased from third party component makers. Service parts accounted for approximately 19%, 19% and 18% of
G Wholesale's net sales in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. For further information on geographic regions,

see Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Part IV hereof.

Competition

Although there is no official source for information on the subject, NMHG believes that in 2001 NMHG
W%:iolesale was one of the leading manufacturers of forklift trucks in the world, based on the number of lift trucks
sold.

The forklift truck industry is highly competitive. The worldwide competitive structure of the industry is
fragmented by product line and country; however, each of the three largest forklift truck manufacturers, including
NMHG, has a significantly greater market positicn on a unit volume basis than the other manufacturers. Competition
among forklift truck manufacturers is based primarily on strength and quality of product line, product performance,
product quality and features, and cost of ownership over the life o? the truck. The forklift truck industry also
competes with alternative methods of materials handling, including conveyor systems, automated guided vehicle
?%lstems and manual labor. Global competition is also atfected by a number of other factors, including currency

uctuations, variations in labor costs and effective tax rates, and the costs related to compliance with applicable
regulations, including export restraints, antidumping provisions and environmental regulations.

NMHG Wholesale's position is strongest in North America, where it believes it is the leader in unit sales of
electric rider and ICE forklift trucks and has a significant share of unit sales of electric narrow-aisle and electric
motorized hand forklift trucks. Although the European market is fragmented and competitive positions vary from
country to country, NMHG Wholesale believes that it has a significant share of unit sales of electric rider and ICE
forklift trucks in Western Europe.

Trade Restrictions
United States

Since June 1988, Japanese-built ICE forklift trucks imported into the United States, with lifting capacities
between 2,000 and 15,000 pounds, including finished and unfinished forklift trucks, chassis, frames and frames
assembled with one or more component parts, have been subject to an antidumping duty order. Antidumping duty
rates in effect through 2001 range from 7.36% to 56.81% depending on manufacturer or imlporter. The antidumping
duty rate applicable to imports from S-N is 51.33%. NMHG Wholesale does not currently import for sale in the
Uniuted States any forklift trucks or components subject to the antidumping duty order. This antidumping duty order
will remain in effect until the Japanese manufacturers and importers satistgy the U.S. Department of Commerce (the
"Commerce ]Department’? that they have not individually sold merchandise subject to the order in the United States
below foreign market value for at least three consecutive years, or unless the Commerce Department or the U.S.
International Trade Commission finds that changed circumstances exist sufficient to warrant the retirement of the
order. All of NMHG Wholesale's major Japanese competitors have either built or acquired manufacturing or
assembly facilities in the United States. The legislation implementing the Uruguay round of GATT negotiations

assed 1 1994 provided for the antidumping order to be reviewed for possible retirement in 2000. NMHG
olesale opposed retirement of the order and the 2000 review did not result in retirement of the antidumping duty.
The antidumping order will again be reviewed for possible retirement in 2005.

Europe

There are no formal restraints on foreign forklift manufacturers in the European Union. Several Japanese
manufacturers have established manufacturing or assembly facilities within the European Union.

Product Design and Development

NMHG Wholesale spent $44.7 million, $43.9 millicn and $41.4 million on product design and development
activities in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The Hyster and Yale products are differentiated for the specific
needs of their respective customer bases. NMHG Wholesale continues to pursue ogportunities to improve product
costs by engineering new Hyster and Yale brand preducts with component commonality.

In addition, certain product design and development activities with respect to ICE forklift trucks and some
components are performed in Japan by S-N. S-N ?ent approximately $3.2 million, $4.0 million and $4.1 million on
product design and development in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.




Backlog

As of December 31, 2001, NMHG Wholesale's backlog of unfilled orders for forklift trucks was
approximately 15,100 units, or $266 million, of which substantially all is expected to be filled during fiscal 2002.
is compares to the backlog as of December 31, 2000 of approximately 21,800 units, or $373 million. Decreased
roduct demand, primarily in the Americas, caused the decrease in backlog levels. Backlog represents unit orders to
&M HG Wholesale's manufacturing plants from NMHG Retail, independent dealerships, retail customers and
contracts with the United States government. Although these orders are believed to be firm, such orders may be
subject to cancellation or modification.

Sources

NMHG Wholesale has adopted a strategy of obtaining its raw materials and principal components on a global
basis from competitively priced sources. G Wholesale is dependent on a limited number of suppliers for
certain of its critical components, including diesel and gasoline engines and cast-iron counterweights used on certain
forklift trucks. There would be a material adverse effect on G Wholesale if it were unable to obtain all or a
significant portion of such comgonents, or if the cost of such com%onents was to increase significantly under

circumstances which prevented G Wholesale from passing on such increases to its customers.

Distributiom

The Hyster and Yale brand products are distributed through separate highly developed worldwide dealer
networks which are primarily independently owned. For further information, see the discussion under the heading
"NMHG Retail" below. In addition, NMHG Wholesale has an internal sales force for each brand to sell directly to
major customers. In Japan, forklift truck products are distributed by S-N.

Financing of Sales

NMHG Wholesale has a joint venture agreement and other agreements with General Electric Capital
Corporation ("GE Capital") under which GE Capital furnishes leasing and financing services to selected Hyster
dealers in the United States and Canada in addition to the Yale dealers GE Capital was already supporting under a
prior agreement. NMHG Wholesale owns 20% of the joint venture entity, G Financial Services, Inc., and is
entitled to certain fees and remarketing profits. In addition, NMHG Wholesale entered into an International
Operating A@reement with GE Capital pursuant to which GE Capital provides leasing and fmanciné? services to
Hyster and Yale dealers throughout the m&}?ﬁr countries of the world outside of the United States and Canada and
makes referral fee payments to NMHG
agreements expire in 2003.

olesale once certain financial thresholds are reached. Each of these

Employees

As of February 28, 2002, NMHG Wholesale had appmximate]lsy 6,000 employees. Employees in the Danville,
TNliinois manufacturing and Ifaurts depot operations (ap}gmxﬁmateﬂy 150 employees) are unionized, as are tool room
employees (approximately 18 employees) located in Pertland, Oregon. A two-year contract with the Portland tool
room union expires in 2003. Employees at the facilities in Berea, Kentucky; Sulligent, Alabama; and Greenville and
Lenoir, North Carolina are not represented by unions.

In ]Euml%e, shop er%rl)loyees in the Craigavon, Northern Ireland facility are unionized. Employees in the Irvine,
Scotland and Niymegen, the Netherlands facilities are not represented by unions. The emplioyees 1 Nijmegen have
organized a works council, as required by Dutch law, which performs a consultative role on employment matters. In
Mexico, shop employees are unionized.

NMHG Wholesale's management believes its current labor relations with both union and non-union
employees are generally satisfactory. However, there can be no assurances that NMHG Wholesale will be able to
successfully renegotiate its union contracts without work stoppages cr on acceptable terms.

Goverrment Regulation

NMHG Wholesale's manufacturing facilities, in common with others in the industry, are subject to riumerous
laws and regulations designed to protect the environment, particularly with respect to disposal of plant waste.
NMHG Wholesale's products are also subject to various industry a.ndly overnmental standards, particularly with
respect to engine emission levels. NMHG Wholesale's management be%ievcs that the impact ofp expenditures to
comply with such requirements will not have a material adverse effect on NMHG Wholesale.

Patents, Trademarks and Licenses

NMHG Wholesale is not materially dependent upon patents or patent protection. NMHG Wholesale is the
owner of the Hyster trademark, which is currently registered in approximately 55 countries. Yale is a registered
trademark of NMHG Wholesale used in connection with the manufacture and sale of forklift trucks and related
components, and is currently registered in approximately 150 countries. NMHG Wholesale's management believes
that its business is not dependent upon any individual trademark registration or license, but that the Hyster and Yale
trademarks are material to its business.




Foreign Operations

For a description of revenues and other financial information by geographic region, see Note 19 to the
Consclidated Financial Statements contained in Part IV hereof.

2. NMHG Retail

General

From time to time, NMHG, through NMHG Retail, acquires, on an interim basis, certain independent Hyster,
Yale and competitor dealers and rental companies to strengthen or protect Hyster's or Yale’s presence in select
territories.

NMHG Retail has one dealership in the United States, five dealerships and rental companies in Europe and
three dealerships and rental companies 1n Asia-Pacific.

The Industry

Forklift trucks are sold at the retail level worldwide by independent dealers and by dealerships owned by the
oriﬁlal equipment manufacturer (OEM). Some OEMs distribute exclusively through independent dealers, some
OEMs distribute exclusively through owned dealerships and some OEMs (such as NMHG Wholesale), distribute
through 2 combination of independent and owned dealerships. Forklifts are also leased on a short- and long-term
basis at the retail level by dealerships and independent rental companies.

Company Operations

An NMHG Retail dealership is authorized to sell and rent either Hyster or Yale brand materials handling
equipment. These dealerships will typically also sell allied lines of equipment from other manufacturers pursuant to
dealer agreements. Allied equipment includes such items as sweepers, aerial work platforms, personnel carts, rough
terrain forklifts and other eq]uipm_entc as well as racking and shelvintg. The number and type of products available will
vary from dealership to dealership. A primary source of revenue for dealerships is the sale of parts and service for
equipment sold by the dealership. Service is performed both in-shop and on-site. In addition to the outright sale of
new and used equipment, dealerships provide equipment for lease and for short- or long-term rental.

v NMHG Retail dealerships are granted a gm?mary ge«;gra;fhic temt@ng by NMHG Wholesale in which they
operate. NMHG Retail operations are conducted at branch facilities located in major cities within NMHG Retail's
assigned area of operations.

Competition

The materials handling equipment sales and rental industry is highly fragmented and competitive. NMHG
Retail's competitors include OEM-owned dealers, OEM direct sales efforts, independently owned competitive
dealerships and forklift rental outlets, independent paris operations, independent service shops and, to a lesser
extent, independent Hyster or Yale dealers. The forklift truck industry also competes with alternative methods of
materials handling, including conveyor systems, automated guided vehicle systems and manual labor.

Customers

NMHG Retail's customer base is highly diversified and ranges from Fortune 100 companies to small
businesses in virtually every type of manufacturing and service industry. No single customer accounted for more
than 10% of NMHG Retail's revenues during 2001, NMHG Retail's customer base varies widely by branch and is
determined by several factors, including the equipment mix and marketing focus of the particular branch and the
business composition of the local economy.

Fimancing of Sales

NMHG Retail dealerships have a preferred relationship with GE Capital. In the United States, NMHG Retail
dealerships may obtain wholesale and retail financing for the sale and leasing of e%uipment through NMHG
Financial Services, a joint venture between NMHG Wholesale and GE Capital. This affords these dealerships with a
V\gde variety of financial products at competitive rates. See also "Financing of Sales" under NMHG olesale
above.




Employees
As of February 28, 2002, NMHG Retail had approximately 1,500 employees.
Government Regulation

NMHG Retail's operations, like others in similar operations, are subject to numerous laws and regulations
designed to protect the environment, particularly with respect to the disposal of cleaning solvents and wastewater
and the use of and disposal of petroleum products from underground and above-ground storage tanks. NMHG
Retail's management believes that the impact of any env’ironmentaﬁemediation and compliance costs will not have a
material adverse effect on NMHG Retail.

Foreigm Operations

For a description of revenues and other financial information by geographic region, see Note 19 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Part IV hereof.

C. NACCO Housewares Group
General

NACCO Housewares Group consists of HB<PS and KCI. HB<PS believes that it is one of the largest full-line
manufacturers and marketers of small electric kitchen appliances in North America based on market share of key
product categories. HBoPS' tproducts are marketed primarily to retail merchants and wholesale distributors. KCl is a
naticnal specialty retailer of kitchenware, small electric appliances and related accessories that operated 168 retail
stores as of December 31, 2001. Stores are located primari ]I-%Bin factory outlet complexes that feature merchandise of
highly recognizable name-brand manufacturers, including HB<PS.

Sales and Marketing

HB<PS manufactures and markets a wide range of small eleciric household appliances, including motor-
driven appliances such as blenders, mixers, can openers and food processors, and heat-driven appliances such as
coffeemakers, irons, toasters, slow cookers, indoor grills and toaster ovens. In 2000, HBoPS entered the home
environment market with a line of humidifiers, air purifiers and odor eliminators. HBoPS also makes commercial

roducts for restaurants, bars and hotels. HBO]P®S generally markets its "better" and "best” segments under the

amilton Beach brand and uses the Proctor-Silex™ brand for the "good" and "better”" segments. In addition, HBoPS
supplies WalvrMart with GE-branded kitchen electric and garment-care appliances under Wal¥tMart's license
agreement with General Electric Company and, in 2001, launched a home odor elimination product under the
TrueAir brand name. HBoPS markets its products primarily in North America, but also sells products in Latin
America, Asia-Pacific and Europe. Sales are generated predominantly by a network of inside sales employees to
mass merchandisers, national department stores, variety store chains, cfll'ug store chains, specialty home retailers and
other retail outlets. Principal customers during 2001 included WalsxMart, Kmart, Target, Canadian Tire, Family
Dollar, Ames, Sears, Bed, Bath & Beyond, Dollar General, Home Depot and Zellers. Sa%es promotion activities are
primarily focused on cooperative advertising.

Because of the seasonal nature of the markets for small electric appliances, HB°PS' management believes that
backlog is not a meaningful indicator of performance and is not a significant indicator of annual sales. As of
December 31, 2001, backlog for HBoPS was approximately $3.2 million. This compares with the backlog as of
December 31, 2000 of approximately $6.6 million. This backlog represents customer orders, which may be canceled
at any time prior to shipment.

HB<PS' warranty ?rogljam to the consumer consists generally of a limited warranty lasting for varying periods
of up to three years for electric appliances. Under its warranty program, HB ©PS may repair or replace, at its option,
those products found to contain manufacturing defects.

Revenues and operating profit for Housewares are traditionally greater in the second half of the year as sales
of small electric appliances to retailers and consumers increase sisgni icantly with the fall holiday selling season.
Because of the seasonality of purchases of its products, HB*PS incurs substantial short-term debt to finance
inventories and accounts receivable in anticipation of the fall holiday selling season.

Product Design and Development

The Housewares Group spent §7.3 million in 2001, $8.0 million in 2000 and $6.6 million in 1999 on product
design and development activities. All of these expenditures were made by HBoPS.

Sources
The principal raw materials used to manufacture and distribute HB<PS' products are steel, glass, plastic and

packaging materials. HB<PS' management believes that adequate quantities of raw materials are available from
variocus suppliers.




Competition

. The small electric household appliance industry is highly comfpetitive. Based on publicly available
information about the industry, HB¢PS' management believes it is one of the largest full-line manufacturers and
marketers of small electric kitchen appliances in North America based on key product categories.

As retailers generally purchase a limited selection of small electric appliances, HB¢PS competes with other
suppliers for retail shelf space and focuses its primary marketing efforts on retailers rather than consumers. Since
1996, HB<PS has also conducted consumer advertising for the Hamilton Beach brand. In 2001, this advertising
focused on the Hamilton Beach and TrueAir brands. ¢PS' management believes that the principal areas of
competition with respect to its products are quality, price, product design, product features, merchandising,
promotion and warranty. HB ¢PS' management believes that it is competitive in all of these areas.

As the outlet channel of the retail industry is approaching maturitly, the management of KCI continues to
explore alternate areas of growth and diversification, ]lgor the past several years, KCI has been testing alternative
store formats both within the outlet industry and the more traditional retail environments. Because not all of these
formats have met KCI's rigorous financial performance standards, KCI continues to explore alternate channels of
distribution, including distribution through tge Internet.

Governmment Regulation

HB¢PS, in common with other manufacturers, is subject tc numerous Federal and state health, safety and
environmental regulations. HB¢PS' management believes that the impact of expenditures to comply with such laws
will not have a material adverse effect on HB*PS. HB*PS' products are subject to testing or regulation by
Underwriters' Laboratories, the Canadian Standards Association and varicus entities in foreign countries that review
product design.

Patents, Trademarks, Copyrights and Licenses

HBoPS holds patents and trademarks registered in the United States and foreign countries for various
products. HB*PS' management believes that its business is not dependent upon any individual patent, trademark,
copyright or license, but that the Hamilton Beach and Proctor-Silex trademarks are material to its business.

Employees

As of February 28, 2002, Housewares' work force consisted of approximately 4,600 erréployees, most of
which are not represented by unions. In Canada, approximately 16 hourly emrloyees at HB+PS' Picton, Ontario
distribution facility are unionized. These employees are represented by an employee association which performs a
consultative role on employment matters. On February 6, 2002, a collective bargaining agreement, which exFires on
January 28, 2003, was executed for HB*PS' Saltillo, Mexico manufacturing facility. There are approximately 1,640
employees subject to the terms of the Saltillo agreement. The management of HB¢PS and KCI believe their current
labor relations with both union and non-union employees are satisfactory. However, there can be no assurances that
HB<PS will be able to successfully renegotiate its union contracts without work stoppages or on acceptable terms. A
pit'_olonged work stoppage at a unionized facility could materially adversely affect Housewares' business and results
of operations.

Item 2. PROPERTIES
A. NACCO

NACCO currently leases its corporate headquarters building in Mayfield Heights, Ohio.
B. NACeal

NACoal's proven and probable coal reserves and deposits (owned in fee or held under leases which generally
remain in effect until exhaustion of the reserves if mining is in progress) are estimated at approximately 2.6 billion
tons, all of which are lignite deposits, except for approximately 128 million tons of bituminous coal. Reserves are
estimates of quantities of coal, made by NACoal's geclogical and en%ineering staff, that are considered mineable in
the future using existing operating metheds. Developed reserves are those which have been allocated to mines which
are in operation; all other reserves are classified as undeveloped. Information conceming mine type, reserve data and
coal quality characteristics for NACoal's properties are set forth on the table on page 3 under "Item 1. Business -- A.
North American Coal -- Sales, Marketing and Operations."




C. NMHG
1. NMHG Wholesale

The following table summarizes certain information with respect to the principal manufacturing, distribution
and office facilities owned or leased by NMHG Wholesale.

Location Owned Leased Function/Primcipal Products

Berea, Kentucky X Manufacture and assembly of forklift trucks

Craigavon, Northern [reland X Manufacture and assembly of forklift trucks

Danville, Minois X Manufacture and assembly of forklift trucks

Danville, lllinois X Distribution of service parts for both Hyster and Yale

- forklift trucks

Fleet, England Hyster and Yale forklift truck marketing and sales
cperations for Eurcpe, the Middle East and Africa

Greenville, North Carclina NMHG Americas division headguarters; Hyster and Yale
marketing and sales operations for NMHG Americas;
design, manufacture and assembly of forklift trucks

Irvine, Scotland ' NMHG Eurcpean division headquarters; manufacture and
assembly of forklift trucks

Lenoir, North Carolina Mankléfacture and assembly of component parts for forklift
truc

Masate, [taly X Manufacture and assembly of forklift trucks

Modena, Italy X Manufacture and assembly of forklift trucks

Nijmegen, the Netherlands X Design, manufacture and assembly of forklift trucks and
com}&onem parts; distribution of service parts for forklift
truc

Fairview, Oregon X Counterbalanced forklift truck development center for
design and testing of forldift trucks, prototype equipment
and component parts

Portland, Cregon X NMHG global headquarters

Portland, Oregon X Manufacture of production tooling and prototype units

Ramos Arizpe, Mexico X Manufacture of component parts for forklift trucks

Sao Paulo, Brazil X Assembly of forklift trucks; distribution of service parts
for forklift trucks

Shanghai, China X Assembly of forklift trucks by Shanghai Hyster Joint
Venture

Sulligent, Alabama X Meanufacture of component parts for forklift trucks

Sydney, Australia X Distribution of service parts for forklift trucks and staff

operations for NMHG Asia-Pacific division

MAs of December 31, 2001, NMHG had substantially eliminated all manufacturing and assembly at this facility.
S-N's o%erations are supported by two facilities. S-N's headquarters are located in Obu, Jagan at an

owned facility. The Obu facility also has manufacturing and distribution capabilities. In Cavite, the Phillipines,
3-N owns a facility for the manufacture of component parts for Sumitomo-Yale products.
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2. NMHG Retafl
NMHG Retail, through its subsidiaries, currently operates its 19 owned dealerships from 62 locations. Of
these 62 locations, 8 are in the United States, 25 are in Eurcpe and 29 are in Asia-Pacific as shown below:

Un]iéed Staglsi )
entuc
Ohio (5)
]Pennsilllvania )
West Virginia (1)

Europe:
rance (17)
Germany (3)
Netherlands 51)
United Kingdom (4)

Asia-Pacific:
Australia (28)
Singapore (1)

Branch locations generally include facilities for displa%{e uipment, storing rental equipment, servicin
equipment, parts storage and sales and administrative offices. Retail owns four of its branch locations an
leases 58 of its locations. Certain of the leases were entered into {or assumed) in connection with acquisitions and
many of the lessors under these leases are former owners of businesses that G Retail acquired.

NMHG Retail geographic headquarters are shared with NMHG Wholesale in Greenville, North Carolina;
Fleet, England;-and Sydney, Australia. ‘

D. NACCQO Housewares Group

The following table summarizes certain information with respect to the principal manufacturing, distribution
and office facilities owned or leased by HB¢PS.

Location Owned Leased Function/Principal Products

El Paso, Texas X Distribution center

Glen Allen, Virginia X Corporate headquarters

Juarez, Chihuahua, Mexico X Manufacturing and assembl.{ of heat-driven products (two
plants); plastic molding facility (one plant)

Memphis, Tennessee X Distribution center

Picton, Ontario, Canada X Distribution center

Southern Pines, North Carolina X Assembly of commercial products; service center for
customer returns; catalog sales center; parts distribution
center

Toronto, Ontario, Canada X Proctor-Silex Canada sales and administration
headquarters '

Washington, North Carclina X Customer service center

Saltillo, Coahuila, Mexico X Manufacture and assembly of heat-driven and motor

products; plastic molding and metal stamping facility
Sales offices are also leased in several cities in the United States, Canada and Mexico.

KCI currently leases its corporate headquarters building, a warehouse/distribution facility and a retail store in
Chillicothe, Chio. KCI leases the remainder of its retail stores. A typical store is approximately 3,000 square feet.
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Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

~ Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is a party to any material pending legal proceeding other than
ordinary routine litigation incidental to its respective business.

Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matter was submitted during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by this report to a vote of
security holders of the Company.

Item 4A. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
The information under this Item is furnished pursuant to Instruction 3 to Item 401(b) of Regulation S-X.

_ There exists no arrangement or understanding between any executive officer and any other person pursuant to
which such executive officer was elected. Each executive officer serves until his successor is elected and qualified.

The tables on the following pages set forth the name, age, current position and principal occupation and
employment during the past five years of the Company's executive officers.
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Name

Alfred M. Rankin, Jr.
Charles A. Bittenbender

Kenneth C. Schilling

J.C. Butler, Jr.
Lauren E. Miller

Constantine E. Tsipis

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

60

52

42

41

47

43

Age Current Position

Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer of NACCO (since

prior to 1997)

Vice President, General Counsel and
Secretary of NACCO (since prior to

1997)

Vice President and Controller of
NACCO (since May 1997)

Vice President — Corporate
Development and Treasurer of
NACCO (since May 1997)

Vice President — Consulting
Services of NACCQO (since May

1997)

Assistant General Counsel and
Assistant Secretary of NACCO

(since May 2000)

13

Other Positions

From prior to 1697 to May 1997,
Controller of NACCO.

From prior to 1997 to May 1997,
Manager of Corporate Development
and Treasurer of NACCO.

From prier to 1997 to May 1997,
Directer of Internal Consulting of
NACCO.

From October 1997 to May 2000,
Assistant General Counsel of NACCO.
From prior to 1997 to October 1997,
Associate General Counsel, STERIS
Corporation (manufacturer and
distributor of medical and sterilizing
equipment).




PRINCIPALL CFFICERS OF THE COMPANY'S SUBSIDIARIES

Age  Current Position Other Positioms

Clifford R. Miercort 62  President and Chief Executive
Officer of NACoal (since prior to
1997)

Charles B. Friley 60  Senior Vice President — Finance and  From prior to 1997 to Au%.xst 1999,
Chief Financial Officer 6f NACoal  Vice President and Chief Financial
(since August 1999) Officer of NACoal.

Robert L. Benson 54  Vice President — Eastern and Since March 1997, General Manager of
Scuthern Operations of NACoal Mississippi %gmte Mining Company (a
(since September 2001) subsidiary of NACeal). From March

1997 to September 2001, Operations
Manager, NACoal. From prior to 1997
to February 1997, President of The

Coteau Properties Company (a
subsidiary of NACoal).
Thomas A. Koza 55 Vice President — Law and
Administration, and Secretary of
NACoal (since prior to 1997)
Clark A. Moseley 50 Vice President — Business From June 1997 to December 2001,
Develo%ment and Engineering of Vice President ~ Engineering of
NACca! (since January 2002) NACoal. From prier te 1997 to June
1997, Manager, Engineering and
Project Development, NACoal.
K. Donald Grischow 54  Controller and Treasurer of NACoal

(since prior to 1997)

14




B. NMHG
Name

Reginald R. Eklund

Michael P, Brogan

Richard H. Close

Ron J. Leptich

Geoffrey D. Lewis

Jeffrey C. Mattern

Frank G. Muller

Victoria L. Rickey

Edward W. Ryan

Raymond C. Ulmer

Age

61

52

43

58

49

60

49

63

PRINCIPAL OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY'S SUBSIDIARIES

Current Position

President and Chief Executive
(l)gfg;:)f:r of NMHG (since prior to

Senior Vice President, Product

Development and Procurement of
NMHG (since June 2000)

Vice President of NMHG; Managing
Director, NMHG Europe, Africa an
Middle East (since August 2001)

Vice President, Engineering and Big
?lfgrg%l;s of NMHG (since October

Vice President, Corporate
Development, General Counsel and
%Sgge)tary of NMHG (since June

Treasurer of NMHG (since prior to
1997)

Vice President of NMHG; President,
11\%%@ Americas (since prior to

Vice President, Chief Strategy
Officer of NMHG (since July 2001)

Vice President, Marketing of
NMHG (since prior to 1997);
President, G Asia-Pacific,
China and Japan {since prior to
1997)

Controller of NMHG (since
December 2000)
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Other Positions

From May 1999 to June 2000, Vice
President, Warehouse Product Strategy
of NMHG. From prior to 1997 to May
1999, Managixzﬁ irector of NACCO
Materials Handling S.R.L. (Italy; (a
subsidiary of G Wholesale).

From March 1999 to July 2001,
Managing Director of Lex Industrial
Machinery (a provider of industrial
machinery management solutions).
From prior to 1997 to March 1999,
Franchise Director of Lex Retail Group
(a provider of vehicle management
solutions).

From prior to 1997 to October 1997,
Vice President, Engineering and Big
Trucks, Worldwide of G.

From prior to 1997 to June 1999, Vice
President, General Counsel and
Secretary of NMHG.

From prior to 1997 to June 2001, Vice
President of NMHG; Managing
Director, NMHG Europe, Africa and
Middle East.

From April 1997 to December 2000,
Director of Financial Planning and
Analysis, NMHG. From prior to 1997 to
April 1997, Plant Controller —
Greenville.




PRINCIPAL OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY'S SUBSIDIARIES
C. NACCO HOUSEWARES GROUP

1. HB°PS
Name Age  Current Position Other Positions
Michael J. Morecroft 59  President and Chief Executive FromJ anuar%rl 997 to January 2001,
Officer of HBoPS (since January Senior Vice President —
2001) Engineering/Product Development of
HRoPS.
Keith B. Bums 45  Vice President — Engineering and From April 1999 to March 2001, Vice
New Product Development of President, Purchasing of HB<¢PS. From
HBoPS (since March 2001) November 1998 to April 1999, Director
of Product Engineering of HBPS.
From prior to 1997 to October 1998,
Manager, Product Engineering of
HBoPS.
Kathleen L. Diller 50 Vice President, General Counsel and From May 1998 to August 2001,
Secretary of HB<PS (since August  Assistant General Counsel and
2001) Assistant Secretary, Cooper Tire &

‘ Rubber Company (developer,
manufacturer and marketer of primarily
rubber-based products for the
transportation industry). From prior to
1997 to April 1998, Senior Division
Counsel, Owens Corning (manufacturer
of building materials systems and
composites systems).

Charles B. Hoyt 54  Senior Vice President — Finance and
Chief Financial Officer of HB©PS
(since January 1997)
Judith B. McBee 54 Senior Vice President — Marketing
of HB<PS (since January 1997)
Paul C. Smith 55 Senior Vice President — Sales of
HBePS (since prior to 1997)
James H. Taylor 44 Vice President and Treasurer of
HB<PS (since prior to 1997)
2. KCI
Name Age  Current Position Other Positions
Randolph J. Gawelek 54  President and Chief Executive From March 1999 to August 1999,

Officer of KCI (since August 1999)  President, Secretary and Treasurer of
KCI. From December 1998 to March
1999, Executive Vice President,
Secretary and Treasurer of KCI. From
prior to 1997 to December 1998,
Executive Vice President and Secretary
of KCIL.
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PART II

Item 5. m&SFOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDERS'

NACCO Industries, Inc. Class A common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker
%nnbol NC. Because of transfer restrictions, no trading market has developed, or is expected to develop, for the
ompany's Class B common stock. The Class B common stock is convertible into Class A common stock on a
one-for-one basis. The high and low market prices for the Class A common stock and dividends per share for both
classes of common stock for each quarter during the past two years are presented in the table below:

2001
Sales Price Cash
High Low Dividend
First quarter $71.00 $42.50 22.50¢
Second quarter $79.10 $60.59 23.50¢
Third guarter $82.80 $44.25 23.50¢
Fourth guarter $65.00 $45.25 23.50¢
2000
Sales Price Cash
High Low Dividend
First quarter $55.75 $39.50 21.50¢
Second quarter $51.25 $33.56 22.50¢
Third quarter $47.50 $34.25 22.50¢
Fourth quarter $44.50 $35.63 22.50¢

At December 31, 2001, there were approximately 500 Class A common stockholders of record and 400
Class B common stockholders of record.
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Year Ended December 31
2001 2000 1999 1998
(In millions, except per share and employee data)

Revenues $ 2,637.9 $ 28713 $2,6359 $ 2,569.3
Operating profit $ 5.7 $ 1179 $ 1313 $ 1981

Income (loss) before extraordinary
gain and cumulative effect
of accotinting changes

Extraordinary gain, net-of-tax
Curmulative effect of accounting

changes, net-of-tax (1.2)
Net income (loss) $ 531

Total assets $2,013.0
Long-term debt $ 3263
Stockholders' equity $ 5622
EBITDA* $ 1826

Basic earnings per share:
Income (loss) before extraordinary
gain and cumulative effect :
of accounting changes $ (4.24) 3 4,63 $ 6.67 b 12.56 $ 7.56

Extraordinary gain, net-of-tax —_ 3.66 — — -
Cumulative effect of accounting

changes, net-of-tax (16) - (15) — -
Net income (foss) S (4.40) 3 8.29 $ 6.52 $ 12.56 b 7.56

Diluted earnings per share:
Income (loss) before extraordinary
gain and cumulative effect

of accounting changes $ (4.24) $ 4.63 $ 6.66 $ 12.53 3 7.55
Extraordinary gain, net-of-tax — 3.66 --- --- ---
Cumulative effect of accounting

changes, net-of-tax {.16) -—- (.15) -—- o
Net income (loss) $ (4.40) 3 8.29 $ 6.51 $ 12.53 $ 7.55
Per share data:

Cash dividends $ 930 $ .890 $ .850 $ .810 5 773
Market value at December 31 $ 56.79 $ 43.69 $ 5556 $ 92.00 $ 107.19
Stockholders' equity at December 31 § 64.58 $ 74.21 $ 6892 $ 63.83 b 52.13
Average shares outstanding 8.190 8.167 8.150 8.147 8.171
Total employees 13,500 17,200 16,000 14,100 13,400

* EBITDA represents income before taxes, minority interest, extraordinary gain and cumulative effect of accounting changes
plus net interest and depreciation, depletion and amortization. However, interest expense, depreciation, depletion and
amortization attributable to project mining subsidiaries are not included.
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[tem 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
NACCO INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Tabular Amounts in Millions, Except Per Share, Unit, Store and Percentage Data)

NACCO Industries, Inc. ("NACCQO," the parent company) and its wholly owned subsidiaries ﬁcollectivcly, the
"Company") operate in three distinct industries: lignite mining, lift trucks and housewares. Results of operations
and financial condition are discussed separately by segment, which corresponds with the industry groupings, except
that the .Comﬁany segments its lifi truck operations into two components: wholesale manufacturing and retail
distribution. Results by segment are also summarized in Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

_ The North American Coal Corporation ("NACoal") mines and markets lignite primarily as fuel for power
providers. NMHG Holding Co., through its wholly owned subsidiaries, NACCO Materials Handling Group, Inc.
("NMHG Wholesale") and NMHG Distribution Co. ("NMHG Retail") (collectively "NMHG") designs, engineers,
manuf%ctures, sells, services and leases a full line of lift trucks and service parts marketed worldwide under the
Hyster~ and Yale™ brand names. NMHG Wholesale includes the manufacture and sale of lift trucks and related
service parts, primarily to independent and wholly owned Hyster and Yale retail dealerships and rental companies.
NMHG Retail includes the sale, leasing and service of Hyster and Yale lift trucks and related service parts by wholly
owned retail dealerships and rental companies. NACCO Housewares Group ("Housewares") consists of Hamilton
BeachePrector-Silex, Inc. ("HB*PS"), a leading manufacturer and marketer of small electric motor and heat-driven
a ]Eliances as well as commercial products for restaurants, bars and hotels, and The Kitchen Collection, Inc.
("KCI"), a national specialty retailer of brand-name kitchenware, small electrical appliances and related accessories.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The Company's discussion and analysis of its financial condition and results of operations are based upon the
Company's consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires the Company to make
estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates its estimates, including
those related to pmguct discounts and returns, bad debts, inventones, income taxes, warranty obligations, product
liabilities, restructuring, closed-mine obligations, pensions and other post-retirement benefits, and contingencies and
litigation. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience, actuarial valuations and on various other
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for
making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The Company believes the following critical accounting policies affect its more significant judgments and
estimates used in the preparation of its consolidated financial statements.

Product liabilities: The Company provides for the estimated cost of personal and property damage relating
to the Company's products. Reserves are made for estimates of the costs for known claims and estimates of the costs
of incidents that have occurred but a claim has not yet been reported to the Company. While the Company engages
in extensive product quality reviews and customer education programs, the Company's product liability provisicn is
affected by the number and magnitude of claims of alleged product-related damage and the cost to defend those
claims. In addition, the provision for product liabilities is also affected by changes in assumptions for medical costs,
inflation rates, trends in damages awarded by juries and estimates of the number of claims that have been incurred
but not yet reported. Changes to the estimate of any of these factors could result in a material change to the
Company's product liability provision causing a related increase or decrease in reported net operating results in the
pericd of change in the estimate.

Closed-mine obligations: The Company's wholly owned subsidiary, Bellaire Corporation ("Bellaire"), is a
non-operating subsidiary with lega%liabilities relating to closed mining operations, primarily former Eastern U.S.
underground mining operations. ese legacy liabiﬁties include obligations for Black Lung and other retiree
medical benefits, environmental clean-up and obligations to the United Mine Workers of America Combined
Benefit Fund arising as a result of the Coal Industry Retiree Health Benefit Act of 1992. Provisions made by
Bellaire for these liabilities include estimates of the number of beneficiaries assigned to Bellaire, health care trend
rates, inflation rates, cost of ongoing environmental clean-up, discount factors and legal costs to defend claims. In
addition, these liabilities can be influenced by judicial proceedings and changes in regulations made by government
agencies. The Company continually monitors the regulatory climate which could influence these liabilities as well
as its assumptions used to develop accruals for these liabilities. Changes in any of these factors could materially
change the Company's estimates for these closed-mine obligations causing a related increase or decrease in reported
net operating results in the period of change in the estimate.

Revenue recognition: Revenues are generally recognized when customer orders are completed and shipped.

Reserves for discounts, returns and product warranties are maintained for anticipated future claims. The accounting
policies used to develop these product discounts, returns and warranties include:
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
NACCOQO INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Tabular Amounts in Millions, Except Per Share, Unit, Store and Percentage Data)

Product discoumts: The Company records estimated reductions to revenues for customer programs and
incentive offerings including special pricing agreements, price competition, promotions and other volume-
based incentives. If market conditions were to decline or 1f competition was to increase, the Company may
take actions to increase customer incentive offerings possibly resulting in an incremental reduction of
revenues at the time the incentive is offered.

Product returns: Based on the Company's historical experience, a portion of products sold are estimated
to be returned due tc reasons such as buyer remorse, duplicate gifts received, product failure and excess
inventory stocked by the customer which, subject to certain terms and conditions, the Company will agree to
accept. The Company records estimated reductions to revenues at the time of sale based on this historical
experience. If future trends were to change significantly from those experienced in the past, incremental
reductions o revenues may result based on this new experience.

Product warrantiess The Company provides for the estimated cost of product warranties at the time
revenues are recognized. While the Company engages in extensive product quality programs and processes,
including actively monitoring and evaluating the quality of its component suppliers, the Company's warranty
obligation is affected by product failure rates, material usage and replacement component costs incurred in
correcting a product failure. Should actual product failure rates, material usage or replacement component
costs difter from the Company's estimates, revisions to the estimated warranty liability would be required.

Allowances for doubtful accounts: The Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated
losses resulting from the inability of its customers to make required payments. These allowances are based on both
recent trends of certain customers estimated to be a greater credit risk as well as general trends of the entire customer
pool. If the financial condition of the Company's customers were 1o deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, additional allcwances may be required.

Imventory reserves: The Company writes down its inventory for estimated obsoclescence or excess inventory
equal to the difference between the cost of inventory and the estimated market value based upon assumptions zbout
future demand and market conditions. If actual market conditions are less favorable than those projected by
management, additicnal inventory write-downs may be required.

Deferred tax valuation allowances: The Company records a valuation allowance to reduce its deferred tax
assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized. While the Company has considered future taxable
income and ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning strategies in assessing the need for the valuation allowance, in
the event the Company were to determine that it would be able to realize its deferred tax assets in the future in
excess of its net recorded amount (including the valuation allowance), an adjustment to the deferred tax asset would
increase income in the period such determination was made. Conversely, should the Company determine that it
would not be able to realize all or part of its net deferred tax asset in the future, an adjustment to the deferred tax
asset would be expensed in the period such determination was made.
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF CPERATIONS
NACCQO INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Tabular Amounts in Millions, Except Per Share, Unit, Store and Percentage Data)

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Selected consolidated operating results of the Company were as follows:

2001 2000 1999

Consolidated operating results:
Income i(loss) before extraordinary gain and cumulative

etfect of accountin ch?.gnges $ @47 $ 378 § 543
Extraordinary gain, net-of-tax" e - 299 —-
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net-of-tax®® (1.3) — (1.2)
Net income (loss) $ 360 § 677 % 53.1
Diluted earnings per share:
Income §loss) before extraordinary gain and cumulative

effect of accountin chaglges $ @24 $ 463 $ 6.66
Extraordinary gain, net-of-tax" — 3.66 -
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net-of-tax®® (.16) - %.15)
Net income (loss) $ (440) § 829 51

O An extraordinary gain was recognized in 2000 as a result of a reduction to Bellaire Corporation's closed mine obligations
relating to amounts owed to the United Mine Workers of America Combined Benefit Fund arising as a result of the Coal
Industry Retiree Health Benefit Act of 1992. See also discussion in Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

@ A cumulative effect of a change in accounting was recognized in 1999 for a change in the accounting for start-up costs at
NACoal. Prior to 1999, certain start-up costs were deferred and amortized over the life of the related mine. These
previously deferred start-up costs were written off as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting as required by Statement
of Position 98-5, "Reporting on the Costs of Start-up Activities." See also discussion in Note 2 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. -

® Cumulative effects of changes in accounting were recognized in 2001 as a result of the adoption of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” and for a change
in calculating pension costs. See discussion in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The following schedule identifies the components of the changes in consolidated revenues, operating profit
agd 0?ncomﬁ (loss) before extraordinary gain and cumulative effect of accounting changes for 2001 compared with
2000:

Income (loss)

before
extraordinary
gain and
cumulative
_ effect of
erating accounting
Revenues O%‘roﬁt changes
2000 $ 28713 b 117.9 S 37.8
Increase (decrease) in 2001
ACoal 44.1 30.3 13.0
NMHG Wholesale (286.7) 84.6 49.8
NMHG Retail 27.0 24.1 19.6
Housewares (17.8) 35.8 21.0
NACCO & Other - 2.0 4.9
2001 $ 2,637.9 3 57 3 (34.7)

Following is a discussion of ogerating results by segment, including those items that materially affect the
year-to-year comparison within each of the segment discussions.
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
NACCQ INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Tabular Amounts in Millions, Except Per Share, Unit, Store and Percentage Data)

THE NORTH AMERICAN COAL CORPORATION

NACoal mines and markets lignite primarily as fuel for power providers. The lignite is surface mined in
North Dakota, Texas, Louisiana and Mississippi. Total coal reserves a%pmximate 2.6 billion tens, with 1.2 billion
tons committed to custormers pursuant to long-term coniracts. NACoal operates six wholly owned lignite mines:
The Coteau Properties Compan{ ("Coteau"), The Falkirk Mining Company ("]Fa]lkirk"i The Sabine Mining
Company ("Sabine"), San Miguel Lignite Mine ("San Miguel"), Red River Mining Company ("Red River") and
Mississipp1 Lignite Mining Company ("MLMC"). NACoal also provides dragiine muning services ("Florida
dragline operations") for a limerock quarry near Miami, Florida. The operating results of Coteau, Falkirk and
Sabine are included in "project mining subsidiaries.” The operating results of all other operations are included in
"other mining operations.”

FINANCIAL REVIEW

NACoal's subsidiaries, Coteau, Falkirk and Sabine, are termed "project mining subsidiaries” because they
mine lignite for utility customers pursuant to long-term contracts at a price based on actual cost ?Eus an a%reed O?re-
tax profit per ton. Due to the cost-plus nature of these contracts, revenues and operating profits are affected by
increases and decreases in operating costs, as well as by tons scld. Net income of these project mines, however, is
not significantly affected by changes in such operating costs, which include costs of cperations, interest expense and
certain other items. Because of the nature of the contracts at these three mines, operating results for NACoal are
best analyzed in terms of lignite tons scld, income before taxes and net income. ‘

During 2001, MLMC continued development of the mine area, but has been able to deliver lignite to its
customer throughout the year. MLMC delivered, for testing purposes, 2 relatively small amount of lignite to its
customer's power plant in 2001. As of December 31, 2001, the customer's power plant, however, had not yet
reached Commercial Operaticns Date ("COD"), as defined in the lignite sales agreement. As a result, MLMC has
been receiving monthly liquidated damages payments, as provided in the lignite sales agreement since January 2001.
Subsequent to December 31, 2001, the Company was notified that MLMC's customer declared COD on
March 1, 2002. MLMC does not expect to continue to receive liquidated damages payments related to the ongoing
operations of the mine upon confirmaticn of COD. In addition, durmﬁg the first few months after COD, the plant
n}ay not be able to take the anticipated annual full production level of 3.5 million tons due to a scheduled power
plant outage.

Lignite tons sold by NACoal's operating lignite mines were as follows for the year ended December 31:
2001 2000 1999
1 16.

Coteau 15.

Falkirk

Sabine

San Miguel

Red River

MLMC
Total lignite 3L

g o WAL
alnleonioa
R

Co L
R
Grobon

316 31.3

The Florida dragline operations mined 8.7 million, 7.9 million, and 8.4 million cubic yards of limerock for the
years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Total coal reserves declined to 2.6 billion at December 31, 2001 from 2.8 billion at December 31, 2000
primarily due to the expiration of non-renewable coal leases in undevelcped areas and tons mined.
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Revenues, income before taxes, income tax provision (benefit) and net income were as follows for the year
ended December 31: :

2001 2000 1999
Revenues .
Project mining subsidiaries $ 2609 § 2505 § 2399
Other mining operations 47.6 36.8 35.1
308.5 287.3 2750
Li%uidated damages payments recorded by MLMC 20.5 - -
Arbitration award received by San Migue 1.1 -— ---
Royalties and other 3.2 1.9 2.7
S 3333 § 2802 § 2717
Income before taxes
Project mining subsidiaries $ 258 $§ 255 8§ 25.9
Other mining operations 23.9 (1.6) 2.7
Total income from operating mines 49.7 239 28.6
Royalty income and cther income (expense), net 83? §4 % 1.2
Other operating expenses 5.8 7.4 (1.6)
Income before tax provision (benefit) 34.6 12.5 222
Income tax provisicn (‘@eneﬁt) 2.0 (D 4.5
Income before cumulative effect of accounting
change 25.6 12.6 17.7
Cumulative effect of accounting change —_ -— (1.2)
Net income S 256 8§ 126 & 16.5

2001 Compared With 2000

Revenues for 2001 increased to $333.3 million, up 15.2 percent from $289.2 million in 2000. Revenues
increased in 2001 as compared with 2000 ﬁmmarﬂy due to (i) $20.5 million of contractual liguidated damages
payments recorded by MLMC due to a delay of the commercial o%zraﬁon of the customer's power plant, (ii)
mcreased revenues from profect ‘mines, (iii) initial lignite sales at MLMC and (iv) a slight increase in tons sold at
Red River, Net tonnage volume decreased at the project mining subsidiaries due to a customer’s plant outage at
Falkirk and reduced customer requirements at Coteau and Sabine. Although tonnage volume decreased, revenues
frem the project mining subsidiaries increased primarily as a result of an increase in pass through costs at Sabine.

Income before taxes increased to $34.6 million in 2001 from $12.5 million in 2000. This increase is primarily
due to (i) the contractual liquidated damages payments recorded by MLMC, (ii) initial lignite sales at MLMC, and
(iit) increased tonnage volume at Red River. These increases were partially offset b higer interest expense. Net
income in 2001 increased to $25.6 million from $12.6 million in 2000 as a result of these factors, partially offset by
an increase in the 2001 effective tax rate as compared with 2000. See effective tax rate discussion below.

2000 Compared With 1999

Revenues for 2000 increased as compared with 1999 ngimaﬁly due to increased pass-through costs at Coteau
and Sabine and increased tonnage volume at Falkirk and Red River. Income before taxes for 2000 declined as
compared with 1999 primarily due to: (i) increased maintenance, administration and fuel costs at San Miguel, which
is not operated on a cost-plus basis, éii a write-off of $2.4 million in 2000 of Ereviously capitalized development
costs incuired for a power plant and mine development (iject in Turkey which NACoal no longer intends to
pursue, (iii) charges paid to NACCO for services provided by the parent company, which began in 2000, and (iv)
reduced royalty income. The decline in net income in 2000 as compared with 1999 as a result of these factors was
partially offset by (i) a non-recurring cumulative effect of accounting change expense recognized in 1999 for the
write-off of previously capitalized start-up costs and (ii) favorable tax adjustments in 2000 relating to the resclution
of tax issues provided for in prior years.
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Other Income, Expense and Income Taxes

The components of other income (expense) and the effective tax rate are as follows for the year ended
December 31: :

2001 2000 1999
Interest expense

Project mining subsidiaries %116.41% (16.9 (17.6)
Other mining operations 10.0 (.7 -
(26.4) (17.6) (17.6)

Other-net
Project mining subsidiaries 2 A .1
Other mining operations (1.1) (9) 3

(.9) (5) 4
Effective tax rate 26.0% (7% 19.1%

Interest expense from other mining operations increased in 2001 as compared with 2000 and 1999 primarily
due to debt allocated to Red River and MLMC as a result of the October 2000 acquisition of the remaining interests
in those mines. Interest expense on debt allocated to finance MLMC was being capitalized prior to the second
quarter of 2001 as part of the mine development activities. Beginning in the second quarter of 2001 as a result of the
effective completion of the initial mine development phase at MLMC, interest exFense on debt allocated to finance
MLMC is being expensed. Interest expense at the project mines decreased in 2001 and 2000 as compared with 1999
primarily due to a decrease in interest rates.

Other-net from other mining operations includes a charge from the %?rem company of $1.1 million and $1.0
million, in 2001 and 2000, respectively, for fees incurred by NACCO on NACoal's behalf. The effective tax rate
increase in 2001 as compared with 2000 and 1999 is primarily due to a greater proportion of income from operations
not currently eligible to record a permanent tax benefit from percentage depletion. The effective tax rate in 2000
reflects an income tax benefit on pre-tax income }fgrimaﬁly due to both the increased effect of percentage depletion
and a nonrecurring adjustment for the resolution of certain tax issues provided for in prior years.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

NACoal's non-project mine financing needs are provided by a revelving line of credit of up to $60.0 million
and a remaining term loan of $100.0 million (the "NACoal Facility"). The NACoal Facility requires annual term
loan repayments of $15.0 million, with a final term loan repayment of $55.0 million in Cctober 2005. The revolving
credit facility of $60.0 million is available until the facility's expiration in October 2005. The NACoal Facility has
performance-based pricing, which sets interest rates based upon achieving various levels of Debt to EBITDA ratios,
as defined. The NACoal Facility establishes financial targets which must be satisfied before NACoal can make
certain payments and dividends to NACCO or make significant investments. See further discussion of the terms of
the NACoal Facility in Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. NACoal had $29.0 million of its $60.0
million revolving credit facility available at December 31, 2001.

Following is a table which summarizes the contractual obligations of NACoal, excluding the obligations of
the project mining subsidiaries. The financing of the project mining subsidiaries, which is either provided or
guaranteed %; the utility customers, includes long-term equipment leases, notes payable and advances from
customers. The obligations of the project mining subsidiaries do not affect the short-term or long-term liquidity of
NACoal and are without recourse to NACCO or NACoal. As such, these contractual obligations, which are
1c;isicussed in further detail in Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, have been excluded from the table

elow.

NACoal, Excluding Profject Mines, Payments Due by Period
Contractual Obligations Total _ 2002 2003 2004 _ 2005 2006  Thereafter
NACoal Facility $ 13108 1508 150 $ 150 § 8.0 & - § -
Capital lease obligations including

principal and interest 36.6 3.1 3.1 3.1 3.1 3.1 211
Off-balance-sheet operating leases 56.2 8.7 8.7 7.6 7.9 6.8 16.5

Total contractual cash obligations § 2238 $ 268 $§ 268 § 257 § 970 § 99§ 376
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An event of default, as defined in the NACoal Facility agreement and in NACoal's operating and capital lease
agreements, could cause an acceleration of the payment schedule. No such event of default has occurred or is
anticipated to occur.

NACoal believes that funds available under its revolving credit agreement, operating cash flows and
ﬁnangln§ provided by the project mining subsidiaries' customers are sufficient to finance all of its term loan
principal repayments and its operating needs and commitments arising during the foreseeable future.

Following is a table which summarizes actual and planned capital expenditures:

Planned Actual Actual
Capital Expenditures 2002 2001 2000
NACoal, excluding project mining subsidiaries $ 102 § 189 § 39
Project mining subsidiaries 36.5 18.3 153
Total NACoal $ 467 $ 372 $ 192

Increased ca%tal expenditures in 2001 as compared with 2000 primarily relates to continued mine
development at MLMC. Increased planned capital expenditures in 2002 as compared with actual expenditures in
2001 and 2000 at the project mining subsidiaries is primarily due to planned investments in mininé equipment.
Planned expenditures for 2002 at NA%oa]l include $7.2 million for the continued development of MLMC.

NACoal's capital structure, excluding the project mining subsidiaries, is presented below:

December 31

2001 2000

Investment in project mining subsidiaries $ 49 8 3.8
Other net tangible assets 127.6 95.2
Coal supply agreements, net 85.2 86.4

Net assets 217.7 185.4
Advances from NACCO (12.3) 8.4)
Other debt (156.5) (145.8)
Stockholder's equity $ 489 § 31.2
Debt to total capitalization 8% 83%

The increase in net assets of $32.3 million is primarily due to an increase in net property, plant and equipment
related to continued development at MLMC, including the capitalization of a lease covering several large pieces of
ect]uipment at MLMC. The increase in stockholder's equity is due to $25.6 million of net income for 2001 partially
offset by an increase in accumulated other comprehensive loss relating to the adoption of SFAS Neo. 133 and
cslﬂiserll\l s plaggl to NACCO. See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of the adoption of

0. 133.

NACCO MATERIALS HANDLING GROUP

NMHG, through NMHG Wholesale and NMHG Retail, designs, engineers, manugactures, sel&)s, services and
leases a full line of %ift trucks and service parts marketed worldwide under the Hyster™ and Yale™ brand names.
NMHG Retail includes the elimination of intercompany revenues and profits resulting from sales by NMHG
Wholesale to NMHG Retail.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The segment and geographic results of operations for NMHG were as follows for the year ended
December 31:

2001 2000 1999
Revenues
Wholesale
Amnericas 1,031.1  $ 1,291.6 1,149.5
Europe, Africa and Middle East 363.9 394.6 406.3
Asia-Pacific 68.3 63.8 63.1
1,463.3 1,750.0 1,618.9
Retail (net of eliminations)
Americas 30.9 33.1 32.1
Ewrope, Africa and Middle East 106.8 97.3 83.0
Asia-Pacific 714 51.7 274
209.1 182.1 142.5
NMHG Consolidated 16724 § 1932.1 1,761.4
Operating profit (loss)
Wholesale
Americas 5. 4
Europe, Africa and Middle East 2. 4
Asia-Pacific 2. 3
5.9 S
Retail (net of eliminations)
Americas {2.4) (.9) 3.9
Europe, Africa and Middle East (34.8) (15.3) (10.6
Asia-Pacific (2.2) .9 (1.7
(3%.4) (15.3) (16.2)
NMHG Consolidated S (381 $ 08 $ 58.3
Operating profit (loss) excluding
goodwill amortization
Wholesale
Ammericas $ 246 $ 93.8 b 78.2
Europe, Africa and Middle East (10.4) 5.7 11.0
Asia-Pacific : (1.5) (20) (3.1)
12.7 97.5 86.1
Retail (net of eliminations)
Americas (2.1) (.8) (3.6;
Europe, Africa and Middle East (34.4) (14.7) (103
Asia-Pacific (1.4) 1.2 (1.7)
37.9) {14.3) (15.6)
NMHG Censolidated . $ (25.2) $ 83.2 3 70.5
Interest expense
Wholesale $ (129) $§ (134) § (16.9
Retail (net of eliminations) (10.2) (1.8 (21
S 23.1) $§ (212) $ (19.0)
Other-net
Wholesale $ 28 $ (120 $ 4.8
Retail (net of eliminations) 4 2 _(3.0)
S 22 §$ (118 % 1.8
Net income (loss)
Wholesale S (14.1) § 37.0 $ 39.0
Retail (net of eliminations) (35.3) (15.7) (15.3)
S (4.4 $ 21.3 3 23.7
Effective tax rate
Wholesale 4.2% 40.7% 39.1%
Retail (including eliminations) 283% 31.4% 28.2%
NMHG Consolidated 22.9% 46.3% 44.8%

Interest expense increased in 2001, as compared with 2000 and 1999, primarily due to an increase in the
average borrowings outstanding.
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Other-net for NMHG Whelesale includes charges from NACCO, equity in earnings of unconsolidated
affiliates and discounts on the sale of accounts receivable. Other-net for G Wholesale includes $6.8 million
($4.4 million after-tax) and $6.6 million ($4.3 million after-tax), in 2001 and 2000, respectively, of charges from
NACCO for services incurred on NMHG's behalf. Equity in the earnings (loss) of unconsolidated affiliates,
mncluding Sumitomo-NACCO Materials Handling Group ("S-N"), a 56 percent-owned joint venture with Sumitomo
Heavy Industries, Ltd. in Japan, were $2.6 million in 2001, §$0.2) million in 2006 and $2.3 million in 1999.
Discounts on the sale of receivables included in other-net were $4.7 million in 2001, $5.5 million in 2000 and $3.8
million in 1999. In 2001, other-net includes non-recurring insurance proceeds of $8.0 million relating to flood
damage in September 2000 at S-N. In 1999, other-net for NﬁdHG Wholesale included non-recurring income of $0.9
million for settlements from legal proceedings.

_The effective tax rate in 2001 is not comparable to 2000 and 1999 due to the effect of nondeductible goodwill
amortization, an increase in the valuation allowance provided for certain deferred tax assets and state income taxes.

NMHG WHOLESALE
- 2001 Compared With 2000

Revenues decreased 16.4 percent to $1,463.3 million in 2001 from $1,750.0 million in 2000. A steep drop in
the lift truck segment of the broader capital goods market in North America resulted in an 18.7 percent reduction in
worldwide lift truck shipments at G Wholesale. A total of 68,929 units were shipped in 2001 compared with
84,825 units shipped 2000. The rate of monthly retail orders in the U.S. and Canada declined approximately 50
percent from the peak month in 2000 as compared with the lowest month in 2001. NMHG Wholesale's revenues
also declined due to lower parts sales resulting from reduced lift truck utilization which is typical in this stage of a
capital goods recession. The decrease in revenues, which was primarily driven by unit volume, was partially offset
by a shift in mix to higher-priced lift trucks. :

Operating profit decreased to $1.3 million for 2001 from $85.9 million for 2000. The decrease in operating
profit was largely due to reduced unit and parts volume and resulting reductions in the absorption of manufacturing
overhead costs and related manufacturing inefficiencies. Additionally, operating profit was adversely affected by
$12.0 million of expenses incurred during 2001 related to the Danville plant closure announced in 2000 and a
restructuring charge of $4.5 million recognized in 2001 for cost reductions 1n Europe. These 2001 charges compare
with a restructuring charge of $13.9 million recognized in 2000 for the Danville plant closure. See below for a
further discussion of these restructuring charges. The decline in operating profit was offset somewhat by favorable
foreign currency effects, lower incentive compensation costs and an increase in the average sales price per unit.

NMHG Wholesale recorded a net loss for 2001 of $14.1 million as compared with net income of $37.0
million for 2000. The decline in net operating results is due to the factors affecting operating profit, the effect of
nondeductible goodwill amortization and an increase in the valuation allowance on the tax provision and due to a
$1.3 million after-tax charge for the cumulative effect of accounting changes in 2001. See Note 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of these accounting changes. The decline in operating results for
2001 as compared with 2000 was offset somewhat by insurance proceeds resulting in income of $5.0 million after-
tax recognized in 2001 relating to flocd damage in September 2000 at a facility owned by S-N.

The worldwide backlog level decreased to 15,100 units at December 31, 2001 from 21,800 units at
December 31, 2000 primarily due to decreased demand for lift trucks in the Americas. The backlog level at
December 31, 2001 has increased slightly as compared to the level at September 30, 2001 of 14,400 units primarily
due to an increase in lift truck demand in the Americas and Asia-Pacific.

Restructuring Plans

In 2001, management committed to the restructuring of certain operations in Europe. As such, NMHG
Wholesale recognized a restructuring charge of approximately $4.5 million pre-tax for severance and other
employee benefits to be paid to approximate% 285 manufacturing and administrative personnel in Europe. As of
December 31, 2001, $1.3 million has been paid to approximately 150 employees.

The Company estimates that additional pre-tax costs of $0.2 million will be recognized during 2002 for the-
NMHG Wholesale European restructuring plan for costs not eligible to be accrued as of December 31, 2001.
Furthermore, as a result of the reduced headcount in ]Euro?e, N?R}JIHG Wholesale estimates annual pre-tax cost
savings beginning in 2002 of $8.1 million. These estimates of future costs and benefits are subject to change during
the execution of the restructuring plans.

In 2000, the Board of Directors approved management's plan to transfer manufacturing activities from
NMHG's Danville, Illinois, assembly plant to its other global manufacturing plants. The adoption of this plan
resulted in $11.7 million of costs accrued in 2000, relating to retirement costs, medical costs and employee
severance to be paid to approximately 425 manufacturing and office personnel. In addition, an impairment charge of
$2.2 million was recognized in 2008, as a result of the anticipated disposition of certain assets at an amount below
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net book value. During 2001, payments for severance and other benefits of $1.7 million were made to
approximately 350 employees. In addition, the accrual for severance was reduced by $0.4 million. Approximately
$12.0 million of pre-tax costs asscciated with the Danville phase-out, which were not eligible for accrual as of
December 31, 2000, were expensed during 2001.

~ The Company estimates that additional pre-tax costs of $2.5 million will be recognized during 2002 related
Enmarlly to idle facility costs for the manufacturing plant in Danville. These additional estimated costs have not
een accrued as of December 31, 2001. Consistent with its communications in 2001, the Company expects to

complete implementation of the phase-out plan in 2002. Annual pre-tax cost savings are estimated to be $10.1
million in 2002 and $12.5 millicn thereafter, as a result of anticipated improved manufacturing efficiencies
depending on unit volume. These estimates could change during the phase-out period. See also discussion in Note 3
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

2000 Compared With 1999

Revenues increased to $1,750.0 million in 2000 from $1,618.9 million in 1999. Revenues increased as a
result of unit and service parts volume growth, primarily in the Americas, and a shift in mix to higher revenue units,
partially offset by adverse currency egiacts. orldwide volume increased 11.5 percent to 84,825 units shipped
during 2000 from 76,055 units shipped during 1999. Adverse currency effects on revenues resulted primarily from
(i) translating a weakened British pound sterling into U.S. dollars and (ii) transactions denominated in a weakened
euro as compared with the British found sterling, which causes revenues that are invoiced in euros to decline when
translated back to the British pound sterling.

Operating profit of $99.8 million, which excludes the Danville restructurin% charge of $13.9 million discussed
above, as a percentage of revenues was 5.7 percent in 2000. This percentage in 2000 compares with operating profit
as a percentage of revenues in 1999 of 4.6 percent. Improved operating profit in 2000 as compared with 1999 is
primarily due to (i) velume growth and related manufacturing efficiencies and (ii) a shift in the mix of products sold
to higher margin units, partially offset by adverse currency effects in Europe. Including the restructuring charge,
operating profit as a percentage of revenues was 4.9 percent in 2000.

Excluding the restructuring charge, net income increased as a result of the factors affecting operating profit.
However, the increase was partially offset by an increase in other income (expense), net, which includes a $4.3
million after-tax charge from NACCQO for services provided by the parent company and a decrease in equity in
earnings of unconsolidated affiliates of $2.5 million, primarily due to losses for flood damages at a facility owned by

NMHG RETAIL
2001 Compared With 2000

Revenues increased 14.8 percent to $209.1 million for 2001 from $182.1 million for 2000 largely as a result
of the effect of a full year of revenues in 2001 from dealerships acquired in Asia-Pacific in the fourth quarter of
200&). This revenue growth was partially offset by lower parts and service revenues and unfavorable pricing and
product mix.

Operating loss in 2001 was $39.4 million compared with an operating loss of $15.3 million in 2000. The
increase in operating loss was primarily due to several non-recurring special adjustments in 2001. The majority of
these special adjustments were recognized in ]EuroFe, which accounted for a significant Yortion of NMHG Retail's
2001 operating loss. The 2001 operating loss includes a charge of $10.4 million for a loss on the sale of certain
wholly cwned dealers and related wind-down costs. See also Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a
discussion of this transaction. The 2001 operating loss also includes a $4.7 million restructuring charge for
downsizing to match current levels of demand at retail operations in Europe that NMHG Retail had acquired over
the last few years. In addition, the 2001 operating loss includes charges of approximately $7.1 million to reduce
asset values and increase reserves reflective of the weakened capital goods markets, establish full accountin
consistency among retail operations on a global basis and to cause those dealers previously reporting on a one-mont
lag to report on months consistent with the rest of NMHG.

Net loss was $35.3 million for 2001 compared with $15.7 million for 2000, primarily due to the factors
affecting operating loss combined with an increase in interest expense allocated to G Retail.
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Restructuring Plan

In 2001, as E{eviously discussed, management committed to the restructuring of certain operations in ]Euroge.
As such, NMHG Retail recognized a restructuring charge of approximately $4.7 million pre-tax, of which $0.4
million relates to lease termination costs and $4.3 million relates to severance and other employee benefits to be paid
to apFroximately 140 service technicians, salesmen and administrative personnel at wholly owned dealers in Europe.
As of December 31, 2001, $0.4 million has been paid to approximately 40 employees.

The Company estimates that additicnal pre-tax costs of $0.3 million will be recognized during 2002 for the
NMHG Retail European resm'ucunin% for costs not eligible to be accrued as of December 31, 2001. As a result
of the reduced headcount in Europe, G Retail estimates annual pre-tax cost savings beginning in 2002 of $3.3
million. This estimate could change during the execution of the restructuring plan.

2000 Compared With 1999

Revenues increased $39.6 million, or 27.8 percent, due to acquisitions of retail dealerships in Asia-Pacific
and, to a lesser degree, Europe. Revenues from volume growth at comparable dealerships aiso contributed slightly
to the increase in revenues but were entirely offset by adverse currency effects in Europe and an increase in the
elimination of intercompany shipments from NMHG Wholesale to NMH%,G Retail. Cperating results for 2000 in the
Americas improved as compared with the prior year primarily due to a decrease in administrative support costs.
Operating results for 2000 in Asia-Pacific improved as compared with the prior year primarily due to favorable
operating results contributed by current year acquisitions. Increased net loss was driven by increased losses in

urope, primarily due to increased pricing competition as a result of a weak eurc and due to continued integration,
infrastructure, interest, amortization and administrative costs necessary to build the Retail segment.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

NMHG Wholesale has a $350.0 million revolving credit facility (the "Facility") that expires June 2002. The
Facility has performance-based pricing which sets interest rates based upon the achievement of certain financial
erformance targets. The Facility permits NMHG Wholesale to advance funds to NMHG Retail. Advances from
&MHG Wholesale are the primary sources of financing for NMHG Retail. At December 31, 2001, NMHG had
available $85.0 million of its $350.0 million revolving credit facility.

NMHG also has separate credit facilities totaling $76.3 million, of which $34.3 million was available at
December 31, 2001 and maintains additional uncommutted lines of credit totaling $30.0 million, which was all
availabie at December 31, 2001.

Although NMHG's primary financing facility expires in June 2002, NMHG anticipates that a new credit
facility will be obtained in or before June 2002. While there can be no assurances as to the specific terms of the
refinancing, including the nature of the covenants and restrictions, NMHG expects that interest rates under the new
facility will be higher based on its evaluation of the generally higher interest rate spreads charged today versus
interest rate spreads in effect when NMHG Wholesale's Facility was structured in 1995. NMHG Wholesale has
assumed that the outstanding balance under the Facility at the time of refinancing will be financed with a
combination of short-term and long-term financing. However, in accordance with accounting principles generally
acce{pted in the U.S., the outstanding balance under the Facility will be classified as a current liability until the
Fa‘fli' ity is refinanced. The amount cutstanding that is classified as a current liability at December 31, 2001 is $265.0
million.

~ With the expectation of the refinancing of the NMHG Facility prior to its expiration in June 2002, NMHG
believes that funds available under its credit facilities and operating cash flows are sufficient to finance all of its
operating needs and commitments arising during the foreseeable future.

NMHG Wholesale's accounts receivable securitization program (the "Program") to sell domestic accounts
receivable was terminated on December 5, 2001. As a result, G Wholesale is relying on the Facility to finance
accounts receivable that otherwise would have been sold under the Program prior to December 5, 2001. Additional
borrowings from the Facility of $33.4 million were used to finance the outstanding balance of accounts receivable
sold pursuant to the Program on December 5, 2001. As a result of the termination of the Program, an increase in
interest expense arising from increased outstanding borrowings is expected to be offset by a decrease in the cost of
the Program, which is classified in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Other Comprehensive Income
(Loss) as other-net. NMHG Wholesale continues to sell certain of its European accounts receivable under a separate
program. The amount of receivables sold at December 31, 2001 under this European program was $27.7 million.
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Following is a table which summarizes the contractual obligations of NMHG:

Payments Due by Period
Contractual Obligations Total 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006  Thereafter
NMHG Facility!”® $ 2650 $ 2650 § - 8 - $
Other lines of credit® 36.2 36.2 - - -

Term loans™ 16.0 13.0 1.4 1.6
Capital lease obligations including
principal and interest® 40.7 12.5 12.7 7.3 4.6 2.5

Off-balance-sheet operz%gng
lease obligations 141.6 404 32.1 26.0 19.0 133 10.8
Unconditional purchase obligations 4.3 4 8 .6 9 2 1.4
Total contractual cash obligations $ 503.8 $ 3675 $ 470 $ 355 $§ 245 § 160 $ 13.3

(M As noted above, the NMHG Facility expires in June 2002 and is anticipated to be refinanced prior to its expiration.

@ An event of default, as defined in the NMHG Facility agreement, in NMHG's term loan agreements and in NMHG's operating and capital
lease agreements, could cause an acceleration of the payment schedule. No such event of default has occurred or is anticipated to occur.

In addition, NMHG has the following commitments at December 31, 2001:

Total
Standby recourse or repurchase obligations 8 150.5
Guarantees 7.5
Total commercial commitments $ 158.0

Guarantees and standby recourse or repurchase obligations primarily represent guarantees of residual values
or recourse obligations to repurchase lift trucﬁs subject to certain terms and conditions under financing agreements
made between NMHG's customers and financing companies in conjunction with the customer's financing of lift
trucks purchased from NMHG. For these transactions, G generally retains a security interest in the hift truck,
such that NMHG would take possession of the lift truck in the event that NMHG would become liable under the
terms of the guarantees or standby recourse or repurchase obligations. Generally, these commitments are due upon
demand in the event of default by the customer. The amount of the standby recourse or repurchase obligations
increase and decrease over time as obligations under existing arrangements expire and new ob%igatioms arise in the
ordinary course of business. Losses anticipated under the terms of the guarantees or standby recourse or repurchase
obligations are not significant and have been reserved for in the Consohidated Financial Statements.

NMHG Wholesale anticipates spending approximately $30.4 million for property, plant and equipment in

2002, compared with capital expenditures ofg $1-%36 million in 2001 and $43.3 million in 2000. G Retail

anticipates spending approximately $3.3 million for property, glant and equipment in 2002, compared with cai)ital

expenditures of $6.9 million in 2001 and $8.5 millicn in 2000. NMHG's ?]lanned expenditures in 2002 include

investments in manufacturing equipment, tooling for new products and retail lease and rental fleet. The gminci al

gources_ of financing for these capital expenditures are expected to be internally generated funds and facility
CITOWINgS.
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NMHG Wholesale's capital structure is presented below:

December 31
2001 20000
NMHEG Wholesale:

Total net tangible assets $ 375.2 $ 283.2
Advances 10 G Retail 70.2 103.8
Advances to NACCO -— 30
Goodwill at cost 446.0 446.1

Net assets before goodwill amortization 891.4 836.1
Accumulated goodwill amortization (1414 (129.6)
Advances from NACCO (8.0 -—
Other debt (300.9 (254.6;
Minority interest (2.3 (3.1
Stockholder's equity $ 4388 § 448.8
Debt to total capitalization 41% 36%

) Certain amounts presented for December 31, 2000 have been reclassified to conform to the current period's presentation.

The increase in total net tangible assets of $92.0 million is primarily due to a $79.0 million capital
contribution to NMHG Retail in 2001, which increased NMHG Wholesale's investment in NMHG Retail. In
addition, the increase is due to an increase in cash and cash equivalents of $37.2 million due to the timing of
customer receipts at year-end versus vendor and debt payments after year-end.

Debt increased primarily to support increases in total net tangible assets. Stockholder's equity decreased as a
result of a $14.1 million net loss combined with a minimum pension liability adjustment required in 2001 which
reduced equity, adverse currency movements recognized in the accumulated foreign currency translation adjustment,
dividends paid tc NACCO and an increase in accumulated other comprehensive loss relating to the adoption of
SFAS No. 133, partially offset by an increase in capital in excess of par value. See Note 2 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for a discussion of the adoption of SFAS No. 133. :

NMHG Retail's capital structure is presented below:

December 31

2001 2000
NMHG Retail: \

Total net tangible assets $ 1095  § 133.0
Advances from NMHG Wholesale (70.2) (103.8)
Goodwill at cost 45.2 442

Net assets before goodwill amortization 84.5 734
Accumulated goodwill amortization 5.6% (4.6;
Total debt (53.5 (50.3
Stockholder's equity S 254  § 18.5
Debt to total capitalization 68% 3%

) Certain amounts presented for December 31, 2000 have been reclassified to conform to the current period's presentation.

The decrease in total net tangible assets of $23.5 million is {)rimarily due to a decrease in accounts receivable
of $18.1 million due to both a decrease in the number of days' sales cutstanding and a decrease in sales volume in
December 2001 as compared with December 2000. The decrease in total net tangible assets is also attributable to an
increase in accruals of $4.3 million relating to the restructuring charge recorded in 2001.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

NMHG has a 20 percent ownership interest in NMHG Financial Services, Inc. ("NFS"), a joint venture with
GE Capital Corporation, formed primarily for the purpose of providing financial services to independent and whelly
owned Hyster and Yale lift truck dealers in the United States. NMHG's ownership percentage in NFS is accounted
for using the equity method of accounting.

Generally, NMHG sells lift trucks directly to its customer and that customer may enter into a financing
transaction with NFS or another unrelated party. However, for certain customer transactions, NMHG sells directly
to NFES so that the customer can obtain operating lease financing from NFS. Sales to NFS related to these types of
transactions for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $137.5 million, $166.6 million and $8.5
million, respectively. Amounts receivable from NFS at December 31, 2001 and 2000 were immaterial. Alsc, from
time to time, NMHG provides recourse or repurchase obligations or guarantees the residual values of the lift trucks
gurchased by customers and financed through NEFS. See further discussion in Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial

tatements. At December 31, 2001, approximately $127.1 million of the Company's total guarantees, recourse or
repurchase obligations related to transactions with NFS. For these transactions, G generally retains a security
interest in the lift truck, such that NMHG would take possession of the lift truck in the event that NMHG would
become liable under the terms of the guarantees or standby recourse or repurchase obligations.

In addition to providing financing to NMHG's independent dealers, NFS provides both lease and debt
financing to NMHG. Operating lease obligations relate to specific sale-leaseback-sublease transactions for certain
NMHG customers whereby NMHG sells lift trucks to NFS, G leases these 1ift trucks back under an operating
lease agreement and G subleases those lift trucks to customers under an operating lease agreement. Debt
financing includes long-term notes payable to NFS primarily to finance certain of G's long-term notes
receivable from Latin American customers which arise in the ordinary course of business. In addition, NFS
provides, on NMHG's behalf, installment billings to the Latin American customers, account balance tracking and an
inventory management system to track the equipment covered by the notes. Total obligations to NFS under the
operating %ease agreements and notes payable were $13.7 million and $14.7 million at December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

In addition, NMHG is reimbursed for certain services, Erimarﬂ administrative functions, provided to NES.
The amount of NMHG's expenses reimbursed by NFS were $1.8 miflion, $1.5 million and $1.1 million in 2001,
2000 and 1999, respectively.

NMHG has a 50 percent ownership interest in S-N, a joint venture with Sumitomo Heavy Industries, Inc.,
formed primarily for the manufacture and distribution of Sumitomeo-Yale branded lift trucks in Japan and the export
of Hyster and Yale branded lift trucks and related components and service parts outside of Japan. G's
ownership in S-N is accounted for using the qugity methed of accounting. NMHG purchases procucts from S-N
under normal trade terms. In 2001, 2000 and 1999, purchases from S-N were $63.7 million, $90.5 million and $91.2
million, respectively. Amounts payable to S-N at December 31, 2001 and 2000 were $16.1million and $23.6
million, respectively.

NACCQO HOUSEWARES GROUP

The Housewares segment of the Company includes HB<PS, a leading manufacturer and marketer of small
electric motor and heat-driven appliances as well as commercial products for restaurants, bars and hotels, and KCI, a
. national specialty retailer of brand-name kitchenware, small electrical appliances and related accessories. Because
the housewares business is seascnal, a majority of revenues and operating profit occurs in the second half of the year
when sales of small electric appliances to retailers and consumers increase significantly for the fall holiday selling
season. :

FINANCIAL REVIEW
The results of operations for Housewares were as follows for the year ended December 31:
2001 2000 1999

Revenues $ 632.1 § 6499 $ 5967
Operating profit ?OS% $ @4 $§ 274 $§ 418
Operatinﬁ profit (loss) excluding

goodwill amortization $ F% $ 305 $ 448
Interest expense $ 7. $ (8.6) $ (67
Other-net $ ¢ S Q8 $ (4
Net income (loss) $ (122) § 8.8 $ 212
Effective tax rate 24.7% 45.7% 38.9%
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2001 Compared With 2000

Housewares' revenues decreased to $632.1 million in 2001, down 2.7 percent from $649.9 million in 2000.
Revenues declined primarily due to reduced unit volume and sale mix at HB*PS, primarily driven by the weak retail
environment in 2001 and reduced sales of opening-price-point preducts. Decreased unit pricing primarily resulting
from increased competition also caused revenues to decline as compared with the prior year. The decline in
Housewares' revenues was Eartially offset by increased sales of General Electric-brandeg products to Wal¥rMart and
the introduction of TrueAir™ home odor eliminators at HB¢PS, arid increased revenues at KCI primarily driven by
an increase in the number of stores (168 at December 31, 2001 compared with 157 at December 31, 2600).

Housewares recorded an operating loss of $8.4 million in 2001 compared with operating profit of $27.4
million in 2000. The decline in operating profit resulted primarily from restructuring charges, described below, of
$13.3 million recognized in 2001 and a $4.0 million charge in 2001 for the write-off of receivables from customers
that filed voluntary petitions for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code. Excluding
these items, operating results decreased as a result of (i) a decrease in the average sales price, (ii) increased
advertising costs incurred to support the TrueAir product introduction, (iii? a shift in mix to lower-margin units and
(iv) unfavorable manufacturing overhead costs, partially offset by favorable material costs at HBoPS and improved
operating profit at KCL

The decline in the effective tax rate is primarily due to the effect of non-deductible goodwill amortization on
the pre-tax loss.

Net loss was $12.2 million for 2001 as compared with net income of $8.8 million for 2000 primarily due to
the factors affecting operating profit.

On January 22, 2002, one of HB<PS' largest customers, a major retail chain, filed a voluntary petition for
reorganization under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code, which allows this customer to reorganize
and seek protection from 1ts creditors. As a result, HB*PS recognized a charge of $3.7 million related to receivables
due from this customer as of December 31, 2001. HB®PS believes that the remaining receivable balance at
December 31, 2001 due from this customer is collectible, however, collection may take more than one year. The
customer has targeted emergence from Chapter 11 in 2003. In 2001 and 2000, sales to this customer were
approximately $45.8 mullion and $60.1 million, respectively, and represented 7.2 percent and 9.2 percent,
respectively, of Housewares revenues. HBoPS expects to continue to ship preducts to this customer. However,
HB<PS anticipates that revenues from this customer could decline between 10 and 20 percent as compared with
2001, depending upon the customer's decisions regarding the number of retail store closings and the level of
promotions of HB¢PS' products.

Restructuring Plans

In 2001, the Board of Directors approved management's plan to restructure HBoPS' manufacturing activities
in Mexico. This restructuring plan incFudes outsourcing of certain of the company's products and consoh'dating
production of three of the company's Mexican manufacturing plants into one plant. As a result of this plan, HB¢P
recognized a charge of $12.5 million of which $5.0 million relates to the impairment of fixed assets, $3.3 million
relates to equipment and building lease impairment and clean-up costs, $2.9 million relates to severance benefits to
be paid to approximately 925 manufacturing personnel, $0.6 million relates to the impairment of inventory and $0.7
million is fgr other related costs. The estimated cash outflows required for this IP an are expected to be almost
entirely offset by cash inflows from the anticipated sale of fixed assets and tax benefits associated with the plan. As
of December 31, 2001, no severance payments had been made. Future expenses, which are not eligible for accrual at
December 31, 2001, are estimated to be $0.7 million pre-tax in 2002. Annual pre-tax cost savings are estimated to
be $10.3 million beginning in 2002.

In the fourth quarter of 2001, HB<PS recognized a charge of $0.8 million relating to severance benefits to be
paid to personnel in all functional areas located at the company's headquarters. This restructuring plan was initiated
primarily as a cost-cutting measure in response to reduced overall consumer demand caused by the 2001 U.S.
economic slowdown. Headcount was reduced by 36, or approximately 10 percent of the total corporate personnel.
As of December 31, 2001, payments of $0.3 million have been made. Payments in respect to the remainder of the
charge, or $0.5 million, are expected to be made during the first half of 2002. The full benefit from this restructuring
is estimated to be $2.7 million pre-tax beginning in 20%2.

2000 Compared With 1999

Housewares' revenues improved in 2000 primarily due to unit volume growth at HB¢PS. Unit volume at
HB<PS increased 9.9 percent to 43.3 million units sold in 2000 from 39.4 million units sold in 1999, primarily due
to increased demand for contact grills, slow cookers and irons, and from initial shipments of GE-branded products to
WalstMart, which began in August 2000. Revenues also increased at KCI 1:Il)rlmarily due to an increase in the
number of stores. KCI operated 157 stores at December 31, 2000 compared with 150 stores at December 31, 1999.
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Housewares' gross profit declined to 18.4 percent of revenues in 2000 from 21.6 percent of revenues in 1999.
This decline in gross profit is primarily due to decreased sales prices and increased manufacturing costs. The
decline in the average sales price in 2000 as compared with 1999 was primarily due to intense competition.
Increased manufacturing costs were driven by (i) increased materials costs, especially for petroleum-based resins
and packaging materials, (ii) increased transportation costs driven by rising fuel costs and (iii) increased
warehousing costs due to start-up inefficiencies at the new consolidated distribution center in Memphis. Increased
manufacturing costs were partially offset by favorable Mexican pesc exchange rates.

Housewares' operating profit declined to 4.2 percent of revenues in 2000 from 7.0 percent of revenues in
1999. Operating profit declined due to the 3.2 percentage point decline in gross iroﬁt discussed above and due to an
increase in administration costs at KCI, partially offset by a decline in direct marketing costs at HBoPS.

Net income declined as a result of these factors combined with an increase in other income (expense), net,
which increased primarily due to a $1.6 million after-tax charge from NACCO.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

HB<PS' credit agreement provides for a revolving credit facility (the "HB<PS Facility") that: (i) provides
financing up to $160.0 millicn, (iS is secured by substantially all of HBoPS' assets, (ii1) provides lower interest rates
if HB*PS achieves certain interest coverage ratios, (ivﬁ%l{ows for interest rates quoted under a competitive bid
option and (v) allows advances up to $10.0 million from HB¢PS to KCL ,

In December 2001, the HBoPS Facility was amended to modify the covenant requirements and redefine
covenant calculations so that the recognition of the restructuring charges in the fourth quarter of 2001 did not cause
a violation of covenants under the HB*PS Facility. In addition to the change in the covenant requirements and
calculations, the applicable margin added to the base rate of interest increased and the facility fee on the available
berrowings increased. Prior to the amendment, for the year ended December 31, 2001, the HB<PS Facility provided
for an interest rate of LIBOR plus 0.4375 percent and a facility fee of 0.3125 ﬁercem. After the amendment,
effective January 1, 2002, the HB<PS Facility provides for an interest rate of LIBOR plus 2.25 percent and a facility
fee of 0.5 percent. Interest rates and facility fees, however, are subject to change based on the level of EBITDA to
interest expense ratio, as defined, HBoPS achieves each quarter.

At December 31, 2001, HB°PS had $60.2 million available under this facility, which expires in May 2003.
In addition, HB°PS has separate uncommitted facilities that permitted $30.0 mullion of additional borrowings, of
which $25.0 million was available at December 31, 2001. Subsequent to December 31, 2001, one of oPS’
lenders reduced the availability under these uncommitted facilities by $15.0 million in the normal course of
business. Housewares believes that funds available under its credit facilities and operating cash flows are sufficient
to finance all of its operating needs and commitments arising during the foreseeable future.

Following is a table which summarizes the contractual obligations of Housewares:

: Payments Due by Period

Contractual Cbligations Total _ _ 2002 2003 2004 _ 2005 2006  Thereafter
HB©PS Facility and uncommitted

facilities balance outstanding $ 1035 § 50 $§ 985 § - § - 3 -3 -
Capital lease obligations including

principal and interest v g .1 A A 3 -—
Off-balance-sheet operating leases 68.7 15.6 12.5 10.6 7.7 6.2 16.1
Unconditional purchase cobligations 7 7 — - - - -

Total contractual cash obligations § 1736 § 214 § 1111 § 107 § 78 $§ 65§ 16.1

Note that, contractually, all amounts outstanding under the HBoPS Facility are due in 2003 and have been
reflected as such in the above table. However, the Company has classified a portion of this facility, $18.5 million, as
a current obligation since that is the amount expected to be repaid in 2002. An event of default, as defined in the
HB<PS Facility agreement and in Housewares' operating and capital lease agreements, could cause an acceleration
of the payment schedule. No such event of default has occurred or is anticipated to occur.

Housewares anticipates spending a{a roximately $17.1 million for property, plant and equipment in 2002,
compared with caé)ital expenditures of $ 34 million in 2001 and $22.0 million in 2000. Spending for capital
expenditures was down in 2001 as compared with actual spending in 2000 and planned spending in 2002 primarily
due to a delay in or elimination of certain projects. P&nned expenditures for 2002 include enhancements to
informaticn systems, additional development of the GE-branded products and tooling for new products and
machinery and equipment, which are intended to reduce manufacturing costs and increase manufacturing efficiency.
These expenditures are expected to be funded from internally generated funds and bank borrowings.
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Housewares' capital structure is presented below:

December 31
2001 2000

Total net tangible assets $ 1687  $ 195.1
Goodwill at cost 123.5 123.5

Net assets before goodwill amertization 2922 318.6
Accumulated goodwill amortization (39.8 (36.7)
Advances from NACCO 3.0 -
Other debt (103.8 (111.0)
Stockholder's equity $ 1456 8§ 170.9
Debt to total capitalization 42% 39%

Total net tangible assets decreased $26.4 million primarily due to a $13.0 million decrease in assets/increase
in liabilities resulting from the restructuring programs, a $9.0 million decrease in accounts receivable, of which $3.7
million is due to the write-off of customer receivables at year-end December 31, 2001, and a $7.7 million decrease in
inventory. Inventory has decreased primarily due to anticipated decreases in consumer demand.

The decline in stockholder's equity at December 31, 2001 compared with December 31, 2000 is due to the
$12.2 million net loss, an increase in accumulated other comprehensive loss relating to the adoption of SFAS No.
133 and dividends paid to NACCO. See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of the
adoption of SFAS No. 133. -

NACCO AND OTHER
FINANCIAL REVIEW

NACCO and Cther includes the }];)Jarent company operations and Bellaire Corporation ("Bellaire"), a non-
operating subsidiary of NACCO. Although Bellaire's o%erations are immaterial, it has significant long-term
liabilities related to closed mines, primarily from former Eastern U.S. underground coal mining activities. On
average, annual after-tax cash outflows related to Bellaire's obligations are approximately $2.5 million.

The results of operations at NACCOQ and Other were as follows for the year ended December 31:

2001 2000 1999
%;venues 1 3 (9'117) 3 a17) s 52
erating loss . . .
Other income (expense), net $ 23 $ 44 % §3.2;
Extraordinary gain, net-of-tax $ - 3 299 § -
Net income (loss) $ -  $ 250 % 8.3)

In 2000, NACCO & Other includes an extraordinary gain of $29.9 million, net of $16.1 million in taxes,
related to an estimated decrease in Bellaire's obligation to UMWA. This obligation was initially recognized by
Bellaire as an extraordinary charge in 1992 to accrue for the estimated costs associated with the Coal Act. See
additional discussion in Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The decrease to the Company's estimate
of the UMW A obligation in 2000 was made, in part, because of a U.S. District Court's ruling that was upheld by the
U.S. Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit in 2000 which invalidated the Social Security Administration’s ("SSA™)
assignment of certain retired coal miners to Bellaire. This ruling reduced the Company's estimate of the total
beneficiaries assigned to Bellaire as part of the Coal Act. Subsequent to December 31, 2001, the Company learned
that the U.S. Supreme Court has decided to review circuit court rulings whose decisions in this matter were in
conflict. The U.S Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit ruled that the SSA assignments were invalid; while the U.S
Court of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit ruled that the SSA assignments were valid. If the U.S. Supreme Court
decides that the SSA assignments are valid, the Company would need to revise its estimate of its obligation under

1tbhe: Coal _Aict which may result in an unfaverable adjustment to the Consolidated Financial Statement, which could
€ material.

In addition, subsequent to December 31, 2001, the Company learned that the U.S. Supreme Court ruled that
the SSA's assignment of certain retired coal miners to companies defined as "successors in interest tc a signatory
operater no longer in business” was not permitted under the Coal Act. This decision is expected to result in a
favorable impact to the Company due to an anticipated credit for payments made to UMWA for certain beneficiaries
who were assigned to Bellaire inappropriately and due to an anticipated reduction in Bellaire's future obligation to
UMWA as a result of a decrease in the number of beneficiaries assigned tc Bellaire. The Company has not yet
determined the favorable impact of this decision, which is expected to be recognized in 2602.
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Also in 2000, Bellaire reco%nized a $5.6 million increase to its closed mine reserves, with a corresponding

decrease in other income (expense), net, related primarily to Black Lung and other retiree medical benefits, and to
environmental obligations arising from former Eastern U.S. underground mining operations. See additional
discussion in Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In 2000, the parent company began charfing fees for services provided to the operating subsidiaries. These
fees, which totaled $10.5 million and $10.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively,
are included in other income (expense), net.

In 1999, other income (expense), net includes a charge of $2.9 million for the write-off of costs related to a
potential business acquisition.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Although NACCQ's subsidiaries have entered into substantial borrowing agreements, NACCO has not
guaranteed the long-term debt or any borrowings of its subsidiaries.

The borrowing agreements at NACoal, NMHG and Housewares allow for the payment to NACCO of
dividends and advances under certain circumstances. Dividends, advances and management fees from its
subsidiaries are the primary sources of cash for NACCO.

The ComﬁanyA believes that funds available under credit facilities, anticipated funds generated from
operations and the utility customers' funding of the project mining subsidiaries are sufficient to finance all of its
scheduled principal repayments, operating needs and commitments arising during the foreseeable future.

NACCO's consolidated capital structure is presented below:

December 31
2001 2000

Total net tangible assets $ 676.2 $ 688.1
Coal supfly agreements, net 85.2 86.4
Goodwil! at cost 614.7 613.8

Net assets before goodwill amortization 1,376.1 1,388.3
Accumulated goodwill amortization (186.8) (170.9)
Total debt, excluding current and long-term portion of

obligations of project mining subsidiaries (614.7) 561.7)
Closed mine obligations (Bellaire), including

UMWA, net-of-tax (41]1.9% (45. 1%
Minerity interest (3.4 4.2
Stockholders' equity $ 529.3 $ 606.4
Debt to total capitalization 54% 48%

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued SFAS No. 141, "Business
Combinations,” and SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." In August 2001, the FASB issued
SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations," and, in October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No.
144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets."

SFAS No. 141 requires all business combinations completed after June 30, 2001, tc be accounted for under
the purchase method. is statement also establishes, for all business combinations made after June 30, 2001,
specific criteria for the recognition of intangible assets separately from gogdwill. SFAS No. 141 also requires that
the excess of the fair value of acquired assets over cost (negative goodwill) be recognized immediately as an
exiraordinary gain, rather than deferred and amortized. The Company will account for all future business
combinations under SFAS No. 141,

SFAS No. 142 addresses the accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets after an acquisition.
Goodwill and other intangibles that have indefinite lives will no longer be amortized, but will be subject to annual
impairment tests. All other inta%%ible assets will continue to be amortized over their estimated useful lives, which is
no longer limited to 40 years. The Company adopted this statement effective January 1, 2002, as required. At that
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time, amortization of existing goodwill ceased on the unamortized portion assoc¢iated with acquisitions and certain
investments accounted for under the equity method. This is expected to have a favorable annual impact of
approximately $15.8 million, net of tax, beginning in 2002. SFAS No. 142 also requires a new methodology for the
testing of impairment of fgoodwil]_and other intangibles that have indefinite lives. During 2002, the Company will
begin testing goodwill for impairment under the new rules, applying a fair-value-based test. The transition -
adjustment, if any, resulting from the adoption of the new approach to impairment testing as required by SFAS No.
142 will be reported as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. At this time, the Company has not
yet determined what impact, if any, the change in the required approacg to impairment testing will have on either its
financial position or results of operations.

SFAS No. 143 provides accounting requirements for retirement obligations associated with tangible long-
lived assets, including: (i) the timing of liability recognition; (ii} initial measurement of the liability; (iii% allocation
of asset retirement cost to expense; (iv) subsequent measurement of the liability; and (v) financial statement
disclosures. SFAS No. 143 requires that an asset retirement cost should be capitalized as part of the cost of the
related lon%-livgd asset and subsequently allocated to expense using a systematic and rational method. This standard
becomes effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. The Company will adopt the Statement effective
January 1, 2003. The transition adjustment, if any, resulting from the adoption of SFAS No. 143 will be reported as
a cumulative effect of a change in accounting Frinciple. t this time, the Company has not yet determined what
impact, if any, the adoption of this Statement will have on either its financial position or results of operaticns.

SFAS No. 144 addresses the financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived
assets. This statement supercedes SFAS No.121, "Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for
Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of" and the accounting and reporting &»rovisions of APB Opinion No. 30,
"Reporting the Results of Operations — Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions,” for the disposal of a segment of a
business, as previously defined in that Opinion. SFAS No. 144 provides a single accounting model, based on the
framework established in SFAS No. 121, for long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale. Many of the provisions of
SFAS No. 121 are retzined, however, SFAS No. 144 clarifies some of the implementation issues related to SFAS
No. 121. SFAS No. 144 also broadens the presentation of discontinued operations to include more dispesal
transactions. This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after. December 15, 2001, with early adoption
encouraged. The Company adopted this Statement effective January 1, 2002, as required. The adoption of this
Statement did not result in an adjustment to the Company's financial statements on January 1, 2002.

EFFECTS OF FOREIGN CURRENCY AND INFLATION

NMHG and HBPS operate internationally and enter into transactions denominated in foreign currencies. As

a result, the Company is subject to the variability that arises from exchange rate movements. The effects of foreign

currency on operating results at NMHG and HB©PS were discussed previously. The Company's use of foreign

}%nifncy derivative contracts is discussed under the heading, "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market
sk."

The Company believes that overall inflaticn has not materially affected its results of operations in 2001 and
2000 and does not expect cverall inflation to be a significant factor in 2002.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Company's manufacturing operations, like those of cther companies engaged in similar businesses,
involve the use, disposal and cleanup of substances regulated under environmental protection laws. The Company's
NACoal subsidiary is affected by the regulations of a%:rncies under which it operates, particularly the Federal Office
of Surface Mining, the United gtates Environmental Protection Agency and associated state regulatory authorities.
In addition, NACoal closely menitors proposed legislation conceminF the Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990,
reauthorization of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, the Clean Water Act, the Endangered Species Act
and other regulatory actions.

Compliance with these increasingly stringent standards could result in higher ex%enditures for both capital
improvements and operating costs. The Company's policies stress environmental responsibility and compliance with
these regulations. Based on current information, management does not ex?ect compliance with these regulations to
have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition or results of operations.
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EURO CONVERSION

On January 1, 1999, 11 of the 15 countries that are members of the European Union introduced a new
currency unit called the "euro," which has replaced the national currencies of these 11 countries. The conversion
rates between the euro and the participating nations' currencies were fixed irrevocably as of January 1, 1999, and
participating national currencies will be removed from circulation between January 1, 2002 and June 30, 2602 and
replaced by euro notes and coinage.

_Under the regulations governing the fransition to a single currency, there was a "no compulsion, no
prohibition" rule which stated that no one was obligated to use the euro until the notes and coinage were introduced

on January 1, 2002. In keeping with this rule, since January 1, 1999 the Company has been able to (i) receive euro-
denominated payments,’ gi invoice in euros and (iii) pertorm appropriate conversion and rounding calculations.
€

Full conversion of all affected country operations to the euro has been completed and the cost to achieve such
conversion has not been material.

Excluding adverse affects caused by the weakening of the eurc against the Company's functional currencies,
the introduction of the euro, to date, has not had, and the Company does not anticipate that the continued use of the
eurc will have, a material effect on the Company's foreign excﬁange and hedging activities or the Company's use of
derivative instruments, or a material adverse effgc on operating results or cash ﬁows. However, the uﬁimate effect
of the euro on competition due to price transparency and foreign currency risk cannot yet be fully determined and
may have an adverse effect, possibly material, on the Company's operations, financial position or cash flows,
Conversely, introduction of the euro may also have positive effects, such as lower foreign currency risk and reduced
prices of raw materials resulting from increased competition among suppliers. The Company continues to monitor
and assess the potential risks imposed by the euro.

OUTLOOK
NACoal

NACoal anticipates record lignite deliveries in 2002 since MLMC's customer declared COD on
March 1, 2002. Thereafter, lignite deliveries at MLMC are expected to be approximately 3.5 million tons annually.
MLMC does not expect to receive contractual liquidated damages payments related to its ongoing operations
subsequent to the March 1, 2002 COD. As a result, MLMC then expects to earn normal operating revenues which
are expected to result in net enhanced cash flow, but also additional operating costs and lower reported eamings.

NACoazl expects Red River to sell fewer tons of lignite in 2002 due to a reduction from the unusually high
tonnage taken by its customer in 2001. Royalty income is anticipated tc be lower in 2002 due to decreased activity at
NACoal's Eastern underground properties. NACoal also expects to continue seeking opportunities for developing its
existing 2.6 billion tons of coal reserves.

NMHEG Wholesale

NMHG Wholesale expects that the broad cost reduction actions taken in 2001, including the Danville plant
closure, with a net positive impact of $12.0 million after tax in 2002 compared to 2001, as well as the elimination of
the inefficiencies involved in reducing production dramatically, will lead to an improved cest position in 2002.
NMHG Whelesale expects that its improved cost position will offset the impact ofp current low levels of market
demand and some additional restructuring costs in the first quarter of 2002.

NMHG Wholesale's objective is to achieve at least break-even results in 2002 based on the assumption, which
it believes is prudent, that lift truck markets in the U.S. will not recover significantly in 2002. NMHG Wholesale,
however, 1s well prepared to respond quickly when markets do improve. Parts sales are anticipated to improve
modestly during 280 due to the expected increased utilization of lift trucks in the field. Market share is expected to
increase in Eurorrlm, largely as a result of a sale to ZEPPELIN GmbH in 2001 of whollg owned Hyster dealerships in
Germany as well as the strengthening of other Hyster and Yale independent dealerships. NMHG Wholesale also
plans several new product introductions in 2002, including selected new warehouse, counterbalanced and big trucks.

NMHG Wholesale also expects net income to be faverably impacted by approximately $11.4 millicn in 2002
as a result of the ado%tion of SFAS No. 142. Although the Company does not expect to recognize an impairment
charge as a result of the new impairment testing required by SFAS No. 142, the Company has not yet completed its
analysis of goodwill. An impairment charge, if required, would reduce reported results in 2002.

NMHG Retail

NMHG Retail has largely completed the programs undertaken in 2001 to restructure and realign its global
operations, which were designed to put its operations at close to break-even results in 2002 at current low market
levels. These restructuring actions included headcount reductions, consolidation of operations, the sale of its Hyster
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dealers in Germany, and adjusting asset values and reserves to reflect the weakened capital goods markets. NMHG
Retail expects to continue focusing its efforts on improving the performance of its wholly owned dealerships.

NMHG Retail's %)erating results are expected to improve approximately $1.4 million after-tax as a result of
the adoption of SFAS No. 142. Although the Company does not expect to recognize an impairment charge as a
result of the new impairment testinig required by SFAS No. 142, the Company has not yet completed its analysis of
goodwill. An impairment charge, if required, would reduce reported results in 2002.

Housewares

HB<PS expects that actions taken in 2001, including programs to gain a higher margin mix of business,
reduce operating costs, reduce and consclidate Mexican manufacturing capaci%, decrease manufacturing
inefficiencies and increase outsourcing to China, will result in operating margins in 2002 closer to the company's
objectives, even without an improved U.S. economy, and after assuming some additional costs in the first quarter of
2002 related to completing restructuring and inventory reduction programs.

The higher margin mix of business is expected to result from decreased opening-price-point business and
increased sales of home health products such as TrueAir odor eliminators and sales of General Electric-branded
preducts to Wal®xMart. HBoPS also expects substantially enhanced cash flow from improved inventory
management.

KCI expects to open additional Kitchen Collection® and Gadgets & More® stores, introduce new Hamilton
Beach and Proctor-Silex-branded non-electric products and continue to aggressively manage its costs.

Housewares expects that the adoption of SFAS No. 142 which eliminates amortization of goodwill will
contribute $3.0 million to net income in 2002. Although the Company does not expect to recognize an impairment
charge as a result of the new impairment testing required by SFAS No. 142, the Company has not yet completed its
analysis of goodwill. An impairment charge, if required, would reduce reported results in 2002.

The statements contained in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” and elsewhere throughout this Annual Report that are not historical facts are "forward-icocking
statements"” within the meanin% of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. These forward-looking statements are made subject to certain risks and uncertainties which
could cause actual results to differ materially from those 1pxresemed in these forward-looking statements. Readers are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-locking statements, which speak only as of the date hereof.
The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly revise these forward-looking statements to reflect events or
circumstances that arise after the date hereof. Such risks and uncertainties with respect to each subsidiary's
operations include without limitation:

NACoal: (1) weather conditions and other events that would .change the level of customers' fuel
requirements, (2) weather or equipment problems that could affect lignite deliveries to customers, (3) changes in
maintenance, fuel or other similar costs, (4) costs to pursue international opportunities, (5) further delays in
achieving commercial O?erations at MLMC's customer's power plant and (6) changes in the U.S. economy or in the
power industry that would affect demand for NACoal's Eastern U.S. underground reserves.

NMHG: (1) changes in demand for lift trucks and related service parts on a worldwide basis, especially in
the U.S. where the company derives a majority of its sales, (2) changes in sales prices, (3) delays in delivery or
changes in costs of raw materials or sourced iproduc’cs and labor, (4) delays in manufacturing and delivery schedules,
(5) exchange rate fluctuations, changes in foreign import tariffs and monetary policies and other changes in the
regulatory climate in the foreign countries in which NRAUHIG operates and/or sells products, (?g product liability or
cther litigation, warranty claims or returns of preducts, (7) delays in or increased costs of the Danville, Hlinois,
manufacturing plant phase-out and European restructuring programs, (8) acquisitions and/or dispositions of
dealerships by ?VMH , (9) costs related to the integration of acquisitions, (10) the impact of the continuing
introduction of the euro, including increased competition, forei%l currency exchan%e movements and/or changes in
operating costs and (11) uncertainties regarding the impact the September 11, 2001 terrorist activities and the
subsequent climate of war may have on the economy or the public's confidence in general.
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Housewares: (1) changes in the sales ﬁprices, product mix or levels of consumer purchases of kitchenware
and small electric appliances, é%) bankrugtcy of or loss of major retail customers or suppliers, (3) changes in costs of
raw materials or sourced products, (4) delays in delivery or the unavailability of raw materials or key component
parts, (5) exchange rate fluctuations, changes in the foreign import tariffs and monetary policies and other changes
in the regulatory climate in the foreign countries in which HB<PS buys, operates and/or sells products, (6) product
liability, regulatory actions or other litigation, warranty claims or returns of products, (7) increased competition, (1%

customer acceptance of, changes in costs of, or delays in the development of new products, including the GE-

branded products to be sold to WalkMart and new home environment products, (9) weather conditions or other
events that would affect the number of customers visiting Kitchen Collection stores and (10) uncertainties regarding
the impact the September 11, 2001 terrorist activities and the subsequent climate of war may have on the economy
or the public's confidence in general.

Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
INTEREST RATE RISK

The Company's subsidiaries, NACoal, NMHG and HB<PS, have entered into certain financing arrangements
that require interest payments based on floating interest rates. As such, the Company's financial results are subject to
changes in the market rate of interest. To reduce the exposure to changes in the market rate of interest, the Company
has entered into interest rate swap agreements for a significant portion of its floating rate financing arrangements.
The Company does not enter into interest rate swap agreements for tradinf purposes. Lerms of the interest rate swag
agreements require the subsidiaries to receive a variable interest rate and pay a fixed interest rate. See also Note
and Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Part IV ﬁereof.

For purposes of specific risk analysis, the Company uses sensitivity analysis tc measure the potential loss in
fair value of financial instruments sensitive to changes in interest rates. Assuming 2 hypothetical 10 percent decrease
in the interest rates as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, the fair market value of interest rate sensitive financial
instruments, which primarily represents interest rate swap agreements, would decline by $4.1 and $7.1 million,
respectively, as compared with their fair market value at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RATE RISK

NMHG and HBoPS operate internationally and enter into transactions denominated in foreign currencies. As
such, their financial results are subject to the variability that arises from exchange rate movements. NMHG and
HB<PS use forward foreign currency exchange contracts to partially reduce risks related to transactions
denominated in foreign currencies and not for trading purposes. These contracts mature within one year and require
the companies to buy or sell Japanese yen, Australtan dollars, Canadian dollars, Mexican pesos, British pounds
sterling or euros for the functional currency in which the applicable subsidiary operates at rates agreed to at the
1i;xce tm}rll of %he contracts. See alsc Note 2 and Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in

art ereot.

For purposes of specific risk analysis, the Company uses sensitivity analysis to measure the potential loss in
fair value of financial instruments sensitive to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Assuming a hypothetical
10 percent strengthening of the U.S. dollar as compared with other foreign currencies at December 31, 2001 and
2000, the fair market value of foreign currency-sensitive financial instruments, which primarily represents forward
foreign currency exchange contracts, would decline by $3.7 million and $4.7 million, respectively, as compared with
their fair market value at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. It is important to note that the loss in fair
market value indicated in this sensitivity analysis would be somewhat offset by changes in the fair market value of
the underlying receivables, payables and net investments in foreign subsidiaries.

COMMODITY PRICE RISK

The Company uses certain commodities, including steel, resins, linerboard and diesel fuel, in the normal
course of its mining and manufacturing processes. As such, the cost of operations is subject to variability as the
market for these commodities change. The Company monitors this risk and, from time to time, enters into derivative
contracts to hedge this risk. The Company does not currently have any such derivative contracts ouistanding, nor
does the Company have any significant purchase obligations to¢ obtain fixed quantities of commodities in the future.
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Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

_The information re?uired by this Item 8 is set forth in the Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
contained in Part [V hereof.

Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
PART III

Item 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

_ Information with respect to Directors of the Company will be set forth in the 2002 Proxy Statement under the
heading "Business to be Transacted — Election of Directors," which information is incorporated herein by reference.
The information set forth in the 2002 Proxy Statement under the subheadings "-- Report of the Audit Review
Committee," "-- Report of the Compensation Committee on Executive Compensation” and "-- Stock Price
Performance Presentation” is not incorporated herein by reference. Information with respect to compliance with
Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 by the Company's Directors, executive officers, and holders of
more than ten percent of the Company's equit& securities will be set forth in the 2002 Proxy Statement under the
heading "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership etporting Compliance," which information is mcor{mrated herein by
reference. Information regarding the executive officers of the Company is included in this Annua
10-K as Item 4A of Part [ as permitied by Instruction 3 to Item 401(b) of Regulation S-K.

[tem 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Report on Form

Information with respect to executive compensation will be set forth in the 2002 Proxy Statement under the
heading "Business to be Transacted -- Election of Directors" under the subheadings "-- Compensation of Directors,"
"-- Compensation of Executive Officers,” "— Stock Option Grants,” "— Long-Term Incentive Plans," -"--
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” and "-- Pension Plans,” which information is
incorporated herein by reference. The information set forth in the 2002 Proxy Statement under the subheadings "--
Report of the Audit Review Committee,” "-- Report of the Compensation Committee on Executive Compensation”
and "-- Stock Price Performance Presentation” is not incorporate&) herein by reference.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
. Information with respect to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management will be set forth
in the 2002 Proxy Statement under the heading "Business to be Transacted -- Election of Directors -- Beneficial
Ovwnership of Class A Common and Class B Common,” which information is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Information with respect to certain relationships and related transactions will be set forth in the 2002 Proxy
Statement under the heading "Business to be Transacted -- Election of Directors -- Compensation Committee
Interlocks and Insider Participation,” which information is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV

Item 14, EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a) %l %(and (2) The response to Item 14(a)(1) and (2) is set forth beginning at page F-1 of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K.

(2) (3) Listing of Exhibits -- See the exhibit index beginning at page X-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
(b) The Company did not file any current reports on Form 8-K during the fourth quarter of 2001.

(c) The response to Item 14(c) is set forth beginning at page X-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(d) Financial Statement Schedules -- The response to Item 14(d) is set forth beginning at page F-35 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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March 26, 2002

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

By:
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NACCO Industries, Inc.

/s/ Kenneth C. Schilling

Kenneth C. Schillin

Vice President and Controller
(principal financial

and accounting officer)




Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/ Alfred M. Rankin, Jr.

Alfred M. Rankin, Jr.

/s/ Kenneth C. Schilling

Kenneth C. Schilling

* Owsley Brown II

Owsley Brown II
* Robert M. Gates

Robert M. Gates
* Leon J. Hendrix, Jr.

Leon J. Hendrix, Jr.
* David H. Hoag

David H. Hoag

* Dennis W. LaBarre

Dennis W. LaBarre
* Richard de J. Osbome

Richard de J. Osborne
* Jan M. Ross

Ian M. Ross
* Britton T. Taplin

Bntton T. Taplin
* David F. Taplin

Dawid F. Taplin
* John F. Turben

John F. Turben

*Kenneth C. Schilling, by signing his name hereto, does hereby sign this Annual Report cn Form 10-K on
behalf of each of the above named and designated directors of the Company pursuant to a Power of Attorney

Chairman, President and

Chief Executive Officer (principal
executive officer), Director

Vice President and Controller
(princiﬁ)al financial and accounting

officer

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

March 26, 2002

March 26, 2002

March 26, 2002

March 26, 2002

March 26, 2002

March 26, 2002

March 26,2002

March 26, 2002

March 26, 2002

March 26, 2002

March 26, 2002

March 26, 2002

executed by such persens and filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

/s/ Kenneth C. Schilling

Kenneth C. Schilling, Attorney-in-Fact
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FORM 10-K
ITEM 14(a)(1) AND (2)
NACCO INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
LIST OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following consolidated financial statements of NACCQO Industries, Inc. and Subsidiaries are incorporated by
reference in Item 8:

Report of Independent Public Accountants--Year ended Deécember 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999.

Co&xsl%légated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss)--Year ended December 31, 2001, 2000
an .

Consolidated Balance Sheets--December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows--Year ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999,
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity—-Year ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
NACCO Industries, Inc. Report of Management.
inch&ii {gl}%&m’n& (é()?:nsolidated financial statement schedules of NACCO Indusiries, Inc. and Subsidiaries are

Schedule I -- Condensed Financial Information of the Parent
Schedule I -- Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulation of the Securities and
Ethanglge Commission are not required under the related instructions or are inapplicable, and therefore have been
omuited. ‘




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Stockholders of NACCO Industries, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets of NACCO Industries, Inc. and
Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Income (Loss), Stockholders' Equity and Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2001. These financial statements and the schedules referred to below are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedules
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a iest basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of NACCO Industries, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

As explained in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, effective January 1, 2001, the Company
changed its method of accounting for derivative instruments and hedging activities and the Company changed its
method of accounting for certain pension liabilities. As explained in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, effective January 1, 1999, the Company changed its method of accounting for start-up activities.

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion con the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The schedules listed in Item 14(a)(1) and (2) and Item 14(d) of Form 10-K are the responsibility of the
Company's management and are presented for purposes of complying with the Securities and Exchange
Commission's rules and are not part of the basic financial statements. These schedules have been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state in all
material respects the financial data required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole.

s/ Arthur Andersen LLP

Cleveland, Chio,
February 12, 2002




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
NACCQ INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Net sales
Other revenues
Revenues
Cost of sales
Gross Profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Amortization of goodwill
Restructuring charges
Loss on sale of dealers
@q{emtﬁmg Profit
Other income (expense)
Interest expense
Closed mine obligations
Insurance recovery
Other-net

Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes, Minority Interest,
Extraordinary Gain and Cumulative Effect of Accounting
Changes

Income tax provision (benefit)

Income (Loss) Before Mimority Interest, Extraordinary Gain
and Cumulative Effect of Accounting Changes

Minority interest income (expense)

Imcome @4@52 Before Extraordinary Gain and Cumulative
Efffect of Accounting Changes

Extraordinary gain, net of $16.1 tax expense

Imcome (Loss) Before Cumulative Effect of Accounting |
Changes

Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net of: $0.8 tax benefit
in 2001 and $0.6 tax benefit in 1999

Net Income (Loss)

Other comprehensive income (loss)

Foreign currency translation adjustment

Cumulative effect of change in accounting for derivatives
and hedging, net of (32.0) tax benefit

Reclassification of hedging activities into earnings

Current period cash flow he%ging activity

Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of: ($8.1)
tax benefit in 2001; ( 1.0; tax benefit in 2000; $2.3
tax expense in 1999

Comprehensive [ncome (Loss)

Basic Earnings per Share:

Income (Loss) Before Extraordinary Gain and Cumulative
Effect of Accounting Changes

Extraordinary gain, net-of-tax

Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net-of-tax

Net Income (Loss)

Diluted Earnings per Share

Income (Loss) Before Extraordinary Gain and Cumulative
Effect of Accounting Changes

Extracrdinary gain, net-of-tax

Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net-of-tax

Net Income (Loss)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Year Ended December 31

2001 2000 1999

(In millions, except per share data)

2,613.1 $ 28694 $ 26332
24.8 1.9 2.7
2,637.9 2,871.3 2,635.9
2,203.4 2.355.1 2,151.2
434.5 516.2 4347
381.0 367.0 3370
15.9 15.7 15.2
21.5 15.6 1.2
10.4
5.7 1179 1313
(56.9 (47.1 (43.3)
(1.3 (5.63
8.0
(.9) (5.2) (1.4)
G1.D) (57.9) (44.7)
(45.4% 60.0 86.6
(9.9) 223 31.7
(35.5) 37.7 54.9
8 1 (.6)
(34.7) 37.8 543
— 29.9
(34.7) 67.7 54.3
(1.3) (1.2)

360 3 577 5 531

©4 $ (158 $ (119

3.4
¢ .9)
(%.3)
(13.4) (1.4) 3.8
(34.6) 7.2y (8.1)
708 T 505 § 450
“24) S 463 % 6.67
3.66
(16) (.15)
4.40) § §29 % 6.52
4.249) 3 463  $ 6.66
3.66
(.16) (.15)
.40 3 g29 3 6.51




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
NACCO INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $15.6 in 2001 and
$16.8 in 2000
Inventories
Deferred income taxes
Prepaid expenses and other

Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

Deferred Charges
gooldwﬂl,lnet
oal supply agreements, net
Deferred costs and other
Deferred income taxes

Other Assets

Total Assets

December 31

2001

2000

(In millions, except share data)

$ 71.9

$ 33.7

264.5 3154
360.6 411.8
40.2 35.0
32.8 19.8
770.0 815.7
732.0 710.7
427.9 442.9
85.2 86.4
50.7 62.1
26.1 12.8
589.9 604.2
70.0 63.3
3 21619 $ 21939




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
NACCQO INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

December 31
2001 2000

(In millions, except per share data)

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 23583  $ 263.0
Revolving credit agreements 59.7 66.3
Revolving credit agreement expected to be refinanced within 12 months 265.0 -
Current maturities of long-term debt 41.9 454
Current obligations of project mining subsidiaries 37.9 37.7
Accrued payroll 38.5 53.2
Accrued warranty obligations 34.5 370
Other current liabilities 161.5 147.6
874.3 650.2
Long-term Debt - not guaranteed by
the parent company 248.1 450.0
Obligatioms of Project Mining Subsidiaries - ‘
not guaranteed by the parent company or its NACoal subsidiary 2713 282.7
Self-insurance Reserves and Other 235.5 200.4
Minerity Interest 3.4 42
Stockholders® Equity
Common stock:
Class A, par value $1 per share, 6,559,925 shares
outstanding (2000 — 6,529,143 shares cutstanding) 6.5 6.5
Class B, par value $1 per share, convertible
into Class A on a one-for-one basis,
1,635,720 shares outstanding
(2000 — 1,641,937 shares ouistanding) 1.6 1.6
Capital in excess of par value 4.7 36
Retained earnings 571.3 614.9
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustment (28.2) (18.8)
Reclassification of hedging activity into earnings 9 -
Deferred loss on cash flow hedging 9.3 -
Cumulative effect of change in accounting for derivatives and hedging 3.4 -~
Minimum pension liability adjustment (14.8 (1.4
529.3 606.4
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity S 2,161.9 S 2,1939

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




Operating Activities

Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Deferred income taxes
Restructuring charges
Minority interest (income) expense
Extraordinary gain
Cumulative effect of accounting changes
Loss on sale of assets
Other non-cash items
Working capital changes, excluding the effect of
business acquisitions:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Other current assets
Accounts payable and other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing Activities

Expenditures for property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from the sa{)e of property, plant and eguipment
Acquisitions of businesses, net ot cash acquire
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates
Acquisition of minority interest
Other-net

Net cash used for investing activities

Financing Activities

Additions to long-term debt and revolving credit agreements
Reductions of long-term debt and revolving credit agreements
Additions to obligations of project mining subsidiaries
Reductions of ob%gations of project mining subsidiaries
Deferred financing fees '
Financing of other short-term obligations
Cash dividends paid
Capital grants
Other-net .

Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

Cash and Cash Equivalemnts

Increase (decrease) for the year

Balance at the beginning oty the year
Balance at the end of the year

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
NACCO INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Year Ended December 31
2001 2000 1999
(In millions)
(36.0) $ 677 3 53.1
117.6 106.1: 104.0
(5.0) (12.5) 33
21.5 15.6 1.2
(-3) {. lg .6
-— 29.9 -—-
1.3 - 1.
10.5 1.4 4
i (1.3) (3.3)
42.7 224.9; 11.3
41.4 26.0 23.0
%]1]1.7% 12 124
46.2 35.7 15.3
136.0 133.0 129.1
104.8 93.3) (75.5)
( ]179) : (15.3 1.0
(3.9% (145.3; 62.4
3 (10.3 15.9
-— - 11.3
(4.0) (.6) 2.7
(95.1) (234.2) (161.4)
¢8.9 186.0 90.2
(43.8) 61.7) 6.1
;g"g ("5/33 éé‘g)
(@1:@% (1:8; -
6 (7.2) Q(%%
7. . .
¢ .Il) 4 2.6
4 (.8) 3.0
(1.6) 08.3 353
(1.1) 4 (1.5)
38.2 (2.5) 1.5
33.7 36.2 34.7
71.9 $ 337 $ 36.2




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
NACCO INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Year Ended December 31
2001 2000 1999
(In millions, except per share data)
Class A Common Stock $ 65 3 6.5 $ 6.5
Class B Commen Stock ) 1.6 1.6 1.6

Capital in Excess of Par Value

Beginning balance 3.6 2.7 2
Shares issued under steck option and compensation plans 1.1 9 25
4.7 3.6 27
Retaimed Earnings
Beginning balance 614.9 554.4 504.9
Net income (loss) (36.0) 67.7 53.1
Reconsolidation of Brazilian subsidia — - 3.4
Cash dividends on Class A and Class B common stock:
2001 $.930 per share (7.6) --- -—
2000 $.890 per share — (1.2) -
1999 $.850 per share — --- (1.0
S71.3 614.9 554.4
Accumulated Other Comprehemnsive Imcome (LLoss)
Beginning balance (2@.2% (3.0; 5.1
Foreign currency translation adjustment 9.4 (15.8 (11.9)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting for derivatives and
hedging (3.4 - -
Reclassification of hedging activity into earnings 9 - —
Current period cash flow hedge activity (9.3% — -—
Minimum pension liability adjustment (13.4 (1.4 3.8
(54.8) (20.2) (3.0)
Total Stockholders’ Equity S 529.3 $ 606.4 $ 562.2

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NACCQ INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Tabular Amounts in Millions, Except Per Share and Percentage Data)

NOTE I1--Principles of Consolidation and Nature of Operations

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of NACCO Industries, Inc. ("NACCO," the parent
company) and its wholly owned subsidiaries (NACCO Industries, Inc. and Subsidiaries — the "Company").
Intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated. The Company's subsidiaries operate in three l1;111'n01pa1
industries: lignite mining, lift trucks and housewares. The Company manages its subsidiaries by industry; however,

fihe %ompany segments its lift truck operations into two components: wholesale manufacturing and retail
istribution.

The North American Coal Corporation ("NACoal") mines and markets lignite primarily as fuel for power generation
by electric utilities. NMHG Holding Co., through its wholly owned subsidiaries, NACCO Materials Handling
Group, Inc. ("NMHG Wholesale") and NMHG Distribution Co. g"NMHG Retail") (collectively "NMHG"), designs,
engineers, manu%lctures, sells, services and leases a full line of lift trucks and service parts marketed worldwide
under the Hyster™ and Yale™ brand names. NMHG Wholesale includes the manufacture and sale of lift trucks and
related service parts, primarily to independent and wholly owned Hyster and Yale retail dealerships. NMHG Retail
includes the sale, leasing and service of Hyster and Yale lift trucks and related service parts by wholly owned retail
dealerships and rental companies. The sale of service parts represents approximately 19 percent, 19 percent and 17
percent of the total NMHG revenues as reported for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. NACCO Housewares
Group ("Housewares") consists of Hamilton BeacheProctor-Silex, Inc. ("HB*PS"), a leading manufacturer and
marketer of small electric motor and heat-driven appliances as well as commercial products for restaurants, bars and
hotels, and The Kitchen Collection, Inc. ("KCI"), a national specialty retailer of brand-name kitchenware, small
electrical appliances and related accesseries.

In 1989, NMHG acquired a majority interest in Hyster Brasil, Ltda., a Brazilian manufacturer and marketer of
Hyster forklift trucks and rela.tedJ service parts. In 1990, NMHG deconsolidated this subsidiary because it did not
have effective control, given the uncertain economic and political environment in Brazil at that time. In 1999,
management reassessed its ability to influence the performance of Hyster Brasil, Ltda. The stability of the economic
envircnment in Brazil, NMHG's ability to receive dividends from Hyster Brasil, Ltda. during the few years prior to
1999 and NMHG's planned expansion of operations in Brazil at that time were among the factors that led NMHG to
determine that it had significant influence over Hyster Brasil, Ltda. and that it was appropriate to consolidate its
operations. Undistributed eamings during the periods of deconsolidation, when G did not have effective
control, were credited directly to consolidated retained earnings in the amount of $3.4 million at December 31, 1999.
The consolidation of Hyster Brasil, Ltda. as of December 31, 1999 was not material to the Company's financial
position or results of operations. During 2001 and 2000, NMHG maintained consolidation of this subsidiary, and
the Company will periodically assess NMHG's ability to control the operations of Hyster Brasil, Ltda.

NOTE 2--Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions. ese estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
(if any) at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include cash in banks and highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowances: Allowances are maintained against accounts receivable for doubtful
accounts, product returns and product discounts. Allowances for doubtful accounts are maintained for estimated
losses resulting from the inability of customers to make required payments. These allowances are based on both
recent trends of certain customers estimated to be a greater credit risk as well as general trends of the entire customer
pool. Allowances for product returns due to reasons such as buyer remorse, duplicate gifts received, product failure
and excess inventory stocked by the customer which, subject to certain terms and conditions, the Company will
agree to accept are estimated at the time of sale based on historical experience. Allowances for product discounts
are estimated at the time of sale for customer programs and incentive ofIf)erings including special pricing agreements,
price competition, promotions and other volume-based incentives.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NACCO INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined under the last-in, first-cut
(LIFO) method for manufactured inventories in the United States and for certain retail inventories. The weighted
average method is used for coal inventory. The first-in, first-out (FIFO) methed is used with respect to all other
inventories. Reserves are maintained for estimated obsolescence or excess inventory equal to the difference
between the cost of inventory and the estimated market value based upon assumptions about future demand and
market conditions.

Property, Plant and Equipment, Net: Properigy, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation, depletion
and amortization are provided in amounts sufficient to amortize the cost of the assets, including assets recorded
under capital leases, over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. Buildings are depreciated using
a 40-year life or, at NACoal, over the life of the mines, which range from 9 to 43 years. Estimated lives for
machinery and equipment range from 3 to 12 years and for land and building improvements from S to 40 years. The
units-of-production method is used to amortize certain coal-related assets based on estimated recoverable tonnages.
Repairs and maintenance costs are generally expensed when incurred.

Goodwill, Net: Goodwill re{)resents the excess purchase price paid over the fair value of the net assets acquired.
The amortization of goodwill is provided on a strai%ht-line basis generally over a 40-year period. Accumulated
amortization of goodwill was $186.8 million and $170.9 million at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Management regularly evaluates its accounting for goedwill, considering such factors as historical and future
profitability, and believes that these assets are realizable and the amortization periods remain appropriate.

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("]FASB“) issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards ("SFAS") No. 142, "Geodwill and Other Intangible Assets." SFAS No. 142 addresses the accounting for
ﬁoodwill and other intangible assets. The Company adopted this statement on January 1, 2002 as required.

eginning in 2002, goodwill will no longer be amortized in accordance with this Statement. During 2002, the
Company will begin testing goodwill for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 142,

Self-imsuramce Reserves: The Company is generally self-insured for product liability, environmental liability,
medical and workers' compensation claims, certain closed mine liabilities and obligations to the United Mine
Workers of America Combined Benefit Fund ("UMWA") arising as a result of the Coal Industry Retiree Health
Benefit Act of 1992 ("Coal Act"). For product liability, catastrophic coverage is retained for potentially significant
individual claims. An estimated provision for claims reported and for claims incurred but not yet reported under the
self-insurance programs is recorded and revised iperiodlﬁca]lly based on industry frends, historical experience and
management judgment. Changes in assumptions for such matters as legal actions, inflation rates, medical costs and
actual experience could cause estimates to change in the near term.

Revenue Recognitiom: Revenues are generally recognized when customer orders are completed and shipped.
Reserves for discounts, returns and product warranties are maintained for anticipated future claims,

Advertising Costs: Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and amounted to $28.6 million, $24.3 million and
$25.5 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Product Development Costs: Expenses associated with the development of new products and changes to existin
products are charged to expense as incurred. These costs amounted to $52.0 million, $51.8 million and $48.
million in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Forefign Currency: Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into U.S. dollars at the fiscal year-end
exchange rate. Tﬁe related translation adjustments are recorded as a separate component of stockholders' equity,
except for the Company's Mexican operations. The U.S. dollar is considered the functional currency for the
Company's Mexican operations and, therefore, the effect of translating assets and liabilities from the Mexican peso
to the U.S dollar is recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss).
Revenues and expenses of all foreign operations are translated using the monthly average exchange rates prevailing
during the year.

Finamcial Instruments and Derivative Financial Imstruments: Financial instruments held by the Company
include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, revolving credit agreements, long-term
debt, interest rate swap agreements and forward foreign currency excﬁange contracts. The Company does not hold
or issue financial instruments or derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

The Company uses forward foreign currency exchange contracts to partially reduce risks related to transactions
denominated in foreign currencies. These contracts hedge primarily firm commitments and, to a lesser degree,
forecasted transactions relating to cash flows associated with sales and purchases denominated in currencies other
than the subsidiaries' functional currency. Generally, gains and losses from changes in the market value of these
contracts are recognized in cost of sa?és and offset the foreign exchange gains and losses on the underlying
transactions.
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The Company uses interest rate swap agreements to partially reduce risks related to floating rate financing
agreements which are subject to changes in the market rate of interest. Terms of the interest rate swap agreements
require the Company to receive a variable interest rate and pay a fixed interest rate. The Company's interest rate
swap agreements and its variable rate financings are predominately based upon the three-month LIBOR (London
Interbank Offered Rate). Amounts to be paid or received under the interest rate swap agreements are accrued as
interest rates change and are recognized over the life of the swap agreement as an adjustment to interest expense.

Interest rate swap agreements and forward foreign currency exchange contracts held by the Company have been
designated as hedges of forecasted cash flows. The Company does not currently hold any nonderivative instruments
designated as hedges or any derivatives designated as fair value hedges as defined in SFAS No. 133, "Accounting
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities."

NMHG Wholesale holds certain interest rate swap agreements that do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment
according to the guidance of SFAS No. 133. As such, the change in the mark-to-market amount of these swaps will
be recognized in the statement of operations every %uarter. Although these interest rate swap agreements do not
qualify for hedge accounting, the Company believes that these interest rate swap agreements are reasonably effective
at economically hedging the Company's tisk to changes in the variable rate of interest. The adjustment to the
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for those interest rate swap agreements
that did not qualify for hedge treatment and for the ineffective portion of certain interest rate swap agreements was

included in other-net and amounted to a loss of $1.4 million ($0.9 million after-tax) for the year ended
December 31, 2001.

For those interest rate swap agreements that qualify for hedge accounting treatment, the mark-to-market effect has
been included in the accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) section ("OCL") of stockholders' equity.
Based upon market valuations at December 31, 2001, approximately $6.8 million of the net deferred loss in OCL 1s
expected to be reclassified inte the statement of operations over the next 12 months, as cash flow payments are made
in accordance with the interest rate swap agreements.

For the year ended December 31, 2001, there was no ineffectiveness of forward foreign currency exchange contracts
that would have resulted in recogniticn in the statement of operations. Forward foreign currency exchange contracts
are used to hedge transactions expected to occcur within the next 12 months. Based on market valuations at
December 31, 2001, the amount of net deferred gain included in OCL at December 31, 2001 of $0.1 million is
expected to be reclassified into the statement of operations over the next 12 months, as those transactions occur.

Cash flows from hedgmg activities are reported in the Consolidated Statements cf Cash Flows in the same
classification as the hedged item, generally as a component of cash flows from operations.

New Accounting Standards: On January 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS No. 133, as amended by SFAS No.
138, "Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedgi 5 Activities." This Statement establishes
accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments and for%:? ging activities. It requires companies to
recognize all derivatives on the balance sheet as assets and liabilities, measured at fair value. Gains or losses
resulting from changes in the values of those derivatives are accounted for depending on the use of the derivative
and whether it qualifies for hedge accounting,

As a result of the adoption of SFAS Ne. 133, the Company recognized a cumulative effect of a change in accounting
charge to the Consclidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the year ended
December 31, 2001 of $0.9 million, net of $0.5 millicn of tax benefit, relating primarily to certain interest rate swa
agreements held by NMHG Wholesale which did not qualify for hedge accounting treatment at January 1, 2001.
addition, effective January 1, 2001, the Company recognized a cumulative effect of a change in accounting charge
against OCL in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2001 of $3.4 million, net of $2.0 million of tax
g%zg%\l rel'ilgiglg to net deferred losses on derivative instruments that qualify for hedge accounting treatment under
0. 133,

On January 1, 2001, the Company recognized a cumulative effect of a change in accounting charge of $0.4 million,
net of $0.3 mullion tax benefit, relating to a chan§e in the method of calculating pension costs for the defined benefit
%en_sion lan in the United Kingdom. Prior to January 1, 2001, actuarially determined net gains and losses of the

nited Kingdom plan were recognized in full as a component of net pension cost in the year incurred. However,
actuarially determined net gains and losses of all other defined benefit pension plans of the Company are amortized
and included as a component of net pension cost over the next four years. Both of these methods are permissible
pursuant to SFAS No. 87, "Employers’ Accounting for Pensions.” However, effective January 1, 2001, the
Company changed the method of recognition of actuarially determined net gains and losses of the United Kingdom
plan to conform with the methodology utilized by all other defined benefit plans of the Company. This change in
accounting was made to achieve consistency of application of this accounting principle among all members of the
consclidated group, which the Company believes is the preferred application of accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States.

In September 2000, the Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") reached a consensus on Issue Number 00-10,
"Accounting for Shipping and Handling Fees and Costs" ("EITF 00-10"), which requires shipping and handling
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amounts billed to a customer to be classified as revenue. In addition, the EITE's preference is to classify shipping
and handling cests as "cost of sales."

For certain shipping and handling fees, the Company netted the charge to the customer with the cost incurred within
its Consolidatec}) Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) on the line cost of sales. In the fourth
quarter of 2000, the Company changed its method of reporting to comply with EITF 00-10. The Company restated
its revenues and cost of sales for the first three quarters of 2000 and the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999,
resulting in an increase to both revenues and cost of sales of approximately $36.4 million and $33.1 million,
respectively. This restatement does not affect the reported amounts of gross profit.

On December 3, 1999, the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101
— Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements ("SAB 101"). SAB 101 summarizes certain of the SEC staff's views
in applying generally accepted accounting principles to revenue recognition in financial statements. The Company
has reviewed its revenue recognition policies and procedures and believes that it has complied with the requirements

gf SAB 1101. No significant changes to the Company's revenue recognition policies were necessary tc comply with
AB 101.

As of January 1, 1999, the Comgany adopted the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants' ("AICPA™)
Statement of Position ("SOP") 98-1, "Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for
Internal Use," and SOP 98-5, "Reporting on the Costs of Start-Up Activities." SOP 98-1 requires capitalization on a
prospective basis of certain development costs of software to be used internally. The Company does not expect the
change to this new accounting standard to have a material impact on its financial position or results of operations in
the foreseeable future.

SOP 98-5 requires start-up and organization costs to be expensed as incurred and also requires previously deferred
start-up costs to be recognized as a cumulative effect adjustment in the statement of income upon adoption. Prior to
January 1, 1999, the Company's NACoal subsidiary had deferred certain start-up costs related to the development of
lignite mining activities and amortized these costs over the estimated useful lives of the related coal lands. Under
the new accounting standard, these costs--primarily training, travel and administrative expenses--are no longer
allowed to be deferred, but, rather, must be expensed as incurred. Therefore, the Company has recognized the eftect
of expensing these previously deferred start-up costs of $1.2 millicn, net-of-tax, as a cumulative effect of accounting
change in the accompanying Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the year
ended December 31, 1999.

Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted: In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, "Business
Combinations,” and SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” In August 2001, the FASB issued
SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations," and, in Octeber 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No.
144, " Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.”

SFAS No. 141 requires all business combinations completed after June 30, 2001, to be accounted for under the

purchase method. This standard alsc establishes, for all business combinations made after June 30, 2001, specific

criteria for the recognition of intangible assets separately from goodwill. SFAS Ne. 141 also requires that the excess

of the fair value of acquired assets over cost (negative goodwill) be recognized immediately as an extraordinary

é%i?\,srﬁ}herl 4‘F}11an deferred and amortized. The Company will account for all future business combinations under
o. 141,

SFAS No. 142 addresses the accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets after an acquisition. Goodwill and
other intangibles that have indefinite lives will no longer be amortized, but will be subject to annual impairment
tests. All cther intangible assets will continue tc be amortized over their estimated useful lives, which is no longer
limited to 40 years. The Company adopted this statement effective January 1, 2002, as required. Amortization of
existing goodwill ceased on the unamortized portion associated with acc1ui51tions and certain investments accounted
for under the equity method. This is ex ectecF to have a favorable annua imfpact of approximately $15.8 million, net
of tax, beginning in 2002. SFAS No. 142 also requires a new methodology for the testin% of impairment of goodwill
and other intangibles that have indefinite lives. During 2002, the Company will begin testing goodwill for
impairment under the new rules, agplying a fair-value-based test. The transition adjustment, if any, resulting from
the adoption of the new approach to impairment testing as required by SFAS No. 142 will be reported as a
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. At this time, the Company has not yet determined what
impact, if any, the change in the required approach to impairment testing will have on either its financial position or
results of operations.

SFAS No. 143 provides accounting requirements for retirement obligations associated with tangible long-lived
assets, including: (i) the timing of ﬁabihty recognition; (ii) initial measurement of the liability; (i1i) allocation of
asset retirement cost to expense; (iv) subsequent measurement of the lability; and (v) financial staternent
disclosures. SFAS No. 143 requires that an asset retirement cost should be capitalized as part of the cost of the
related lonf-lived asset and subsequently allocated to expense using a systematic and rational method. This standard
becomes effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. The Company will adopt the Statement effective
January 1, 2003. The transition adjustment, if any, resulting from the adoption of SFAS No. 143 will be reported as
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a cumulative effect of a change in accounting_f»rinciple. At this time, the Company has not yet determined what
impact, if any, the adoption of this Statement will have on either its financial position or results of operations.

SFAS No. 144 addresses the financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets.
This statement supercedes SFAS No.121, "Accounting for the Impairment of Lonﬁ—Lived ssets and for Long-Lived
Assets t¢ be Disposed Of' and the accounting and reportintg provisions of APB Opinion No. 30, "Reporting the
Results of Operations — Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual
and Infrequently Oc_currin% Events and Transactions," for the disposal of a segment of a business, as previcusly
defined in that Opinion. SFAS No. 144 provides a single accounting model, based on the framework established in
SFAS No. 121, for long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale. Many of the provisions of SFAS Nec. 121 are
retained, however, SFAS No. 144 clarifies some of the implementation issues related to SFAS No. 121. SFAS No.
144 also broadens the presentation of discontinued operations to include more disposal transactions. This Statement
is_effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001, with early adoption encouraged. The Company
adopted this Statement effective January 1, 2002, as required. The adoption of this Statement did not result mn an
adjustment to the Company's financial statements on January 1, 2002.

Reclassifications: Certain amounts in the prior periods’ Consolidated Financial Statements have been reclassified to
conform to the current period's presentation.

NOTE 3--Special Charges
Restructuring Charges

NMHEG: During 2001, management committed to the resn'uctuﬁn&rﬁ»f certain operations in Europe for both the
Wholesale and Retail segments of the business. As such, NMHG Wholesale recofgnized a restructuring charge of
approximately $4.5 million pre-tax, classified in the 2001 Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive
Income (Loss) on the line restructuring charges, for severance and other emﬁloyee benefits to be paid to
approximately 285 manufacturing and administrative personnel in Europe. NMHG Retail recognized a restructurin
charge of approximately $4.7 million pre-tax, classified in the 2001 Consolidated Statement of Operations an
Comprehensive Income (Loss) on the line restructuring charges, of which $0.4 million relates to lease termination
costs and $4.3 million relates to severance and cother employee benefits to be paid to approximately 140 service
technicians, salesmen and administrative personne! at wholly owned dealers in Europe. Durning 2001, total payments
of $1.7 million have been made to approximately 190 employees for both of these European plans.

During 2000, NMHG made the determination that the consclidation of the Americas' truck assembly activities from
three plants to two plants offers significant opportunity to reduce structure costs while further optimizing the use of

G's global manufacturing capacity. Accordingly, a decision was made to phase out certain manufacturin
activities in the Danville, Illinois, assembly plant. In December 2000, the Board of Directors approve
mana%ement's plan to transfer manufacturing activities from NMHG's Danville plant to its other global
manufacturing plants. The adogtion of this plan resulted in a charge to operations of aﬁproximately $13.9 million
recognized in the 2000 Consolidated Statement of Og)erations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) on the line
restructuring charges. This charge is comprised of a $5.1 million curtailment loss for retirement benefits under a
defined benefit plan, $4.0 million for employee severance to be paid to approximately 425 manufacturing and office
personnel, $2.2 million of asset impairment charges and $2.6 miﬁion for other costs.

As noted above, in connection with thé phase-out of activities at the Danville, Illinois, assembly plant, NMHG
recognized an impairment charge of $2.2 million in accordance with SFAS No. 121, "Accounting for the Impairment
of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets tc Be Disposed Of." The impairment charge relates to certain
fixed assets and leasehold improvements that will either be disposed of or sold at fair market value, which was

estimated to be below the net book value. Fair market value was estimated using current market values for similar
assets.

During 2001, payments of $1.7 million to approximately 350 employees have been made. Ap roximatel¥ $12.0
million of pre-tax costs associated with the Danville phase-out, which were not eligible for accrual as of
December 31, 2000, were expensed during 2001 and classified as cost of sales in the 2001 Consolidated Statement

of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss). In addition, the accrual for restructuring was reduced by $0.4
million in 2002.

Housewares: In 2001, the Board of Directors approved management's plan to restructure HB ©PS' manufacturing
activities in Mexico. Certain of the company's products will be outsourced beginning in 2002 and production in
three of the company's Mexican manufacturing plants will be consolidated intc one plant during 2002 and 2003.
As a result of tgis plan, HBoPS recognized a charge of $12.5 million of which $5.0 million relates to the
impairment of fixed assets, $3.3 million relates to equipment and building lease impairment and clean-up costs,
$2.9 million relates to severance benefits to be paid to approximately 925 manufacturing personnel, $0.6 million
relates to the impairment of inventory and $0.7 million is for other related costs. In the 2001 Consolidated
Statement of Operations and ComE)rehensive Income (Loss), $11.9 million 1s classified on the line restructuring
charges and $0.6 million, which relates to the inventory write-down, is included in cost of sales. As of December
31, 2001, no severance payments were made.
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As noted above, in connection with the restructuring of the manufacturing operations in Mexico, HBoPS
recognized an impairment charge of $5.0 million in accordance with SFAS No. 121. The impairment charge
relates to certain fixed assets that will either be disposed of or sold at fair market value, which is estimated to be
below the net book value, throughout 2002 as tlge outsourcing program progresses. Fair market value was
estimated using current market values for similar assets.

Alse in 2001, HBoPS recognized a charge of $0.8 million, classified on the line restructuring charges in the 2001
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss), relating to severance benefits to be paid
to personnel located at the company's headquarters and affecting all functional areas of the business. is
restructuring plan was initiated Il)riman'ly as a cost-cutting measure in response to reduced overall consumer demand
caused by the 2001 economic slowdown. Headcount was reduced by 36, or apgrommately 10 percent of the total
corporate personnel. As of December 31, 2001, payments of $0.3 million have been made. Pazyments in respect to
the remainder of the charge, or $0.5 million, are expected to be made during the first half of 2002.

In 2000 and 1999, HB<PS recogll'xized an accrual for employee severance and related costs of $0.5 million for 40

manufacturing employees and $1.2 million for 130 manufacturing employees, respectively, in connection with
transitioning activities to HBoPS' Mexican facilities. During 2001, 2000, and 1999 payments of $0.7 million to
approximately 25 employees, $2.5 million to approximately 225 employees and $1.7 million to approximately 350
employees, respectively, have been made. See also the table below for detail of the employee severance accrual
activity during this transition period. As of December 31, 2001, these restructuring plans are complete.

In 2000, HBPS recognized an impairment charge of $1.2 million in accordance with SFAS No. 121 related to
certain assets that will be disposed as a result of the transitioning of activities from manufacturing facilities in the
United States o manufacturing facilities in Mexico.

The changes to the Company's restructuring accruals are as follows:

Asset Lease Curtailment
Severance | Impairment | Impairment Loss Other Total
NMHG Wholesale
Balance at December 31, 1999 $ - 3 —$ — 3 - 3 — 3 —
Provision 4.0 22 - 5.1 26 13.9
Payments . . . . . .
Balance at December 31, 2000 4.0 273 — 5.1 26 13.9
Provision (reversal), net 42 — - — D 4.1
Payments/assets disposed (2.9) 2.2) . . (1) (52)
Balamce at December 31, 2001 ¢ 53 S — S — $ 51 S 24 S 12.8
NMHG Retail
Balance at December 31, 2000 $ —_— 3 — 5 - $ -3 I -
Provision 43 4 47
Payments (4) (4)
Balance at December 31, 2001 ¢ 39§ —_ $ 4 S — S — S 43
Housewares
Balance at December 31, 1998 $ 32 S —_— S — 3 —_— 3 — $ 32
Provision 12 — — — — 12
Payments (1.7) (1.7)
Balance at December 31, 1999 2.7 — - — — 27
Provision 5 12 1.7
Payments (2.5) 2.5)
Balance at December 31, 2000 7 1.2 — — — 1.9
Provision 37 5.0 3.3 7 12.7
Payments/assets disposed (1.0) (12) . . . (2.2)
Balance at December 31, 2001 g 34 S 50 S 33 $ — 8 7S 12.4
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Other Special Transactions

NACoal: In 2000, NACoal recognized a charge of $2.4 million, included in selling, general and administrative
expenses in the accompanyinF Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss), for the
write-off of previousl% capitalized development costs incurred for a power plant and mine development project in
Turkey. In 2000, NACoal determined that it would cease development of this project. ‘

NMHG: In 2001, NMHG recognized income of $8.0 million classified in other income (expense) in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Com(?rehenswe Income (Loss) resulting from the receipt of insurance
proceeds relating to flood damage in September 2000 at NMHG's Sumitomo-NACCQO joint venture in Japan.

NACCO & Cther: In addition to the extraordinary %Sin described in Note 4, in 2000, Bellaire Corporation
("Bellaire," a wholly owned non-operating subsidiary of NACCO) recognized a charge of $5.6 million included in
the accompanﬁling Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) as closed mine
obligations, which is 1p.an‘t of other income (expense), related primarily to an increase in liabilities for Black Lung and
other retiree medical benefits, and to environmental obligations arising from former Eastern U.S. underground
mining operations. The Company Feriodically reviews its assumptions used to estimate these reserves. Revisions
made to the Company's estimate of environmental clean-up costs, mortality tables used for Black Lung liabilities,
discount rates and changes in the expected health care trend rates resulted in an increase to the estimated reserve for
these obligations. See also Note 4 and Note 14.

In 1999, NACCO recognized a charge of $2.9 million, included in other-net in the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss), for the write-off of costs incurred to evaluate a
potential business acquisition.

NOTE 4--Extraordinary Gain

The extraordinary gain of $29.9 miilion recognized in 2000, net of $16.1 million in taxes, relates to a reduction in
the accrual for obligations to UMWA. The obligation tc UMWA was initially recognized by Bellaire as an
extraordinary charge in 1992 to accrue for the estimated costs associated with the Coal Act, which is discussed in
more detail in Note 14. In 2000, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit upheld an Opinion by the U.S.
District Court in Columbus, Ohio, which ruled that late assi ents of beneficiaries made to Bellaire were not
allowed as a matter of law. As a result of this event and changes to certain assumptions used to estimate this
cbligaticn, such as the number of beneficiaries and health care trend rates, the aggregate estimated costs associated
with this obliFation are expected to be lower than previously anticipated. Management believes that the estimated
future cost of this obligation has been adequately accrued. See also Note 3 for a discussion of changes to other
closed mine reserves. ,

NOTE 5--Acquisitions and Disposition

NACeal: On October 11, 2000, NACoal acquired certain assets from Phillips Coal Company, including its 75
percent joint venture interest in Mississi ﬁl ignite Mining Company ("MLMC"), its 50 percent joint venture
mterest in Red River Mining Company (R ed River"), the related lignite reserves under committed contracts at
MLMC and Red River and 560 million tons of undeveloped lignite reserves in Texas, Mississippt and Tennessee.
The purchase price for the assets acquired was $128.7 million and was financed with a new five-year, $175.0 million
credit facility that includes a $60.0 million revolving line of credit and a $115.0 million term loan. As a result of the
acquisition, NACoal now owns 100 percent of both MLMC and Red River.

The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting and, accordingly, the results of
operations for the fully consolidated businesses acquired are included in the accompanging financial statements
beginning on October 11, 2000. The purchase price allocation, based on independent third-party appraisals, has
resulted in the allocation of $85.8 million to the value of the existing long-term coal supply agreements with the
customers ("coal supply agreements"). These identifiable intangible assets are amortized over units of production
based on the estimated recoverable tonnages at each respective mine. No goodwill was recognized as a result of this
transaction.

NMHG: In 1998, NMHG announced and began implementation of a strategy to expand into the retail forklift
distribution business. As a result, either 100 percent of the stock or substantially all of the assets of several forklift
truck retail dealerships were acquired in 2001, 2000 and 1999. The dealerships acquired were either existing
independent Hyster or Yale dealerships or were converted to Hyster or Yale dealershjgps at the time of acquisition.
The combined purchase prices of retail dealerships acquired during 2001, 2000 and 1999 were approximately $3.9
million, $16.6 million and $62.4 million, respectively. Funds for the purchases were provided by either borrowin%s
advanced to NMHG Retail by NMHG olesale under existing G Wholesale facilities or by internally
generated cash flows.
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These acquisitions were accounted for as purchases and, accordingly, the results of operations of the acquired
businesses are included in the accompanying financial statements from their respective dates of acquisition.
Goodwill has been recognized for the amount of the excess of the purchase price paid over the fair market value of
the net assets acquired and is amortized on a straight-line basis generally over 40 years. Goodwill recorded in 2001,
2000 and in 1999 as a result of these acquisitions was $2.5 million, $8.9 million and $24.7 million, respectively.

In 2001, NMHG sold certain of its wholly owned dealers. This transaction resulted in initial proceeds of
g% oximately $8.0 millicn and a preliminary charge for the loss on the sale of assets and related wind-down costs of

4 million. The agreement to sell these dealers allows for a final determination of the purchase price during the
first half of 2002 whereby the preliminary purchase price received for certain assets and liabilities may be adjusted.
The Company does not expect the proceeds or the loss on the sale to change significantly as a result of the final
determination of the purchase price. Revenues for these dealers for each of the three years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999 were $45.1 million, $46.8 million and $47.4 million, respectively. Net losses for these dealers
for each of the three years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $18.2 million, $5.5 million and $2.4
million, respectively.

As a result of the acquisitions by NACoal and NMHG, certain liabilities were assumed as follows:
2001 2000 1999

Noncash Investing Activities:
Fair value of assets acquired $ 42 $ 179.8 $ 89.6
Cash paid for the net assets, net of cash acquired (3.9) (145.3) (62.4)
Liabilities assumed $ K] $ 345 27.2

On a pro forma basis, as if the businesses had been acquired on January 1, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively,
revenues, net income los? and earnings per share would not differ matenially from the amounts reported in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements for 2001, 2000 and 1999.

Acquisition of Minority Imterest: In 1999, the Company acquired the remaining 2 percent minority interest in
G for book value of $11.3 million.

NOTE 6—Accounts Recelvable Securitization

On December 5, 2001, NMHG Wholesale's domestic accounts receivable securitization program (the "Program”)
was terminated. Prior to the termination of the pr%mm the transfer of receivables pursuant to the Program were
accounted for as a sale in accordance with SFAS No. 140, "Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial
Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities - a Replacement of FASB Statement No. 125."

As a result of the termination of the Program, NMHG Wholesale will rely on its revolving credit facility ("Facility")
to finance accounts receivable that otherwise would have been sold under the Program prior to December 5, 2001.
Additional borrowings from the Facility of $33.4 million were used to finance the outstanding balance of accounts
receivable sold pursuant to the Program on December 5, 2001. As a result of the termination of the Program, an
increase in interest expense arisin %—om increased outstanding borrowings is expected to be offset by a decrease in
the cost of the Program, which is classified in the statement of operations as other-net.

NMHG Wholesale has agreements with financial institutions cutside of the United States which allow for the sale,
without recourse, of undivided interests in revolving pools of its foreign trade accounts receivable. The maximum
allowable amount of foreign trade receivables to be sold was $72.4 million and $59.6 million at December 31, 2001
and 2000, respectively.

NMHG Wholesale continues to service the receivables sold and maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts based
upon the expected collectibility of all NMHG Wholesale accounts receivable, mc]ludl'nf the portion of receivables
sold. The servicing liability incurred in connecticn with these transactions is not material.

Gross proceeds of $855.7 million, $858.2 miliion, and $655.0 million were received during 2001, 2000 and 1999
rechcti\{ely, and the balance of accounts receivable sold at December 31, 2001 and 2000 was $27.7 million and
$71.6 million, respectively. The discount and any other transaction &ams and losses are included in other-net in the

Consclidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) and totaled $4.7 million, $5.5 million and
$3.8 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
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NOTE 7-Inventeries

Inventories are summarized as follows:

December 31
2001 2000
Manufactured inventories:
Finished goods and service parts -
NMHG $ 99.6 $ 103.1
Housewares 54.0 53.2
153.6 156.3
Raw materials and work in process -
NMHG Wholesale 111.4 157.9
Housewares 10.5 17.8
121.9 175.7
Total manufactured inventories 275.5 3320
Retail inventories:
NMHG Retail 35.8 36.8
Housewares 17.6 19.4
Total retail inventories 53.4 56.2
Total inventories at FIFO 328.9 388.2
Coal — NACoal 17.5 12.0
Mining supplies — NACoal 23.8 23.7
Total inventories at weighted average 41.3 35.7
LIFO reserve: v
NMHG (12.3) (14.8)
Housewares 2.7 2.7
(9.6) (12.1)
S 360.6 $ 411.8

The cost of certain manufactured and retail inventories has been determined usin: ] _
December 31, 2001 and 2000, 60 and 66 percent of total inventories, respectively, were determined using the LIFO

method.

NOTE 8--Property, Plamt and Equipmemnt

Property, plant and equipment, net includes the following:

December 31

the LIFO method. At

2001 2000
Coal lands and real estate:
NACoal $ 30.9 $ 337
Project mining subsidiaries (Note 12) 83.6 80.8
NM%HG 15.8 16.8
Housewares 1.8 1.9
NACCO and Other .1 1
132.2 1333
Plant and equipment:
NACoal . 137.8 85.3
Project mining subsidiaries (Note 12) 500.8 491.1
NMHG Wholesale 413.2 386.4
NMHG Retail 109.1 95.7
Heusewares 175.1 167.7
NACCO and Other 4.6 4.8
1,340.6 1,231.0
Property, plant and eguipment, at cost 1,472.8 1,364.3
Less allowances for depreciation, depletion and amortization 740.8 653.6
¥ 732.0 b 710.7
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Total depreciation, depletion and amortization exlpense on property, plant and equipment was $100.6 million, $90.3
million and $88.5 million during 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Proven and probable coal reserves approximated 2.6 billion and 2.8 billion tons at December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

NOTE 9--Revolving Credit Agreements

Financing arrangements are obtained and maintained at the subsidiary level. NACCO has not guaranteed the long-
term debt or any borrowings of its subsidiaries.

The following table summarizes the Company's available and outstanding borrowings under revolving credit
agreements.

December 31
2001 2000
Available borrowings, net of limitations:
NACoal $ 60.0 $ 60.0
NMHG 450.5 389.6
Housewares 188.7 188.8

S ©99.2 $ 638.4

Current R?rtion of borrowings cutstanding:

ACoal $ -— $ 2.5

NMHG 301.2 33.1
Housewares 23.5 30.7

$ 324.7 $ 66.3

Unused availability™*:

NACoal $ 29.0 $ 29.5
NMHG 149.3 147.5
Housewares 85.2 78.1

S 2635 9 755.1

Weighted average stated interest rate:

NACoa, 4.3% 9.0%
NMHG 2.8% 7.1%
Housewares 2.6% 7.0%

Weighted average effective interest rate
{including interest rate swap agreements):

ACoal 6.2% R.9%
NMHG 5.8% 6.4%
Housewarges 5.7% 6.8%

*Unused availability is determined using the available borrowings, net of limitations, reduced by the current portion and long-
term portion (see Note 10) of revolving credit agreements outstanding.
NACeal: NACoal's non-project mine financing needs are provided by an unsecured revolving tine of credit of up to
$60.0 million and an unsecured term loan with a remaining balance of $100.0 million (the "h%ACoal Facility"). The
NACoal Facility requires annual term loan repayments of $15.0 million, with a final term loan repayment of $55.0
gilli%n ig()%gto er 2005. The revelving credit facility of $60.0 million is available until the facility’s expiration in
ctober .

The NACoal Facility has performance-based pricing which sets interest rates based upon achieving various levels of
Debt to EBITDA ratios, as defined. The NACoal Facility currently %)rovides for, at NACoal's option, Euro-Dollar
Loans which bear interest at LIBOR plus a margin based on the level of Debt to EBITDA ratic achieved and Base
Rate Advances which bear interest at Base Rates (as defined in the agreement). A facility fee, which is determined
based on the level of Debt to EBITDA ratio achieved, is also applied to the aggregate revolving line of credit. At
December 31, 2001, term loan borrowings outstanding bore interest at LIBOR plus 2.25 percent and revolving credit
borrowings cutstanding bore interest at LIBOR plus 1.85 percent. At December 31, 2001, the revolving credit
facility fee was 0.40 percent.

NMHG: NMHG Wholesale's credit agreement provides for an unsecured revolving credit facility (the "Facility")

that permits advances up to $350.0 million and expires in June 2002. The Facility has performance-based pricing

which sets interest rates based upon the achievement of certain financial performance targets. The Facility currently

rovides for, at NMHG Wholesale's option, Euro-Dollar Loans which bear interest at LIBOR plus 0.20 percent and

oney Market Loans which bear interest at Auction Rates (as defined in the agreement) and requires a 0.10 percent
F-18




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NACCQO INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Tabular Amounts in Millions, Except Per Share and Percentage Data)

fee on the available borrowings. The Facility permits NMHG Wholesale to advance funds to NMHG Retail.
Advances from NMHG Wholesale are the primary sources of financing for NMHG Retail.

Because the Facility expires in June 2002, NMHG anticipates that a new credit facility will be obtained in or before
June 2002. While there can be no assurances as to the specific terms of the refinancing, including the nature of the
covenants and restrictions, NMHG expects that interest rates under the new facility will be higher based on its
evaluation of the generally higher interest rate spreads charged today versus interest rate spreads in effect when
NMHG Wholesale's Facility was structured in 1995. NMHG Wholesale expects that the cutstanding balance under
the Facility at the time of refinancing will be financed with a combination of short-term and long-term financing.
However, 1n accordance with accounting principles general% accepted in the U.S., the outstanding balance under the
Facﬂl;‘y will be classified as a current liability until the Facility is refinanced. The amount outstanding that 1s
classified as a current liability at December 31, 2001 is $265.0 million.

NMEG also has separate facilities totaling $76.3 million and $66.4 million at December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. Outstanding letters of credit reduce amounts available under these facilities. A portion of these
facilities is denominated in foreign currencies, primarily the British pound sterling and the Australian dollar. At
December 31, 2001 and 2000, unused availability, net of limitations, under these facilities was $34.3 million and
$26.5 million, respectively. NMHG also maintains various uncommitted lines of credit, which permitted funding up
to $30.0 millicn at December 31, 2001 and 2000. Under these facilities, unused availability was $30.0 million and
$6.0 million at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Housewares: HB<oPS' credit agreement provides for a revolving credit facility (the "HB<©PS Facility") that permits
advances up to $160.0 million and is secured by substantially all of the assets of HBePS. A portion of the
outstanding balance is classified as long-term debt because it is not expected to be repaid during the subsequent
fiscal year. The HB<PS Facility, which expires in May 2003, provides reduced interest rates if HB°PS achieves a
certain interest coverage ratio and allows interest rates quoted under a competitive bid option. The HB ©PS Facility
allows advances of up to $10.0 million from HB¢PS tc KCI. Advances from HB<PS are the primary sources of
financing for KCL

In December 2001, the HB<PS Facility was amended to modify the covenant requirements and redefine covenant
calculations so that the recognition of the restructuring char%e in the fourth quarter of 2001 did not cause a viclaticn
of covenants under the HB*PS Facility. In additicn to the change in the covenant requirements and calculations, the
applicable margin added to the base rate of interest increased and the facility fee on the available borrowings
increased. Prior to the amendment, for the year ended December 31, 2001, the HB<PS Facility provided for an
interest rate of LIBOR plus 0.4375 percent and a facility fee of 0.3125 percent. After the amendment, effective
January 1, 2002, the HB<PS Facility provides for an interest rate of LIBOR plus 2.25 percent and a facility fee of
0.50 percent. Interest rates and facility fees, however, are subject to change based on the level of EBITDA to
interest expense ratic, as defined, HB©PS achieves each quarter.

HBoPS also has separate uncommitted facilities, which may provide funding uf to $30.0 million. - Outstanding
letters of credit reduce amounts available under these facilities. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, availability, net of
limitations, under these facilities was $25.0 million and $29.7 million, respectively.

NOTE 10--Long-term Debt

Subsidiary long-term debt is as follows;
December 31

2001 2000
NACoal:
Long-term portion of revolving credit agreement $ 31.0 $ 28.0
Capital lease obligations and other term loans 125.5 115.3
156.5 143.3
NMHG:
Long-term portion of revolving credit agreements -— 209.0
Capital lease obligations and other term loans 53.2 62.8
53.2 271.8
Housewares:
Long-term portion of revolving credit agreement 80.0 30.0
Capital lease obligations 3 .
§0.3 80.3
Total long-term debt 290.0 4954
Less current portion of capital leases and term loans (41.9) (45.4)

$ 248.1 $ 450.0
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Annual maturities of revolving lines of credit and term lcans are as follows: $352.7 million in 2002, $96.5 million
in 2003, $16.7 million in 2004 and $86.0 million in 2005. Interest paid on revolving credit agreements and long-
term debt was $46.0 million, $31.1 million and $26.4 million during 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Interest
capitalized was $4.4 million, $3.8 million and $1.1 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

The credit agreements for NMHG Wholesale, HB<PS and NACoal contain certain covenants and restrictions. These
covenants regulre, among other things, some or all of the following: maintenance of certain minimum amounts of

net worth and certain specified ratios of working capital, debt to capitalization, debt to EBITDA, interest coverage
and fixed charge coverage. These ratios are calculated at the subsidiary level. Restrictions may also include limits
on capital expenditures, advances to affiliates and dividends. At December 31, 2001, the subsidiaries were in
compliance with the covenants in their credit agreements. '

NQOTE 11--Financial Instruments and Derivative Financial Instruments

Financial Instrumemnts

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate fair
value due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. The fair values of revolving credit agreements and long-
term debt were determined using current rates offered for similar obligations and approximated carrying values at
December 31, 2001 and 2000. Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to conceniration of credit
risk consist principally of accounts receivable and derivatives. e large number of customers comprising the
Company's customer base and their dispersion across many different industries and geographies mitigates
concentration of credit risk on accounts receivable. However, HB¢PS maintains significant accounts receivable
balances with several large retail customers. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, receivables from HBoPS' five largest
customers represented 15.3 percent and 16.1 percent, respectively, of the Conrl?any‘s net accounts receivable. To
further reduce credit risk associated with accounts receiva%lc, the Company performs periodic credit evaluations of
its custemers, but does not generally require advance payments or colﬁteraf The Company enters into derivative
confracts with high-quality financial institutions and limits the amount of credit exposure to any one institution.

Derivative Fimancizl Instruments

Foreign Curremey Derivatives: NMHG and HBoPS held forward foreign cmenc%/ exchange contracts with total
notional amounts of $101.6 million and $3.8 million, respectively, at December 31, 2001, primarily denominated in
euros, British pounds sterling, .Ifa?anese yen and Mexican pescs, NMHG and HB©PS held forward foreign currency
exchange coniracts with total notional amounts of $92.2 million and 3$9.1 million, respectively, at
December 31, 2000, primarily denominated in British dpoundls sterling, euros, Japanese yen and Canadian dollars.
The amount of deferred gain at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, was not material. The fair market value
of these contracts was estimated based on quoted market prices and approximated a net payable of $0.7 million and
$0.8 million at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Interest Rate Derivatives: The following table summarizes the notional amounts, related rates (including
applicable margins) and remaining terms on interest rate swap agreements active at December 31:

Notional Amount Average Fixed Rate Remaining Term at

2001 2000 2001 2000 December 31, 2001
NACoal $ 1327 $ 1479 8.1% 8.3% Various, extending to June 2008
NMHG $ 2250 $ 2150 5.8% 6.3% Various, extending to January 2005
Housewares $ 750 § 80.0 6.3% 6.4% Various, extending to March 2005

At NACoal, $22.7 million and $27.9 million of interest rate swap agreements at December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively, hedge notes payable held by the project mining subsidiaries (see Note 121). Maturities of these interest
rate swap %greements correspond with the maturities of the hedged obligation. The related obligation is included in
current and long-term obligations of project mining subsidiaries in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The net
interest ex%nse paid or received is included in the cost of coal and %assed through to the utility customers. The
remaining NACocal interest rate swap agreements hedge the NACoal Facility as discussed in Note 9. Interest rate
Swﬂa;f agreements held by NMHG have terms that vary from one-year to seven-year periods from inception. Terms
of Housewares' interest rate swap agreements vary from cne-year to four-year periods from inception.

The fair market value of all interest rate swap agreements, which was based on quotes obtained from independent
brokers, was a net payable of $23.2 million and $4.7 million at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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NOTE 12--Obligations of Project Mining Subsidiaries

Three of NACoal's subsidiaries (the "project mining subsidiaries") operate lignite mines under long-term contracts
with various utility customers to sell lignite at a price based on actual cost plus an agreed pre-tax profit per ton. The
utility customers have arranged and guaranteeg the financing for the development and operation of the project
mining subsidiaries. The obligations of these project mining subsidiaries included in the Company's Consolidated
Balance Sheets do not affect the short-term or long-term liquidity of the Company and are without recourse to
NACCO and its NACoal subsidiary.

Obligations of the project mining subsidiaries, less current maturities, consist of the following:

December 31

2001 2000
Capitalized lease obligations $ - 962 $ 104.8
Advances from customers 139.9 140.0
Notes pagable with interest rates rangin
from 2.2% to 6.5% in 2001 and 5.6% to 8.7% in 2000 35.2 37.9

S 271.3 $ 282.7

Advances from customers are used to develop, operate and provide for the ongoing working capital needs of certain
pro{gct mining subsidiaries. The customers have established a repayment schedule for only a portion, or $100.1
million, of the total advances. In addition, portions of the advances are non-interest-bearing. The annual maturities
of advances from customers and notes payable are as follows: $18.3 million in 2002, $10.3 million in 2003, $8.0
million in 2004, $7.2 million in 2005, $'?9 million in 2006 and $141.0 million thereafter.

Interest paid was $16.5 million, $17.1 million and $17.7 million during 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The cost
of coal, which is passed through to the utility customers, includes interest expense.

The project mining subsidiaries lease certain minin%‘_cquipmem under noncancellable capital and operating leases
which expire at various dates through 2007. Future minimum capital and operating lease payments at
December 31, 2001, are:

Capital erating
Leases O]Eeases
2002 A 273 % 46
2003 21.7 4.6
2004 20.2 4.5
2005 19.6 4.5
2006 14.3 24
Subsequent to 2006 50.6 ---
Total minimum lease payments 1537 % 20.6
Amounts representing interest (37.9)

Present value of net minimum lease payments 115.8

Current maturities (19.6)

Long-term capital lease obligation 96.2

Interest expense and amortization in excess of annual lease payments are deferred and recognized in years when
annual Jease payments exceed interest expense and amortization.

]l;rﬁj ect mining assets recorded under capital leases are included in property, plant and equipment and consist of the
ollowing:

December 31

2001 2000
Plant and equipment $ 2113 § 210.9
Less accumulated amortization 133.8 126.8

5 715 % 84.1

During 2001, 2000 and 1999, the project mining subsidiaries incurred capital lease obligations of $8.3 million, $11.6
million and $3.8 million, respectively, in connection with lease agreements to acquire plant and equipment.

The above obligations are secured by substantially all of the owned assets of the respective project mining
subsidiary and the assignment of all rights under its coal sales agreement.
F-21




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NACCO INDUSTRIES, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Tabular Amounts in Millions, Except Per Share and Percentage Data)

NQOTE 13--Leasing Arrangememnts

The Company leases certain office, manufacturing and warehouse facilities, retail stores and machinery and
equipment under noncancellable capital and operating leases that expire at various dates through 2021. NMHG
Retail also leases certain forklift trucks that are held for sale or sublease to customers. Many leases include renewal
and/or purchase options.

Future minimum capital and operating lease payments, excluding project mining subsidiaries, at December 31, 2001,
are;

Capital " Operatin
Legses OEeases &
2002 $ 15.6 $ 66.0
2003 15.9 53.8
2004 10.5 44.8
2005 7.7 352
2006 5.7 26.9
Subsequent to 2006 22.5 45.1
Total minimum lease payments 77.9 $ 2718
Amounts representing interest (15.1)
Present value of net minimum lease payments 2.
Current maturities 3

@;

Long-term capital lease obligation

Aggregate future minimum rentals to be received under noncancellable subleases of forklift trucks as of
December 31, 2001 are $29.8 million. Rental expense for all operating leases, excluding project mining
subsidiaries, consists of the following:

2001 2000 1999
gﬁ&imum rentals $ ?‘; 5 $ jf}%%l § 326
ublease income ( ,gg . —
Rent expense, net $ 41 $ 364 § 326

Assets recorded under capital leases are included in property, plant and equipment and consist of the following
{excluding assets of project mining subsidiaries as indicated in Note 12):

December 31

2001 2000
Plant and equipment $ 94.1 $ 63.3
Less accumulated amortization 31.1 22.4

$ 63.0 $ 40.9

During 2001, 2000 and 1999, capital lease cbligations, excluding project mining subsidiaries, of $30.8 million,
$22.3 million and $13.6 million, respectively, were incurred in connection with lease agreements to acquire plant
and equipment.

NQOTE 14--Self-insurance Reserves and Other

Self-insurance reserves and other consists of the following:

December 31

2001 2000
Undiscounted UMW A obligation $ 36.0 $ 38.0
Present value of other closed mine obligations 24.4 25.0
Other self-insurance reserves 175.1 1374

S 2355 $ 200.4

The UMW A obligation and the other closed mine obligations relate to Bellaire's former Eastern U.S. underground
mining operations and the Indian Head Mine, which ceased operations in 1992. The obligation to UMWA resulted
from the Coal Act, which requires Bellaire to incur additional costs for the medical expenses of certain United Mine

F-22




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NACCOQO INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Tabular Amounts in Millions, Except Per Share and Percentage Data)

Worker retirees. Annual cash payments of approximately $1.9 million, declining steadily over time to
approximately $0.1 million, are expected to be made through 2050. The Company has recorded this obligation on
an undiscounted basis. The other clesed mine obligations include reserves for land reclamation and site treatment at
certain closed eastern underground and western surface mines, as well as reserves for retiree medical benefit costs,
workers' comlpensation and Black Lung benefit costs. Other self-insurance reserves include product liability
reserves, employee retirement obligations and other miscellaneous long-term liabilities.

NQOTE 15--Contingencies

Various legal and regulatory proceedings and claims have been or may be asserted against NACCO and certain
subsidiaries relating to the conduct of their businesses, including product liability, environmental and other claims.
These proceedings are incidental to the ordinary course of business of the Company. Management believes that it
has meritorious defenses and will vigorously defend itself in these actions. Any costs that management estimates
will be gaid as a result of these claims are accrued when the liability is considered probable and the amount can be
reasonably estimated. Although the ultimate dispositicn of these proceedings is not presently determinable,
management believes, after consultation with its legal counsel, that the likelihooi is remote that material costs will
be incurred in excess of accruals already recognized.

Under various financing arrangements for certain customers, including independently owned retail dealershigs,
NMHG provides guarantees of the residual values of the lift trucks, or recourse or repurchase obligations such that
NMHG would be obligated in the event of default by the customer. Generally, G retains a security interest in
the related assets financed such that, in the event that NMHG would become obligated under the terms of the
recourse or repurchase obligations, NMHG would take title to the assets financed. Total guarantees and amounts
subject to recourse or repurchase obligations at December 31, 2001 and 2000 were $158.0 million and $172.8
mil?ion, respectively. The security interest is generally expected to equal or exceed the amotnt of the recourse or
repurchase obligation. Losses anticipated under the terms of the guarantees, recourse or repurchase obligations are
not significant and have been reserved for in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements.

NQTE 16—-Commeon Stock and Earnings per Share

The Class A common stock has one vote per share and the Class B common stock has 10 votes per share. The total
number of authorized shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock at December 31, 2001 was
25,000,000 shares and 6,756,176 shares, respectively. Treasury shares of Class A common stock totaling 1,588,197
and 1,612,762 at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, have been deducted from shares issued.

Steck Options: The 1975 and 1981 stock ?Etion plans, as amended, provide for the granting to officers and other
key employees of options to purchase Class A common stock and Class B common stock of the Company at a price
not less than the market value of such stock at the date of grant. Cptions become exercisable over a four-year period
and expire 10 years from the date of the grant. During the three-year ]geriod ending December 31, 2001, there were
80,701 shares of Class A common stock and 80,100 shares of Class B common stock available for grant. In 1999,
options for 25,000 shares of Class A common stock were exercised at an option price of $35.56. However, no
options were granted during the three-year period ending December 31, 2001 and no options remain outstanding at
the end of each of the three years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999. At present, the Company does not
intend to issue additional stock options.

Earnings per Share: For purposes of calculating the basic and diluted earniriﬁs per share, no adjustments have
been made to the reported amounts of net income. The share amounts used for the year ended December 31 are as

follows:
2001 2000 1999
Basic common shares (weighted average) 8.190 8.167 8.150
Dilutive stock options -— - 004
Diluted common shares 8.190 8.167 8.154
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NOTE 17--Income Taxes

The components of income (loss) before income taxes and provision for income taxes for the year ended
December 31 are as follows:

2001 2000 1999

Income (loss) before income taxes,
minerity imterest, extracrdinary gain
and cumulative effect of accounting changes:

Domestic g 1 11.9% $

33.5

Foreign
454y §

Income tax provision (benefit)
Current tax provision (benefit):
Federal
State
Foreign
Total current
Deferred tax provision (benefit):
Federal
State
Forei
Total deferred
Increase (decrease) in valuation allowance

vl s inte [

Substantially all of the Company's interest expense and goodwill amortization has been allocated to domestic
income (loss) before income taxes.

The Company made income tax payments of $23.5 million, $36.6 million and $44.2 million during 2001, 2000 and
1999, rg:spiectively. During the same period, income tax refunds totaled $8.5 million, $2.5 million and $1.4 million,
respectively.

A reconciliation of the federal statutory and effective income tax for the year ended December 31 is as follows:

2001 2000 1999
Imcome (loss) before income taxes, minority
interest, extraordinary gaim and cumulative
effect of accounting changes: - S (454 $§ 600 $ 86.6
Statutory taxes at 35.0% $ (15.9) $ 210 $ 303
Valuation allowance 5.5 (3.1) 1.2
Amortization of goodwill 5.3 52 52
Foreign statutory rate differences N .8 gl 4
Percentage depletion (3.8 (3.3; 3.6
Earnings reported net of taxes 9 (2 (.6
State income taxes Ko 2.5 33
Export benefits 5 (1.0) %1.3;
Other-net 3 4 14
Income tax provision (benefit) S (9.9 $ 223 § 317
Effective rate 21.8% 37.2% 36.6%

The Company does not provide for deferred taxes on certain unremitted foreign earnings. Management has decided
that the earnings of G's foreign subsidiaries have been and will be indefinitely reinvested in NMHG's forei
operations and, therefore, a reserve for unremitted foreign earnings is not required. As of December 31, 2001, the
cumulative unremitted earnings of the Company's foreign subsigiaries are $158.9 million. It is impracticable to
determine the amount of unrecognized deferred taxes with respect to these earnings; however, foreign tax credits
would be available to reduce U.S. income taxes in the event of a distribution.
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A detailed summary of the total deferred tax assets and liabilities in the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets
resulting from differences in the book and tax basis of assets and liabilities follows:

December 31
2001 2000
Deferred tax assets
Accrued expenses and reserves $ 92.4 $ 79.6
Accrued pension benefits 21.9 6.1
Other employee benefits 19.3 16.7
Net operatmlgjﬁ%;]canyforwards 16.3 13.1
Reserve for A 13.6 13.6
Total deferred tax assets 163.5 - 129.1
Less: Valuation allowance (16.1) (4.6)
153.4 124.5
Deferred tax labilities
Depreciation and depletion 43.9 45.8
Inventories 14.5 14.9
Other 28.7 16.9
Total deferred tax liabilities 87.1 77.6
Net deferred tax asset S 66.3 3 46.9

The Company pericdically reviews the need for a valuation allowance against certain deferred tax assets and
recognizes these assets to the extent that realization is more likely than not. Based on a review of earnings history
and frends, forecasted eamings and exgliration of carryforwards, the Comgwany believes that the valuation allowance
govidedl is appropriate. In 2001, the valuation allowance increased to $10.1 million from $4.6 million at

ecember 31, 2000. At December 31, 2001, the Company had $5.9 million of net operating loss carryforwards
which expire, if unused, in years 2002 through 2021 and $10.4 million which are not subject to expiration.

The tax returns of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries are being examined by various taxing authorities. The
Company has not been informed of any material assessment resulting from these examinations and will vigorously
contest any material assessment. Management believes that any potential adjustment would not materially affect the
Company's financial condition or results of operations.

NOTE 18—-Retirement Benefit Plams

Definmed Bemefit Plans: The Company maintains various defined benefit pension plans coverinf most of its
employees. These plans provide benerits based on years of service and average compensation during certain
peniods. The Company's policy is to make contributions to fund these plans within the range allowed by applicable

regulations. Plan assets consist primarily of publicly traded stocks, investment contracts and government and
corporate bonds.

In 1996, pension benefits were frozen for employees covered under NMHG's and HB<PS' United States plans,
except for those NMHG employees participating in collective bargaining agreements. As a result, in the United
States only NACoal employees and certain G employees covered under collective bargaining agreements will
earn retirement benefits under defined benefit pension plans. Other employees of the Companf', including NMHG
and HB<PS employees whose pension benefits were frozen as of December 31, 1996, will receive retirement
benefits under defined contribution retirement plans.

As a result of manaéement's decision to phase out certain manufacturing activities in the NMHG Danville, Illinois,
assembly plant, the Company recognized a curtailment loss of $5.1 million in 2000. See also Note 3.
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Set forth below is a detail of the net periodic pension (income) expense and the assumpticns used in accounting for
the United States and the United Kingdoin defined benefit plans for the years ended December 31.

2000 1999

United States Plans
Service cost . 3.0 33
Interest cost . 10.3

Expected return on plan assets . (12. g
Ammortization of transition asset . .
Amortization of prior service cost . .
Recognized actuarial (gain) loss . (1.3)
Curtailment loss
Net periodic pension (income) expense
Assumptions:
Weighted average discount rates 7.50% 8.00% 7.75%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 3.75% 4.25% 4.25%
Expected leng-term rate of return on assets 2.00% 9.00% 9.00%
United Kingdom Plan
Service cost $ 20§ 20 $ 24
Interest cost 3.2 3.0 3.1
Expected return on plan assets (§.2§ (4.3; (3.7%
Amortization of transition asset (1 (.1 (1
Amortization of prior service cost N 1 1
Recognized actuarial {gain) loss (.5) (4) 4
Net pericdic pension (income) expense $ 5 3 3 $ 2.2
Assumptions:
Weighted average discount rates 6.25% 6.75% 6.25%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 3.95% 4.25% 3.50%
Expected long-term rate of return on assets 2.00% 9.00% 7.50%
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The following sets forth the changes in the benefit obligation and the plan assets during the year and reconciles the
gndedbstaguls of the defined benefit plans with the amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at
ecember 31:

2001 2000
United United “United United
States Kingdom States Kingdom
Plans Plan Plans Plan
Chamnge in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year S 143.8 $ 499 $ 1346 $ 514
Service cost 2.6 2.0 3.0 2.0
Interest cost 11.4 3.2 10.3 3.0
Actuarial (gain) loss 1.5 5.6 1.8 (.63
Benefits paid (8.5) (1.5) (7.5) (2.1
Plan amendments -— -— 1.6 -
Foreign currency exchange rate changes — (1.4) -— %4.0)
Benefit obligation at end of year § 1508 § 576 $ 1438 5 N
Change in plan assets :
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 163.1 $ 65.2 $ 1519 § 595
Actual return on plan assets (23.1) (14.0) 174 104
Employer contributions 2 1.5 14 1.7
Employee contributions —_ 5 --- 5
Benefits paid 8.6) 11.4% (s 2.1
Foreign currency exchange rate changes — 1.9 1 4.8
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 1316  § 499 3.1 52
Net amount recognized
Plan assets in excess of obligation $ %2 s G.7D $ 193 § 155
Unrecognized prior service cost ) 7 1.2 8
Unrecognized actuarial (gain) loss 1.2 19.1 (41 .63 (5.2;
Unrecognized net transition asset (1 (-2) (.1 (3
Contributions in fourth quarter — 3 - 3
Net amount recognized S (19.9) § 122 $ 212y § 111

Amonnts recognized in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets consist of:

Prepaid benefit cost $ 2.7 $ — $ 57 $ 111
Accrued benefit liability 29.7) (S.g) (30.0) -
Intangible asset 3 . 7 -
Accumulated other comprehensive income 4.2 10.6 1.4 -—
Deferred tax asset 2.6 6.5 i.0 —

Net amount recognized $ 9.9y § 122 $ (212) § 111

substantially all U.S. employees and similar plans for employees outside of the U.S. For NACCO and those
subsidiaries, the applicable company matches employee contributions based on plan provisions. addition,
NACCO and certain other subsidiaries have defined contribution retirement Elans whereby the applicable company's
coniribution to participants is determined annually based on a formula which includes the effect of actual compared
to targeted operating results and the age and compensation of the particigants. Total costs, including Compan
contri uti?ns, for these plans were $19.0 million, $20.7 million and $21.6 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999,
respectively.

NOTE 19--Business Segmemnts

Defined Contribution Plans: NACCO and its subsidiaries have defined coniribution (401(]% plans for
In

Financial information for each of NACCO's reportable segments, as defined by SFAS No. 131, "Disclosures about
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information," is presented in the following table. See Note 1 for a discussion
of the Company's operating segments and preduct lines. NACCQO's non-operating segment, NACCQC and Other,
includes the accounts of the parent company and Bellaire.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in Note 2 — Accounting Policies. NMHG
Wholesale derives a portion of its revenues from transactions with NMHG Retail. The amount of these revenues,
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which are based on current market prices on similar third-party transactions, are indicated in the following table on
the line "NMHG Eliminations" in the revenues section. No other intersegment sales transactions occur. Other

Intersegment transactions are recognized based on similar third-party transactions; that is, at current market prices.
On January 1, 2000, NACCO began charging fees to its operating subsidiaries for services provided by the corporate
headquarters. The 2001 and 2000 pre-tax fees of $10.5 million and $10.1 million, respectively, included in the line
other-net, income éexpense), was charged to the operating segments based on fees mcurred on their behalf, including
services performed for each.
2001 2000 1999
Revenues from external custemers
NMHG Wholesale $14633 $ 1,750.0 $ 1,6189
NMHG Retail 298.8 280.3 228.1
NMHG Eliminations 89, (98.2) (85.6)
NMHG Consolidated 1,6724 1,932.1 1,761.4
NACoal 333.3 289.2 277.7
Housewares 632.1 649.9 596.7
NACCO and Other A 1 .1
$26379 § 28713 § 2,635.9
Gross profit
G Wholesale $ 1899 $ 2929 § 2557
NMHG Retail 54.8 54.1 493
NMHG Eliminations 4.9 5 (L.5)
NMHG Consolidated 249.6 3475 3035
NACoal 75.1 49.0 527
%%%géarc% oh 11]1(1(12,% 1 1%.?) 128.;
an er . . g )
S 434S 5 5162 484.7
S@ﬂlﬂ\ﬁ%%_ﬁgememﬂ and administrative expenses
G Wholesale $ 1731 § 1815 § 1696
NMHG Retail 84.7 69.8 63.9
NMHG Eliminations 2.2) (&) (.5)
NMHG Consolidated 255.6 2504 2330
NACoal 13.2 17.4 12.3
Housewares 102.7 87.6 82.7
NACCO and Other 9.5 11.6 9.0
$ 3810 §$§ 3670 § 3370
Ameortization of goodwill
G Wholesale $ 114 § 116 § 116
NMHG Retail 1.5 1.0 .6
NMHG Consolidated 12.9 12.6 12.2
Housewares 3.0 3.1 3.0
§ 159 3§ 157 § 1532
COperating profit (loss)
NMH(% &Iholesale $ 13 § 8.9 § 745
NMHG Retail (46.5) (16.7) (1 5.2%
NMHG Eliminations 7.1 14 (1.0
NMHG Consolidated (38.1) 70.6 583
NACoal 61.9 316 40.4
NACCD smd Ot ER _ din o
and Other s 7 .
® 5.7 117.9 131.3
Operating profit (loss) excluding goodwill amortization
NM]H[é ‘&Iholesale $ 127 § 975 § 861
NMHG Retail (45.0) (15.7) (14.6%
NMHG Eliminations 7.1 14 (1.0
NMHG Consolidated (25.2) 832 70.5
NACoal 61.9 31.6 40.4
Housewares % .41% 30.5 44.8
NACCO and Other 0.7 (1L.7) {(9.2)
§ 216 § 1336 § 1465




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NACCO INDUSTRIES, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Tabular Amounts in Millions, Except Per Share and Percentage Data)

Interest expense
NMHG olesale
NMHG Retail
NMHG Eliminations

NMHG Consolidated
NACoal

Housewares
NACCQO and Other
Eliminations

Project mining subsidiaries

Imterest income
NMHG Wholesale
NMHG Retail
NMHG Eliminations

NMHG Consolidated
NACeal

Housewares
NACCO and Other
Eliminations

Other-net, income (expense) — {exciuding interest income)

NMHG Wholesale
NMHG Retail
NMHG Eliminations
NMHG Consolidated
NACoeal
Housewares
NACCOQO and Other

Income tax ‘s{lovision (benefit)

NMHG olesale

NMHG Retail

NMHG Eliminations
NMHG Consolidated
NACoal

Housewares
NACCO and Other

Net income {ioss)
NMHG olesale
NMHG Retail
NMHG Eliminations

NMHG Consolidated
NACoeal

Housewares
NACCO and Other

2001 2000 1999
$ (129) $ (134) § (169
(gs.os (54.62 ((3.()%
52 (2?.2 : .9)

23, 2 1950
o (é(% 6.7
((.2 (2 (.7%

) 5 7

0.5 300 757
16.4 16 176
$(56.9) 471 433
$ 34 $ 22 8§ 82
2 1 2

2z -_ 36)

36 73 23

4 7 7

e T~ 1

{(.5) (.5) (7)

§ 38 3§ 25  § 49
600 $(142) $ (34
(2)? ( .2) (.3)

= ) 1

§s.s (141 €y

13 12 3

(i 26 5

9.2 46 25
$20 3$(33) 3 (63
$ (6 S 246 § 244
(14.6 (6.7; §4.9§

. (5 11
{145 174 1853
9.0 (1 45
(4.@; 7.4 13.5

(4 2.4) 47

§ 09 § 223 ¥ 317
$ (141 $ 370 39.0
§36.5 (14.3; (12.3i
1.2 (14 5
@94 213 737
25, 126 165
(122) 8.8 212
- 25.0 (83)

$ G600 $ 677 $ 331
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2001 2000 1999
Total assets
NMHG Wholesale $ 1,164.9 $1,167.2 $1,040.5
NMEG Blominati (ah (3 (489
1minations . . .
NMHG Consolidated 1,205.1 ,241.7 1,178.
NACoal 250.3 204.1 64.3
Housewares 347.5 366.4 372.8
NACCO and Other 60.4 41.8 47.6
1,863.3 1,854.0 1,663.3
Project mining subsidiaries 383.1 389.9 392.0

2,246.4 2,2439 2,055.3

Consolidating eliminaticns (84.5) (50.0) (42.3)
$ Z2,161.9 $2,1939 §$2013.0

Depreciation, depletion and amortization expense
NMEG Wh

olesale $ 470 $ 406 $§ 399
NMHG Retail 13.4 14.0 14.2
NMHG Consolidated 60.4 546 54.1
NACoal 5.1 3.2 3.1
Housewares 21.2 19.3 17.6
NACCO and Other 3 3 4
87.0 774 752
Project mining subsidiaries 30.6 28.7 28.8
$ 1176 § 1061 $ 104.0

Capital expenditures
G Wholesale $§ 466 $§ 433 § 447
NMHG Retail 6.9 8.5 1.5
NMHG Conscilidated 53.5 51.8 46.2
NACoal 18.9 3.9 2.7
Housewares 13.4 22.0 16.5
NACCO and Other 7 3 Bl
86.5 78.0 65.5
Project mining subsidiaries 18.3 15.3 10.0
$ 1048 $ 933 § 755
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DATA BY GEOGRAPHIC AREA

No single country outside of the United States comprised 10 percent or more of the Company's revenues from
unaffiliated customers. The Other category below includes Canada, Mexico, South America and Asia-Pacific. In

addition, no single customer comprised [0 percent or more of the Company's revenues from unaffiliated customers.

Europe,
United Africa and
States Middle East Other Consolidated
2001
Revenues from unaffiliated
customers, based on the
customers’ location S 1.814.2 $ 474.1 $ 349.6 $ 2,637.9
Long-lived assets $ 1,028.5 $ 184.8 $ 127.5 $ 1,340.8
2000
Revenues from unaffiliated
customers, based on the
customers' location $ 22726 $ 3739 § 224.8 $ 28713
Long-lived assets $ 11,0180 $ 199.1 3 131.3 $ 13484
v 1999
Revenues from unaffiliated
customers, based on the
customer's location $ 1,985.1 $ 4915 % 159.3 $ 26359
Long-lived assets $ 926.9 $ 189.8  § 94.0 $ 1,210.7

NOTE 20—-Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

A summary of the unaudited quarterly results of operations for the year ended December 31 is as follows:

2001
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Revenues
NACoal $ 83.3 $ 83.1 $ 824 3 84.5
NMHG Wholesale 442.9 392.0 314.4 314.0
NMHG Retail (including eliminations) 52.7 52.7 45.7 58.0
Housewares 138.3 140.1 155.0 198.7
NACCO and Other -— N -—- -—-
717.2 668.0 597.5 655.2
Gross profit 130.3 116.3 87.2 16¢.7
© emfrﬁmlg profit (loss)

ACoa 16.9 14.8 16.1 14.1
NMHG Wholesale 25.8 7.8 %118.5 $]13.8
NMHG Retail (including eliminations) 3.4 2.8) 159 17.3
Housewares 3.0 1.2 3.2 %9‘,8
NACCO and Other 3.2 (2.9) 2.4 1.2

33.1 18.1 (17.5) (28.0)
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of
accounting chamges 14.4 6.1 (27.5) 27.7)
Cumulative effect of accounting changes (1.3) - -— -—
Net income (loss) S 13.1 S 61 § 275 § (277D
Basic and diluted eamﬁm%s per share
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of
accounting changes $ 1.76  $ 74 8 (3.36) §$ (3.38)
Cumulative effect ot accounting changes (.16) - _— -
Net income (loss) . $ 1.60 S N (336) §  (3.38)
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First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Revenues
NACoal § 715 $ 69.7 $ 73.4 $ 74.6
NMHG Wholesale 438.0 450.0 4143 447.7
NMHG Retail (including eliminations) 445 48.6 49.2 39.8
Housewares 127.9 138.1 162.8 221.1
NACCO and Other - e 1 ---
681.9 706.4 699.8 783.2
Gross profit : 120.2 126.7 1244 144.9
Operating profit (loss
EIACO@.Ig P Qloss) 8.2 8.1 9.3 6.0
NMHG Wholesale 245 28.5 18.9 14.0
NMHG Retail {including eliminations) 3.0 (3.5) 2.4 6.4)
Housewares (.5 2.7 73 17.9
NACCO and Other 24 (2.6) (3.0 (3.7
' : 26.8 332 30.1 27.8
Income before extracrdinary gain 9.2 13.6 8.9 6.1
Extraordinary gain - — --- 29.9
Net imcome $ 9.2 $ 13.6 $ 8.9 3 36.0
Basic and diluted earnings per share
Income before extraordinary gain $ 113 % 167 3 1.09 $ 75
Extraordinary gain - — — 3.66
Net income $ .13 § 167 3 1.09 $ 441

NOTE 21-Parent Company Condensed Balance Sheets
The condensed balance sheets of NACCO, the parent company, at December 31 are as follows:

2001 2000
ASSETS
Current assets $ 120 § 1
QOther assets 4 4
Notes receivable from subsidiaries 23.3 8.4
Investment in subsidiaries
NMHG 382.0 463.0
Housewares 145.6 170.9
NACoeal 48.9 312
Bellaire 2.6 2.2
. , i 579% 667.3
operty, plant and equipment, net . .
]Detre)rred &come taxgs P 3 1.1
Total Assets $ 6154 § 6777
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHCOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities $ 39 $ 9.3
Current intercompany accounts payable, net 313 3.8
Note payable to Bellaire , 46.0 50.3
Notes payable to other subsidiaries — 3.0
Deferred income taxes and other 4.9 49
Stockholders' equity 529.3 606.4
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity S 6154 S 6777

The credit agreements at NACcal, NMHG and Housewares allow the transfer of assets to NACCO under certain
circumstances. The amount of NACCQ's investment in NACoal, NMHG and Housewares that was restricted at
December 31, 2001 totals approximately $541.9 million. Dividends, advances and management fees from its
subsidiaries are the primary sources of cash for NACCO. ~




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NACCQO INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Tabular Amounts in Millions, Except Per Share and Percentage Data)

NOTE 22--Related Party Transactions

NMHG has a 20 percent ownership interest in NMHG Financial Services, Inc. ("NFS"), a joint venture with GE
Capital Corporation, formed primarily for the purpose of providing financial services to independent and wholly
owned Hyster and Yale lift truck dealers and national account customers in the United States. %MHG‘S ownership
in NFS is accounted for using the equity method of accounting.

Generally, NMHG sells lift trucks directly to its customer and that customer may enter into a ﬁnancin§ transaction
with NFS or ancther unrelated party. However, for certain customer transactions, NMHG sells directly to NFS so
that the customer can obtain operating lease financing from NFS. Sales to NES related to these types of transactions
for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $137.5 million, $166.6 million and $8.5 million,
respectively. Amounts receivable from NFS at December 31, 2001 and 2000 were immaterial. Also, from time to
time, G provides recourse or repurchase obligations or guarantees the residual values of the lift trucks
purchased by customers and financed through NFS. See further discussion in Note 15. At December 31, 2001,
approximately $127.1 million of the Company's total guarantees, recourse or repurchase obligations related to
transactions with NFS. For these transactions, NMHG generally retains a security interest in the Iift truck, such that
NMHG would take possession of the lift truck in the event that NMHG would become liable under the terms of the
guarantees or standby recourse or repurchase obligations.

In addition to providing financing to NMHG's customers, NFS provides both lease and debt financing to NMHG.
Oﬁeratin lease obligations relate to specific sale-leaseback-sublease transactions for certain NMHG customers
whereby G sells lift trucks to NFS, NMHG leases these lift trucks back under an operating lease agreement
and NMHG subleases those lift trucks to customers under an operating lease agreement. Debt financing includes
long-term notes payable to NES primarily to finance certain of G's long-term notes receivable from Latin
American customers which arise in the ordinary course cf business. In addition, NES provides, on NMHG's behalf,
installment billings to the Latin American customers, account balance tracking and an inventory management system
to track the equipment covered by the notes. Total gbligations to NFS under the operating lease agreements and
notes payable were $13.7 million and $14.7 million at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

In addition, NMHG is reimbursed for certain services, primarily administrative functions, provided to NFS. The
amount of NMHG's expenses reimbursed by NFS were $1.8 mullion, $1.5 million and $1.1 million in 2001, 2000
and 1999, respectively.

NMHG has a 50 percent ownership interest in Sumitomo NACCQO Materials Handling Group, Inc. ("SN"), a joint
venture with Sumitomo Heavy Industries, Inc., formed primarily for the manufacture and distribution of Sumitomo
branded lift trucks in Japan and the export of Hyster and Yale branded lift trucks and related components and service
parts outside of Japan. %\IMHG'S ownership in SN is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. NMHG
purchases 9Products from SN under normal trade terms. In 2001, 2000 and 1999, purchases from SN were $63.7
million, $9C.5 million and $91.2 million, respectively. Amounts payable to SN at December 31, 2001 and 2000
were $16.1million and $23.6 million, respectively.

The Company expensed $2.2 million, $5.7 million and $4.8 million in the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and
1999, respectively, for legal services rendered by Jones, Day, Reavis & Pogue. A director of the Company is also a
partner at this firm.




NACCO INDUSTRIES, INC. REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

To the Stockholders of NACCO Industries, Inc.

The management of NACCO Industries, Inc. is responsible for the preparation, content and integrity of
the financial statements and related information contained within this report. The accompanying financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
and include amounts that are based on informed judgments and estimates.

The Company's code of conduct, communicated throughout the organization, requires adherence to high
ethical standards in the conduct of the Company's business.

NACCO Industries, Inc. and each of its subsidiaries maintain a system of internal controls designed to
provide reasonable assurance as to the protection of assets and the integrity of the financial statements. These
systems are augmented by the selection of qualified financial management personnel. In addition, an internal
audit function periedically assesses the internal controls.

Arthur Anderson LLP, independent certified public accountants, audits NACCO Industries, Inc. and its
subsidiaries’ financial statements. [is audits are conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States and provide an objective and independent assessment that helps ensure fair
presentation of the Company's operating results and financial position. The independent accountants have access
to all financial records and related data of the Company, as well as to the minutes of stockholders' and directors’
meetings.

The Audit Review Committee of the Board of Directors, composed of independent directors, meets regularly
with the independent auditors and internal auditors to review the scope of their audit reports and to discuss any
action to be taken. The independent auditors and the internal auditors have free and direct access to the Audit
Review Committee. The Audit Review Committee also reviews the financial reporting process and accounting
policies of NACCO Industries, Inc. and each of its subsidiaries.

/s/ Alfred M. Rankin, Jr. ' /s/ Kenneth C. Schilling
Alfred M. Rankin, Jr. Kenneth C. Schilling
Chairman, President and Vice President and Controller

Chief Executive Officer




SCHEDULE I--CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE PARENT
NACCO INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
PARENT COMPANY CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31

2001 2000
(In millions)
Current assets ‘ 3 1284 ¢ 1
Other assets 4 4
Notes receivable from subsidiaries 23.3 8.4
Investment in subsidiaries
NMHG 382.0 463.0
Housewares 145.6 170.9
NACoal 438.9 312
Bellaire 2.6 2.2
57%.1 667.3
Property, plant and equipment, net 3 4
Deferred income taxes 3 1.1
Total Assets $ 6154 § 6777
Current liabilities v $ 39 S 9.3
Current intercompany accounts payable, net 31.3 3.8
Note payable to Bellaire 46.0 50.3
Notes payable to other subsidiaries - 3.0
Deferred income taxes and other 4.9 49
Stockholders' equity 529.3 606.4
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $ 6154 & 6777

See Notes to Parent Company Financial Statements.




SCHEDULE I--CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE PARENT
NACCQ INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year ended December 31
2001 2000 1999

(In millions)

Income (expense):
Intercompany interest expense .1 $ (2) S 7
Other - net 10.5 10.1 (2.6)
8.4 9.9 3.3
Administrative and general expenses 9.4 11.6 8.9

Loss before income taxes (1.0) a.n (12.2)

Income tax benefit &) (.6) (4.6)

Net loss before extraordinary gain and
equity in earnings (loss) of subsidiaries (3) 1. (7.6)

Extraordinary gain, net-of-tax - 21.0 ---

Net income (loss) before equity in earnings (loss)

of subsidiaries (-3) 19.9 (7.6)
Equity in earnings (loss) of subsidiaries (35.7) 47.8 60.7
Net income (loss) $ (36.0) § 677 § 531

See Notes to Parent Company Financial Statements.




SCHEDULE I--CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE PARENT
NACCO INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31
2001 2000 1999
(In millions)
Operating Activities
Net income (loss) $ 36.0) $ 67.7 § 53.1
Equity in (earnings) loss of subsidiaries 35.7 (47.8) (60.7)
Parent company only net income (loss) {.3) 19.9 (7.6)
Extracrdinary gain - (21.0) ---
Deferred income taxes 8 7 1.2
Income taxes net of intercompany tax payments 3.2) 1.0 1.4
Working capital changes (14.2) 3 (.3}
Changes in current intercompany amounts 7 27.5 4.2 2.6
Changes in reserve for future interest on UMW A obligation - (1.6) (1.8)
Other non-cash items 2 (3) 4
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 10.8 32 (6.9)
Investing Activities A
Dividends and advances received from subsidiaries A 1.6 13.9
Notes payable to Bellaire (4.2) 4 2.4)
Expenditures for property, plant and equipment (-2) (.3) D
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment -— 1.4 -—-
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities {4.3) 3.1 11.4
Financing Activities
Cash dividends paid (7.6) (7.2) 7.0)
Purchases of treasury stock -—- - -
Treasury stock sales under stock option and
compensation plans - net 1.2 9 2.5
Net cash used for financing activities (6.5 (6.3) (4.5)

Cash and cash equivalents ‘
Increase {decrease) for the period -—
Balance at the beginning of the period —

Balance at the end of the period $ - 8

See Notes to Parent Company Financial Statements.
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SCHEDULRE I--CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE PARENT
NACCOQO INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001, 2000 AND 1999

The notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, incorporated in Item 14 of this Form 10-K, are hereby
incorporated by reference into these Notes to Parent Company Financial Statements.

NOTE A - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS AND GUARANTEES

NACCO Industries, Inc. ("NACCO," the parent companill) is a holding com(Fany which owns four
i

operating segments. It is NACCO's policy not to guarantee the debt of such subsidiaries.

NOTE B - CASH DIVIDENDS AND ADVANCES TO NACCO

Dividends received from the subsidiaries were $18.0 million in 2001, $19.7 ‘million in 2000, and $16.6
million in 1999.

NOTE C - UNRESTRICTED CASH

The amount of unrestricted cash available to NACCQO, included in Investment in subsidiaries was $25.3
million at December 31, 2001.

NOTE D - EXTRAORDINARY GAIN

A portion of the 2000 extraordinary gain relating to the reversal of the accrual for the obligation to the
United Mine Workers of America Combined Benefit Fund arising as a result of the Coal Industry Retiree
Health Benefit Act of 1992 as discussed in Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements was recorded
on the books of the parent company. The amount recorded by the parent company of $21.0 million, net
of $11.3 million in taxes, combined with the amount recorded by Bellaire Corporation of $8.9 million,
net of $4.8 million in taxes, equals the total extraordinary gain of $29.9 million, net of $16.1 million in
taxes recognized by the Company in 2000.




SCHEDULE I--VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

NACCO INDUSTRIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

COL A. . COL B. COL C. COL D. CCLE.
Additions
Balance at | Chargedto Charged to Balance at
Beginning of | Costsand | Other Accounts | Deductions | End of
Description erio Expenses --Describe --Describe Period
(In millions)
2001
Reserves deducted from asset
accoumis:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 86 $ 41 .8 1 © ¢ 34%s 94
Allowamnce for discoumnts,
adjustments and returns 8.2 15.8 --- 17.8 ® 6.2
Reserve for losses om inventory 22.0 10.6 — 54 W 27.2
Valuation allowance against
deferred tax assets 4.6 5.5 -— -— 10.1
2000
Reserves deducted from asset
accounts:
Allowance for doubtful accounts  $ 74 $ 1.7 $ 2 © 3 7 W 8.6
Allowance for discounts,
adjustments and returns 9.3 21.6 — 227 ® 8.2
Reserve for losses on inventory 22.9 39 8 © 56 W 22.0
Valuaticn allowance against
deferred tax assets 7.9 (3.1) (2 © — 4.6
1999
Reserves deducted from asset
accounts:
Allowance for doubtful accounts  $ 78 $ 22§ 2 © g 28 Wg 74
Allowance for discounts,
adjustments and returns 7.8 23.1 216 ® 9.3
Reserve for losses on inventory 21.5 8.6 (4) © 68 @ 22.9
Valuation allowance against
deferred tax assets 6.7 1.2 - -- 7.9
Pwrite-offs, net of recoveries.
(B)Payments.
©Ogubsidiary's foreign currency translation adjustments and other.
- (PBalances which are not required to be presented and those which are immaterial have been omitted.
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EXHIBIT INDEX

(3) Articles of Incorporation and By-laws.

(i) Restated Certificate of ]Incorjﬁgmtﬁon of the Company is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(1) to the
?%ﬁ’%l 2:?my's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1992, Commission File Number

(i) Restated By-laws of the Company are incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(ii) to the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1992, Commission File Number 1-9172.

(4) Instruments defining the rights of security holders, including indentures.

() The Company by this filing agrees, upon request, to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission
the instruments defining the rights of holders of Long-Term debt of the Company and its subsidiaries where the total
amount of securities authorized thereunder does not exceed 10% of the total assets of the Company and its
subsidiaries on a consclidated basis.

(ii) The Mortgage and Security Agreement, dated April 8, 1976, between The Falkirk Mmm%\%ompmy (as
Mortgagor) and Cooperative Power Association and United Power Association (collectively as Mortgagee) is
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(ii) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1992, Commission File Number 1-9172.

(i) Amendment No. 1 to the Morigage and Security Agreement, dated as of December 15, 1993, between
Falkirk Mining Company (as Mortgagor) and Cooperative Power Association and United Power Association
(collectively as Mortgagee) is incorporated bf/ reference to Exhibit 4(jii) to the Company's Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997, Commission File Number 1-9172.

(iv) Stockholders’ Agreement, dated as of March 15, 1990, among the signatories thereto, the Company and
Ameritrust Comﬁ»any National Association, as depository, is ﬁmcogomted herein by reference to Exhibit 2 to the
i}%?%%lﬁp filed ]%m March 29, 1990 with respect to the Class B Common Stock, par value $1.00 per share, of

ustries, Inc.

(v) Amendment to Stockholders’ Agreement, dated as of April 6, 1990, among the signatories thereto, the
Comgamy and Ameritrust Company National Association, as depository, is incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4 to Amendment No. 1 to the Schedule 13D filed on April 11, 1990 with respect to the Class B Common
Stock, par value $1.00 per share, of NACCO Industries, Inc.

(vi) Amendment to Stockhclders' Agreement, dated as of April 6, 1990, among the signatories thereto, the
Company and Ameritrust Company National Association, as depositery, is incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 5 to Amendment No. ! to the Schedule 13D filed on April 11, 1990 with respect to the Class B Common
Stock, par value $1.00 per share, of NACCO Industries, Inc.

(vii) Amendment to Stockholders' Agreement, dated as of November 17, 1990, among the signatories
therete, the Company, and Amerittust Company National Association, as depository, is incorporated herein by
reference to Amendment No. 2 to the Schedule [3D filed on March 18, 1991 with respect to the Class B Common
Stock, par value $1.00 per share, of NACCO Industries, Inc.

(viii) Amendment to Stockholders’ Agreement, dated as of November 14, 1996, among the signatories
thereto, the Company, the New Participating Stockholders (as defined therein) and Key Bank, N.A. (successor to
Ameritrust C@mpang National Association), as d%posittory, is incorporated herein by reference to Amendment No. 3
to the Schedule 13D filed on November 26, 1996, with respect to the Class B Common Stock, par value $1.00 per
share, of NACCO Industries, Inc.

(ix) Amendment to Stockholders' A%reemem, dated as of November 14, 1996, amolﬂ%g the signatories
thereto, the Company, the New Participating Stockholders (as defined therein) and Key Bank, N.A. (successor to
Ameritrust Company National Association), as d%posﬁmry, is incorporated herein by reference to Amendment No. 3
to the Schedule 13D filed on November 26, 1996, with respect to the Class B Common Stock, par value $1.00 per
share, of NACCO Industries, Inc.

(x) Amendment to Stockhelders' Agreement, dated as of April 9, 1998, by and among KeyCorp Shareholder
Services, Inc., the Company, the Participating Stockholders (as defined therein) and the New Participating
Stockholders (as defined therein) is incorporated by reference to Amendment No. 6 to the Schedule 13D filed on
March 25, 1999, with respect to the Class B Common Stock, par value $1.00 per share, of NACCO Industries, Inc.
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(xi) Amendment to Stockholders' Agreement, dated as of December 26, 1998, by and among KeyCorp
Shareholder Services, Inc., the Company, the Pamicnpatméﬁ Stockholders (as defined therein) and the New
Participating Stockholders (as defined therein) is incorporated by reference to Amendment No. 6 to the Schedule
ﬁ? filed (])fﬁ March 25, 1999, with respect to the Class B Common Stock, par value $1.00 per share, of NACCO

ustries, Inc. : :

(xii) Amendment to Stockholders' Agreement, dated as of November 30, 1999, by and among First Chicago
Trust Company of New York, the Company and the Pmicijpatﬂng Stockholders (as defined therein) is incorporated

l}éy reference to Amendment No. 7 to the Schedule 13D filed on March 30, 2030, with respect to the Class B
ommon Stock, par value $1.00 per share, of NACCO Industries, Inc.

(xiii) Amendment to Stockholders' Agreement, dated as of November 30, 1999, by and among First Chicago

Trust Company of New York, the Company and the PmiciFaQMg Stockholders (as defined therein) 1s incorporated

1%3/ reference to Amendment No. 7 to the Schedule 13D filed on March 30, 2000, with respect to the Class B
ommon Stock, par value $1.00 per share, of NACCO Industries, Inc.

(xiv) Amendment to Stockholders' Agreement, dated as of March 30, 2000, by and among First Chicago

Trust Company of New York, the Company, the Pmﬁcipaﬁng Stockholders (as defmed therein) and the New

PM%&Mg Stockholders (as defined therein) is incorporated by reference to Amendment No. 7 to the Schedule

l%ﬂfdﬂl) ed Oﬁn]? March 30, 2000, with respect to the Class B Common Stock, par value $1.00 per share, of NACCO
ustries, Inc.

(xv) Amendment to Stockholders' Agreement, dated as of October 31, 2000, by and among First Chicago

Trust Company of New York, the Comﬁmg and the Participating Stockholders (as defined therein) is incorporated

by reference to Amendment No. 8 to the Schedule 13D filed on February 14, 2001, with respect to the Class B
ommon Stock, par value $1.00 per share, of NACCO Industries, Inc.

(xvi) Amendment to Stockholders’ Agreement, dated as of October 31, 2000, by and among National City

Bank (Cleveland), the Company, the Participating Stockholders (as defined therein) and the New Participating

Stockholders (as defined &herem% is incorporated by reference to Amendment No. 8 to the Schedule 13D filed on

Jﬂ;lebmmy 14, 2001, with respect to the Class B Common Stock, par value $1.00 per share, of NACCO Industries,
C.

(xvii) Amendment to Stockholders' Agreement, dated as of February 14, 2001, by and among National City

Bank (Cleveland), the Company, the Participating Stockholders (as defined therein) and the New Participating

Stockholders (as defined therein) is incorporated by reference to Amendment No. 8 to the Schedule 13D filed on

%bmary 14, 2001, with respect to the Class B Common Stock, par value $1.00 per share, of NACCQO Industries,
c.

xvill) Amendment to Stockholders’ Agreement, dated as of February 14, 2002, by and among National City

Bank (Cleveland), the Company, the Participating Stockholders (as defined therein) and the New Participating

Stockholder (as defined therein) is incorporated by reference to Amendment No. 9 to the Schedule 13D filed on

]%Fﬁfbmary 14, 2002, with respect to the Class B Common Stock, par value $1.00 per share, of NACCO Industries,
c.

(10) Material contracts.

i *(1) The NACCO Industries, Inc. 1975 Stock Option Plan (as amended and restated as of July 17, 1986) is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10() to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1991, Commission File Number 1-9172. ‘

*(it) Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for incentive stock options granted before 1987 under The
- NACCO Industries, Inc. 1975 Stock Option Plan (as amended and restated as of uﬂi 17, 1986) is incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10(ii) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1991, Commission File Number 1-9172.

*(i1i) Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for incentive stock options granted after 1986 under The
NACCQO Industries, Inc. 1975 Stoeck Option Plan (as amended and restated as of Ju % 17, 1986) is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10(iii) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1991, Commission File Number 1-9172.

*(iv) Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under The NACCO Industries, Inc., 1975 Stock

Option Plan (as amended and restated as of July 17, 1986) is incorporated herein by reference to Esxhibit 10(v) to

IEI]\TIne %oém?ggnf% Annual Report on Form [0-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1991, Commission File
umber 1- .

*(v) The NACCO Industries, Inc. 1981 Stock Option Plan (as amended and restated as of July 17, 1986) is

mcqcplgomfﬁed herein by reference to Exhibit 10(v) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1991, Commission File Number 1-2172.
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~ *(vi) Form of Nen-Qualified Stock Option Agreemem under The NACCO Industries, Inc. 1981 Stock

Option Plan (as amended and restated as of July 17, 1986) is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(vi) to

%e %%mfagnf{;sz Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1991, Commission File
umber - .

*%ﬁ) Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for incentive stock options granted before 1987 under The
NACCQO Industries, Inc. 1981 Stock Option Plan (as amended and restated as of uﬂ%/(]j, 1986) is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10(vii) to the Company's Annuai Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1991, Commission File Number 1-9172.

*(viii) Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for incentive stock options granted after 1986 under The
NACCO Industries, Inc. 1981 Stock Option Plan (as amended and restated as of Ju {(17, 1986) is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10(viii) tc the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1991, Commission File Number 1-2172.

__*(ix) The Retirement Benefit Plan for Alfred M. Rankin, Jr., effective as of January 1, 1994 is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10 (ix) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1994, Commission File Number 1-9172.

*(x) Amendment No. 1, dated as of March 15, 1995, to the Retirement Benefit Plan for Alfred M. Rankin,
Ir. is mcggpomted herein by reference to Exhibit 10 (x) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1994, Commission File Number 1-9172.

*(xi) Instrument of Adoption and Merger for NACCO Industries, Inc. for the NACCO Materials Handlin
Group, Inc. Unfunded Benelit Plan (As Amended and Restated Effective October 1, 1994) dat
December 30, 1994, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(xxii) to the Company's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1994, Commission File Number 1-9172.

*(xit) Instrument of Withdrawal and Transfer of Liabilities from The North American Coal Corporation
Deferred Compensation Plan for Management Emp]loyees, effective as of December 31, 1994, is incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10(xxiii) to the Compan‘;'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1994, Commission File Number 1-9172.

*(xiil) NACCO Industries, Inc. Annual Incentive Compensation Plan, effective as of January 1, 2001, is
incorporated herein by reference tc as Exhibit 10(xx) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2000, Commission File Number 1-9172.

*(v) NACCO Industries, Inc. Su g}lememal Annual Incentive Compensation Plan, effective as of
January 1, 2001, is attached hereto as Exhibit [0(xiv).

*(xv) NACCO Industries, Inc. Executive Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, effective as of
January 1, 2001, is attached hereto as Exhibit 10(Gxv).

(xvi) Assumption Agreement, made as of December 20, 1991, between the Company and Citicorp North
America, Inc., as agent is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(xciii) to the Company's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1991, Commuission File Number 1-9172.

(xvii) Intentionally left blank.

#(xvill) NACCO Industries, Inc. Non-Emplogee Directors' Equﬁty Compensation Plan, effective
January 1, 1992, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(cxi) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 1992, Commission File Number 1-2172.

*(xix) Amendment No. 2, dated June 30, 1995, to the Retirement Benefit Plan for Alfred M. Rankin, Jr. (as
amended and restated effective January 1, 1994) is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10 {chxi) to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1995, Commission File Number 1-9172.

] *(xx) NACCO Industries, Inc. 2002 Annual Incentive Compensation Plan, effective as of January 1, 2002,
is attached hereto as Exhibit 1 0(xx).

*(xxi) Amendment No. 3, dated as of September 13, 1999, to the Retirement Benefit Plan for Alfred M.
Rankin, Jr. (as amended and restated effective January 1, 1994) is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
%%(xﬁ) t%ghel %{in%mny’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999, Commission

e Number 1- .




*(xxil) Amendment No. 4, dated as of June 23, 2000, to the Retirement Benefit Plan for Alfred M. Rankin,
Jr. (as amended and restated effective January 1, 1994) is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(xxii) to the
%%Ein g.ny’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000, Commission File Number

*(xxiil) The NACCO Industries, Inc. Unfunded Benefit Plan (effective September 1, 2@0@{) is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10(xxiii) to the Con%amy’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2000, Commission File Number 1-9172.

*(xxiv) Amendment No. 1, dated as of September 25, 2001, to the NACCO Industries, Inc. Unfunded
Benefit Plan (effective September 1, 2000) is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(xxiv).

*(xxv) Amendment No. 2, dated as of December 21, 2001, to the NACCO Industries, Inc. Unfunded Benefit
Plan (effective September 1, 2000) is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(xxv).

(xxvi) - (o) Intentionally left blank.

*(xxxi) The North American Coal Annual Incentive Plan, effective as of Jan 1, 2001, is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10(xlv) to the Company's Annual Report on Form [Q-K for the year ended
December 31, 2000, Commission File Number 1-9172.

*(owtdi) Instrument of Merger, Amendment and Transfer of Sponsorship of Benefit Plans, effective as of
Au%stt 31, 1994, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(Gwxviil) to the Company's Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1994, Commission File Number 1-9172.

Couxiil) Credit Agreement, dated as of September 27, 1991, among The North American Coal Corporation,
Citibank, N.A., Ameritrust Company National Association and Morgan Guaranty Trust Compam%of New York, as
agent is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(xcii) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the

1scal year ended December 31, 1991, Commission File Number 1-9172.

(oxiv) Subordination Agreement, dated September 27, 1991, among The North American Coal
Corporation, the Company and Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York, as agent, is mcoﬁgpomfcedl herein by
reference to Exhibit 10(xciv) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1991, Commission File Number 1-9172.

*(xxxv) The North American Coal Comgomttﬁom Deferred Compensation Plan for Management Employees
(as amended and restated effective November 1, 2001) is attached hereto as Exhibit 10(xxxv).

*(xxxvi) Amendment No. 1, dated as of December 21, 2001, to The North American Coal Corgomﬁon
Deferred Compensation Plan for Management Employees (as amended and restated effective November 1, 2001) is
attached hereto as Exhibit 10(Goxvi).

(Gowvii) Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated October 11, 2000, by and among Phillips Petroleum
Comwf/, Phillips Coal Compmg, The North American Coal Corporation, Oxbow Property Company L.L.C. and
Red Hills Prope Comlpan L.L.C. is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(vuevii) to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form [0-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000, Commission File Number 1-9172.

(zuxviii) Amendment No. 1 to the Credit Agreement, dated as of July 28, 1993, among The North American
Coal Corporation and the banks listed on the signatory Fa es and Morgan Guaranty Trust Comﬁamy of New Yorl, as
Agent, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit @&:xxxxﬁiﬂ) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1993, Commission File Number 1-9172.

_ (oix) Amendment No. 2 to the Credit Aﬁreemem, dated as of September, 1995, among The Nerth
American Coal Corporation and the banks listed on the signatory pages and on&m Guaranty Trust Company of
New York, as Agent, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(xxxix) to the Company's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1995, Commission File Number 1-9172.

*%d) The North American Coal Corporation Suppﬂememwﬂ Retirement Benefit Plan, as amended and
restated effective September 1, 1994, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 (clxv) to the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 1@-6 for the quarter ended September 30, 1994, Commission File Number 1- 9172.

*(xli) The North American Coal Corporation Deferred Compensaticn Plan for Management Employees (as
amended and restated effective January 1, 1996), is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(xli) to the
gomgin%'sg ﬁgpuaﬂ Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1995, Commussion File

umber 1- .
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*(xlil) Amendment No. 1, dated December 1, 1995, toc The North American Coal Corporation Supplemental
Retirement Benefit Plan (as amended and restated effective September 1, 1994), effective as of December 31, 1994,
is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10 (xlii) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year énded December 31, 1995, Commission File Number 1-9172.

 (xliii) Amendment No. 3 to the Credit Agreement, dated as of September 16, 1996, among The North
American Coal Corporation and the banks listed on the signatory pa%es and Morgan Guarant}/ Trust Company of
New York, as Agent, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(xliii) to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1996, Commission File Number 1-9172.

*(xliv) Amendment No. 1, dated as of June 23, 2000, to The North American Coal Corporation Deferred
Compensation Plan for Management Emplo&ees (as amended and restated effective January 1, 1999) is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10(xliv) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2000, Commission File Number 1-9172.

*(xlv) The North American Coal 2002 Incentive Compensation Plan, effective as of January 1, 2002, is
attached hereto as Exhibit 10(xIv).

(xlvi) Waiver Agreement, dated November 15, 1996, by and among Morgan Guaranty Trust Company,
Citibank, N.A., Wells ar%;) (Texas), N.A., Key Bank National Association and The North American Coal
Corporation is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(xivi) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1996, Commission File Number 1-9172.

(xlvii) Amendment No. 4 to the Credit Agreement, dated as of July 29, 1997, among The North American
Coal Corporation, the banks listed on the signatory pages and Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York, as
Agent, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(xlvii) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997, Commission File Number 1-9172.

(xlviii) Assignment and Assummﬁtion Agreement, dated as of Auéust 22,.1997, among The North American
Coal Corporation, the banks listed on the signatory pages and Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York, as
Agent, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(xlviii) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997, Commission File Number 1-9172.

*(xlix) The North American Coal Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan for Management Employees,
dated December 29, 1998 (as amended and restated effective January 1, 1999) is incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10(xlix) to the Com an{’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998,
Commission File Number 1-9%7 .

*() Amendment No. 2, dated October 1, 1998, to The North American Coal Corporation Su lemental
Retirement Benefit Plan éas amended and restated effective September 1, 1994), effective as of July 15, 1998, is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(1) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1998, Commission File Number 1-9172.

*(li) Amendment No. 3, dated October 30, 1998, to The North American Coal Corporation Su lemental
Retirement Benefit Plan (as amended and restated effective September 1, 1994), effective as of July 15, 1998, is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(li) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1998, Commission File Number 1-9172.

*(lit) Amendment No. 4, dated December 8, 1999, to The North American Coal Corporation Supxplemenml
Retirement Benefit Plan (as amended and restated effective September 1, 1994), effective as of January 1, 2000, is
incgé%?omted herein by reference to Exhibit 10(lii) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1999, Commission File Number 1-9172.

*(liii) The North American Coal Corporation Value A%preciation Plan For Years 2000 to 2009, effective as
of January 1, 2000, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(liii) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000, Commission File Number 1-9172.

(liv) Credit Agreement, dated as of October 11, 2000, by and among The North American Coal Corﬁoration,
the Initial Lenders named therein, Salomon Smith Barney Inc., as Lead Arranger and Book Manager, Keybank
National Association, as Syndication Agent, and Citibank N.A., as Agent, is incorporated herein b% reference to
Exhibit 10(iv) to the Comy an7y’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000,
Commission File Number 1-%1 2.

(v) Letter Amendment, dated as of November 20, 2001, to the Credit Agreement, dated as of October 11,
2000, by and among The North American Coal Corporation, the Lenders named therein, and Citibank N.A., as
Agent, is attached hereto as Exhibit 10(1v). "




(lvi) Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of April 7, 1989, among NACCO Industries, Inc., Yale
Materials Handling Corporation, Acquisition I, Esco Corporation, Hyster Company and Newesco, is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Hyster-Yale Materials Handling, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-1

filed May 17, 1989 (Registration Statement Number 33-28812). '

(lvii) Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of April 7, 1989, among NACCO Industries, Inc., Yale
Materials Handling Corporation, Acquisition II, Hyster Company and Newesco, is incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 2.2 to Hyster-Yale Matenals Handling, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed May 17, 1989
(Registration Statement Number 33-28812).

*(lviii) NACCO Materials Hzmdl]lm% Group, Inc. Anmual Incentive Compensation Plan for 2001 is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(Ixiit) tc the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2000, Commissicn File Number 1-9172.

*(ix) Hystélr-Ya]le Materials Handling, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, dated as of
January 1, 1990, 1s incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(Ixxxix) to the Company's Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1990, Commission File Number 1-9172.

(Ix) Intentionally left blank.

(Ixi) Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of December 20, 1993, between Hyster Company, an Cregon
corporation, and Hyster Company, a Delaware corporation, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(lxxviii)
rg; s&egéYé}lé% Smuaﬂ Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1993, Commission File

umber 33- .

*(Ixii) Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of December 20, 1993, between Yale Materials Handling
Corporation, a Delaware corporaticn, Hyster Company, a Delaware corporation, and Hyster-Yale Materials
Handling, Inc., a Delaware corporation, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(Ixxix) to Hyster-Yale
Annuel Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1993, Commissicn File Number 33-28812.

*(Ixiil) NACCO Materials Handling Group, Inc. Annual Incentive Compensation Plan, effective as of
January 1, 2002, is attached hereto as Exhibit 1@(]13{511'15.

*(Ixiv) NACCO Materials Handling Group, Inc. Senicr Executive Long-Term Incentive Compensation
Plan, effective as cf January 1, 2000, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(Ixiv) to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form l@agfor the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000, Commission File Number 1-9172.

*(Ixv) NACCO Materials Handling Group, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, effective as of
January 1, 2000, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(Ixv) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000, Commission File Number 1-9172.

*(Ixvi) Amendment No. 1, dated as of June 8, 2001, to the NACCC Materials Handling Group, Inc. Senior
Eiﬁ%mi% ﬂLoqn)g—Tem Incentive Compensation Plan (effective as of January 1,2000) is attached hereto as
it 10(xvi).

*(xvii) Amendment No. 1, dated as of June 8, 2001, to the NACCO Materials Handling Group, Inc. Long-
Term Incentive Compensation Plan (effective as of January 1, 2000) is attached hereto as Exhibit 10{Ixvi).

*(Ixviii) Amendment No. 1, dated as of February 19, 2001, to the NACCO Materials Handling Group, Inc.
Emdei% ﬂBep%ﬁ& Plan (as amended and restated effective September 1, 2000) is attached hereto as
it 10(lxviii).

(Ixix) Amendment, dated as of January 1, 1994, to the Third Amendment and Restated Operatin
Agreement dated as of November 7, 1991, between NACCO Materials Handlin Glrouy%{andl AT&T Commerci
Finance Corporation is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(c) to the Hyster-Yale Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1994, Commission File Number 33-28812.

*(oo) The Yale Materials Handling Corporation Deferred Incentive Compensation Plan (also known as The
Yale Materials Handling Corporation Short-Term Incentive Compensation Deferral Plan), dated March 1, 1984, is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(Ixxi) to the Hyster-Yale Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended Decernber 31, 1992, Commission File Number 33-28812.

(1xxi) Intenticnally left blank.
- (Ixxii) Credit Agreement between NACCO Materials Handling Group, Inc. and Morgan Guaranty Trust
company of New York, as Ii\&ent, and the other banks listed thereto, dated February 28, 1995, is incorporated by

reference herein to Exhibit 10(Lxxxvii) of the Hyster-Yale Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1994, Commission File Number 33-28812.
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*(Ixxiii) NACCO Materials Handling Group, Inc. Unfunded Benefit Plan {(as amended and restated effective
as of September 1, 2000) is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(Ixxiii) to the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000, Commission File Number 1-9172.

(Ixxiv) Intentionally left blank.

. (Ixxv) Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of June 4, 1996, among NACCO Materials
Handling Group, Inc., the Banks party thereto, the Co-Arrangers and Co-Agents listed on the signature page thereto
and Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York, as Agent, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(lxxv) to
tihg 1(_3]%mpany‘s Quarterly Statement on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1996, Commission File Number

(Lxxvi) Amendment, dated as of December 16, 1996, to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated
as of June 4, 1996 among NACCO Materials Handling Group, Inc., the Banks party thereto, the Co-Arrangers and
Co-Agents listed on the signature %ﬁge thereto and Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York, as Agent, is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(lxxxvi) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1996, Commission File Number 1-9172.

(Ixxvii) Amendment No. 2, dated as of March 26, 1997, 1o the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement
dated as of June 4, 1996 among NACCO Materials Handling Group, Inc., the Banks party thereto, the Co-arrangers
and Co-agents listed on the signature page thereto and Morgan Gua:ramy Trust Comgamy of New York, as Agent, is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(Ixxviii) to the Company’s Quarterly Statement on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 1997, Commission File Number 1-9172.

(Ixxviil) Amendment No. 3, dated as of May 19, 1997, to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement
dated as of June 4, 1996 among NACCO Materials Handling Group, Inc., the Banks party thereto, the Co-arrangers
and Co-agents listed on the signature pa%f thereto and Morgan Guammy Trust Comgany of New York, as Agent, is
incorporated herein by reference tc Exhibit 10(Ixxviii) to the Company’s Quarterly Statement on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 1997, Commission File Number 1-9172.

*(lxxix) Amendment No. 2, dated as of August 6, 2001, to the NACCO Materials Handling Group, Inc.
g‘nﬁuﬁmﬁ% @;Bineﬁt Plan (as amended and restated effective September 1, 2000) is attached hereto as
ibit ix).

*(Ixxx) Amendment No. 3, dated as of June 8, 2001, to the NACCO Materials Handling Group, Inc.
Unfunded Benefit Plan (as amended and restated effective September 1, 2000) is attached hereto as
Exhibit 10(xxx}.

*(Ixxxi) Amendment No. 4, dated as of November 1, 2001, to the NACCO Materials Handlin, Gmup,'lfnc.
Unfunded Benefit Plan (as amended and restated effective September 1, 2000) is attached hereto as
Exhibit 10(Ixxxi).

*(Ixxxii) Amendment No. 5, dated as of December 21, 2001, to the NACCO Materials Handling Group, Inc.
Unfunded Benefit Plan (as amended and restated effective September 1, 2000) is attached heretc as
Exhibit 10(lxxxii).

*(Ixxxiii) Amendment No. 4, dated as of October 8,1999, to the NACCO Materials Handling Group, Inc.
Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(lxxxiil) to the
%%nll gumy’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999, Commission File Number

*(Ixxxiv) Amendment No. 5, dated as of December 20,1999, to the NACCO Materials Handling Group, Inc.
Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(Ixxxiv) to the
?09](]{]1 gny’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999, Commission File Number

*(lxxxv) Amendment No. 6, dated as of March 9, 2000, to the NACCO Materials Handling Group, Inc.
Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(Ixxxv) to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000, Commission File Number 1-9172.

*(Ixxxvi) Amendment No. 7, dated as of June 23, 2000, to the NACCO Materials Handling Group, Inc.
Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(Ixxxvi) to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000, Commission File Number 1-9172.

 (Ixxxvii) Agreement of Merger, dated as of January 20, 1988, among NACCO Industries, Inc., Housewares
Holdlmg Company, WE-PS Merger, Inc. and WearEver-ProctorSilex, Inc., 1s incorporated herein by reference to
%ages through 97 of Exhibit 2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K, dated February 1, 1988,
ommission File Number 1-9172.
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(xxxviii) Sharehclders Agreement, dated Janu 20, 1988, amom% NACCO Ingdustries, Inc. and the
shareholders named therein is incorporated herein by reference to pages 98 through 108 of Exhibit 2 to the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K, dated February 1, 1988, Commission File Number 1-9172.

(Loexix) — (xci) Intentionally left blank,

(xcii) Pledge Agreement re: 66% Pledge of PSC Stock, dated as of October 11, 1990, between Hamilton
Beach/Proctor-Silex and The Chase Manhattan Bank (National Association) is incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10(cx) to the Comy an_}/"s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1990,
Commission File Number ]1-%]1 2.

(xciii) Pledge Agreement re: 66% Pledge of PSM Stock, dated as of October 11, 1990, between Hamilton
Beach/Proctor-Silex and The Chase Manhattan Bank (Naticnal Association) is incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10(cxi) to the Comgam%'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1990,
Commission File Number 1-9172.

(xciv) Pledge Agreement re: 34% pledge of PSC Stock, dated as of October 11, 1990, between Hamilton
Beacl/Proctor-Silex and The Chase Manhattan Bank (National Association) is incorporated herein bﬁg@f@r@me to
Exhibit ]IO(cxﬁu? to the Com amgl’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1990,
Commission File Number 1-9172.

(xcv) Pledge Agreement re: 33.2% ]P]led%e of PSM Stock, dated as of October 11, 1990, between Hamilton
Beach/Proctor Silex and The Chase Manhattan Bank (National Association) is incorporated herein by reference to
Exthibit 10(cxiii) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1990,
Commission File Number 1-9172.

lé[xcvﬁ) Pledge Agreement, dated as of October 11, 1990, between Housewares Holding C@mépany and The
Chase Manhattan Bank (National Association) is imcorporated herein by reference to Exhubit 10(cxiv) to the
%I%E]%%ny's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1990, Commission File Number

(xcvii) Pledge Agreement, dated as of October 11, 1990, between HB-PS Holding Company, Inc. and The
Chase Manhattan Bamk (Natiomal Association) is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(cxv) to the
(li%rin%my“s Annual Repert on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1990, Commission File Number

(xeviii) Security Agreement, dated as of October 11, 1990, between Hamilton Beach/Proctor-Silex and The
Chase Manhattan Bank (National Association), as the United States agent, is incorporated herein b%éreﬁ’ereme to
Exhibit 10(cxvi) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1990,
Commission File Number 1-9172.

(xcix) Collateral Assignment of Patemts and Trademarks and Secuﬁ% Agreement, dated as of
QOctober 11, 1990, between Hamilton Beach/Proctor-Silex and The Chase Manhattan Bank (Wational Association),
as the United States agent, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(cxvii) to the Company s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1990, Commission File Number 1-9172.

(c) NACCO Supplemental Agreement, dated as of October 11, 1990, between NACCO and The Chase
Manhattan Bank (National Asscciation), as the United States agent, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
[Qcxviii) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1990,
Commission File Number 1-9172.

(ci) Housewares Supplemental Agreement, dated as of October 11, 1990, between Housewares Holding
Company and The Chase Manhattan Bank (Nationa] Association), as the United States agent, is incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10{cxix) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1990, Commissicn File Number 1-2172.

(cit) Hoﬂdm%mpﬂemenw Agreement, dated as of October 11, 1990, between HB-PS Holding Company,
Inc. and The Chase . attan Bank (National Associafcﬁog?, as the United States agent, is ﬁnco%jpomted herein by
reference to Exhibit 10(cxx) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31,1990, Commission File Number 1-8172.

(ciil) Override Agreement, dated as of October 11, 1990, among the ComRﬂamy, Housewares Holdin
Company, Glen Dimplex, Precis [521] Ltd., Clen Electric, Ltd. and The Chase Manhattan Bamk (Nation
Association), as the United States agent, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10{cxxi) to the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1990, Commission File Number 1-9172.
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(civ) General Security Agreement, dated as of Cctober 11, 1990, by Proctor-Silex Canada to and in favor of

The Chase Manhattan Bank of Canada, as the Canadian agent, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

%%(cg&fm) ﬁg ﬂ]zllegﬁf%npany's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1990, Commission
e Number 1- .

. *(cv) The Hamilton Beach/Proctor-Silex, Inc. 2001 Annual Incentive Compensation Plan is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10(cxx) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2000, Commission File Number 1-9172.

*(evi) Haﬂmnmn " Beach/Proctor-Silex, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, effective
January 1, 1993, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10{cxxiv) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1992, Commission File Number 1-9172.

{cvii) First Amendment to the Housewares Supplemental Agreement, dated as of March I, 1991, between
Housewares Holding Company and The Chase Manhattan Bank (National Association), as the United States agent,
is incorporated herem by reference to Exhibit 10(cxxv) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1990, Commission File Number 1-9172.

(cviii) First Amendment to the HOM%%? Sup%ementaﬂ Agreement, dated as of March 1, 1991, between
HB-PS Holding Company and The Chase Manhattan Bank (National Asscciation), as the United States agent, is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(cxxvi) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1990, Commission File Number 1-9172.

(cvix) Consent and Authorization with reference made to the Credit Agreement dated October 11, 1990, as
amended among Hamilton Beach/Proctor-Silex, Inc., Proctor-Silex Canada, Inc., Proctor-Silex S.A. de C.V., the
banks named on the signatory pages and The Chase Manhattan Bank is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
%mu) ﬁg mﬁileg%gnpmy“s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1993, Commission

e Number 1- .

(ex) Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of May 10, 1994 among Hamilton
Beach/Proctor-Silex, Inc., Proctor-Silex Canada, Inc., Proctor-Silex S.A. DE C.V., the banks named on the signato
Eﬁes and the Chase Manhattan Bank is mco]xl%?med herein by reference to as Exhibit 10 (cxowxviii) to the NACC

: 9%%@2;'165, Inc. Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Jume 30, 1994, Commission File Number

(exi) Confirmation A%mem, dated May 10, 1994, among Hamilton Beach/Proctor-Silex, Inc.,
Housewares Holding Company, is [521] Ltd., HB-PS Holding Company, Glen Dimplex, Glen Electric, Ltd., the
banks mamed on the signatory pages, the Chase Manhattan Bank and the Chase Manhattan Bank of Canada is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10 (cxxix) to the NACCO Industries, Inc. Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended on June 30, 1994, Commission File Number 1-9172.

(cxii) First Amendment to the NACCO Supplemental Agreement, dated as of March 1, 1991, between the
Company and The Chase Manhattan Bank (National Association), as the United States agent, is incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10{(cxod) to the C@mpan%/‘s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1990, Commission File Number 1-9172.

(cxiil) Waiver Agreement, dated January 16, 1996, among Hamilton Beach/Proctor-Silex, Inc.,
Proctor-Silex Canada, Inc., Proctor-Silex S.A. de C.V. the banks named on the sigmatcozry ﬁa es and Chase
Manhattan Bank is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10 (cxiii) to the Company's Annual Report on Form
10K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1995, Commission File Number 1-9172.

(cxiv) Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of April 18, 1995, amcng Hamilton
Beach/Proctor-Silex, Inc., Proctor- Silex, Inc., Proctor-Silex S.A. de C.V., the banks named on the signatory pages
and The Chase Manhattan Bank is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(cxiv) to the Company's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1995, Commission File Number 1-9172.

(cxv) Amendment No. 1, dated as of March 29, 1996, to the Second Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement, dated as of October 11, 1990, amended and restated as of April 18, 1995, among Hamilton
Beach/Proctor-Silex, Inc. Proctor-Silex Canada, Inc., Proctor-Silex S.A de C.V., as Borrowers, the B signatory
thereto and The Chase Manhattan Bank, N.A., as U.S. Agent, and The Chase Manhattan Bank of Canada, as
Canadian Agent, is incorporated by reference herein to Exhibit 10 (xvii) on the Company's Quarterly Statement on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1996, Commission File Number 1-9172.

(cxvi) Amendment No. 2, dated as of October 4, 1996, to the Second Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement, dated as of October 11, 1990, amended and restated as of April 18, 1995, among Hamilton
Beach/Proctor-Silex, Inc., Proctor-Silex Canada, Inc., Proctor-Silex S.A. de C.V., as Borrowers, the B signatory
therete and The Chase Manhattan Bank, N.A., as U.S. Agent, and The Chase Manhattan Bank of Canada, as
Canadian Agent, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(cxviii) to the Company's Quarterly Statement for
the quarter ended September 30, 1996, Commission File Number 1-9172.
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(cxvil) Amendment No. 3, dated as of April 14, 1997, to the Second Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement, dated as of October 11, 1990, amended and restated as of April 18, 1995, among Hamilton
Beach/Proctor-Silex, Inc., Proctor-Silex Canada, Inc., Proctor-Silex S.A. de C.V., as Borrowers, the B signatory
thereto and The Chase Manhattan Bank, N.A., as U.S. Agent, and The Chase Manhattan Bank of Canada, as
Canadian Agent, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(cxviii) to the Company's Quarterly Statement for
the quarter ended June 30, 1997, Commission File Number 1-9172.

{cxviii) Pledge Agreement, dated as of November 30, 1995, between Hamilton Beach/Proctor-Silex and The
Chase Manhattan Bank (National Association), is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(cxviii) to the
iC%nlm 2ziurny's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997, Commission File Number

(cxix) Pledge Agreement re: 66% of PST Stock, dated as of November 30, 1995, between HB/PS El Paso,

Inc. and The Chase attan Bank (National Asscciation), is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(cxix)

fltg m%e C?E%}pﬁ%y's Annual Repert on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997, Commission File
umber 1- .

*(cxx) The Hamilton Beach/Proctor-Silex, Inc. 2002 Annual Incentive Compensation Plan, effective as of
January 1, 2002, is attached hereto as Exhibit 10(cxx).

(cxxi) Amendment No. 4, dated as of April 22, 1998, to the Second Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement, dated as of October 11, 1990, amended and restated as of April 18, 1995, among Hamilton
Beach/Proctor-Silex, Inc., Proctor-Silex Canada, Inc., Proctor-Silex S.A. de C.V., as Obligors, the B signatory
thereto and The Chase Manhattan Bank, N.A., as U.S. A%?nt, and The Chase Manhattan Bank of Canada, as
Canadian Agent, is mcorgomted herein by reference to Exhibit 10(cxxi) to the Company's Quarterly Statement for
the quarter ended March 31, 1998, Commussion File Number 1-9172.

(cxxii) Amendment No. 5, dated as of June 10, 1998, to the Second Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement, dated as of October 11, 1990, amended and restated as of April 18, 1995, among Hamilton
Beach/Proctor-Silex, Inc., Proctor-Silex Canada, Inc., Proctor-Silex S.A. de C.V., as Obligors, the B signatory
thereto and The Chase Manhattan Bank, N.A., as U.S. A%em, and The Chase Manhattan Bank of Canada, as
Canadian Agent, is mcogpomted herein by reference to Exhibit 10(cxxii) to the Company's Quarterly Statement for
the quarter ended June 30, 1998, Commission File Number 1-9172.

(cxxiii) Amendment No. 6, dated as of December 8, 1998, (o the Second Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement, dated as of October 11, 1990, amended and restated as of April 18, 1995, among Hamilton
Beach/Proctor-Silex, Inc., Proctor-Silex Canada, Inc., Proctor-Silex S.A. de C.V., as Cbligors, the B signatory
thereto and The Chase Manhattan Bank (successor by merger to The Chase Manhattan Bank, N.A.)(the Existing
U.S. Agent), KeyBank Naticnal Associaticn (the Successor U.S. Agent), The Chase Manhattan Bank of Canada(the
Existing Canadian Agent) and The Bank of Nova Scotia (the Successor Canadian Agent), is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10(cxxiii) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1998, Commission File Number 1-9172.

*(cxxiv) Amendment No. 1, dated December 12, 1999, to the Hamilton Beach/Proctor-Silex, Inc.
Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(cxxiv) to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999, Commission File Number 1-9172.

*(cxxv) The Hamilton Beach/Proctor-Silex, Inc. Unfunded Benefit Plan (As Amended and Restated
Effective November 1, 2000) is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10{(cxxv) to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000, Commission File Number 1-9172.

(cxxvi) Amendment No. 7, dated as of December 19, 2001, to the Second Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement, dated as of October 11, 1990, amended and restated as of A@nﬂ 18, 1995, among Hamilton
Beach/Proctor-Silex, Inc., Proctor-Silex Canada, Inc. and Proctor-Silex S.A. de C.V., as Obligors, each of the Banks
signatory thereto and KeyBank National Association, as U.S. Agent, and The Bank of Nova Scotia, the Canadian
Agent, is attached heretc as Exhibit 10({cxxvi).

*(cxxvii) The Hamilton Beach/Proctor-Silex, Inc. Unfunded Benefit Plan (As Amended and Restated
Effective October 1, 2001) is attached hereto as Exhibit 10(cxxvii).
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*(cxxviii) Amendment No. 1, dated as of December 21, 2001, to the Hamilton Beach/Proctor-Silex, Inc.
Unfunded Benefit Plan (As Amended and Restated Effective October 1, 2001) is attached hereto as
Exhibit 10(cxxviii).

Subsidiaries. A list of the subsidiaries of the Company is attached hereto as Exhibit 21.
Consents of experts and counsel.

The consent of Arthur Andersen LLP, independent accountant, is attached hereto as Exhibit 23(i).
Powers of Attomey.

A copy of a power of attomey for Owsley Brown II is attached hereto as Exhibit 24(i).

A copy of a power of attomey for Robert M. Gates is attached hereto as Exhibit 24(ii).

A copy of a power of attormey for Leon J. Hendrix, Jr. is attached hereto as Exhibit 24(iii).
A copy of a power of attorney for David H. Hoag is attached hereto as Exhibit 24(iv).

A copy of a power of attorney for Dennis W. LaBarre is attached hereto as Exhibit 24(v).

A copy of a power of attorney for Richard de J. Osborne is attached hereto as Exhibit 24(vi).
A copy of a power of attorney for lan M. Ross is attached hereto as Exhibit 24(vii).

A copy of a power of attorney for Britton T. Taplin is attached hereto as Exhibit 24(viii).

A copy of a power of attomney for David F. Taplin is attached hereto as Exhibit 24(ix).

A copy of a power of attomey for John F. Turben is attached hereto as Exhibit 24(x).

Other exhibits not required to otherwise be filed.**

Unaudited Consolidating Statement of Operations and Com%rehensive Income (Loss) of NACCQ
Industries, Inc. for the Year Ended December 31, 2001 is attached hereto as Exhibit 99(i).

Unaudited Consolidating Balance Sheet of NACCO Industries, Inc. as of December 31, 2001 is attached
hereto as Exhibit 99(i1).

Unaudited Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows of NACCO Industries, Inc. for the Year Ended
December 31, 2C01 is attached hereto as Exhibit 99(iii).

Unaudited Consolidating Statement of Stockholders’ Equity of NACCO Industries, Inc. for the Year Ended
December 31, 2C01 is attached hereto as Exhibit 99(iv).

Letter to the Securities and Exchange Commission r;cﬁga:rding Arthur Andersen LLP's representations to

NACCO Industries, Inc. pursuant to Temporary Note 3T tc Article 3 of Regulation S-X is attached hereto as
Exhibit 99(v).

*Management contract or compensation plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit pursuant to

Item 14(c) of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

**Consolidating Financial Statements of NACCO Industries, Inc. are not required disclosures and are

included only for informational purposes. These statements have not been audited by mdeFendent ublic accountants

and are presented omﬂﬁy for purposes of additional analysis and not as a presentation of the
of each component o

inancial results or position

the consolidated group, and should be read accordingly.
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SUBSIDIARIES OF NACCO INDUSTRIES, INC.

subsidiaries of NACCO Industries, Inc. were as follows:
Name

Bellaire Corporation

The Coteau Properties Company

The Falkirk Mining Company

Hamilton Beacl/Proctor-Silex, Inc.
Hamilton Beach/Proctor-Silex de Mexico, S.A. de C.V.
Housewares Holding Company

HB-PS Holding Company, Inc.
Hyster-Yale Materials Handling, Inc.
The Kitchen Collection, Inc.

Mississippi Lignite Mining Company -
NACCQO Materials Handling Group, Inc.
NACCO Materials Handling Group, Ltd.
NACCO Materials Handling Group, Pty., Ltd.
NACCO Materials Handling, B.V.
NACCQO Materials Handling, S.r.l
NACCO Materials Handling Limited
NMH Holding, B.V. .

NMHG Distribution B.V,

NMHG Distribution Co.

NMHG Distribution Pty. Limited
NMHG Holding Co.

NMHG Mexico S.A. de C.V.

The North American Coal Corporation
North American Coal Royalty Company
Oxbow Property Company L.L.C.
Powhatan Corporation

Proctor-Silex Canada, Inc.
Proctor-Silex, S.A. de C.V.

Red Hills Property Company L.L.C.
Red River Mining Company

The Sabine Mining Company

contained in Regulation S-X.

As of the date of the Annual Report on Form 10-K to which this is an Exhibit, the

The Company has omitted the names of its subsidiaries which, considered in the aggregate as a
single subsidiary, would not constitute a "significant subsidiary” within the meaning of Rule 1-02

Exhibit 21

Incorporation

Chio

Ohio

Ohio
Delaware
Mexico
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Texas
Delaware
England
Australia
Netherlands
Italy
England
Netherlands
Netherlands
Delaware
Australia
Delaware
Mexico
Delaware
Delaware
Louisiana
Delaware
Ontario (Canada)
Mexico
Mississippi
Texas
Nevada
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Armual Meeting tock Listing

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders of NACCO The New York Stock Exchange

Industries, Inc. will be held on May 8, 2002, at 9 a.m. at Symbol: NC

the corporate office located at 5875 Landerbrook Drive,

Mayfield Heights, Ohio. Internet Web Sites

The Internet Web sites of NACCO Industries and

Form 10-K several Company subsidiaries and product brands can be

Additional copies of the Company’s Form 10-K filed with found at the following locations:

the Securities and Exchange Commission are available
through NACCO’s Internet Web site (www.nacco.com) or
by request to Investor Relations, NACCO Industries, Inc.,

NACCO Industries:
WWW.NACCo.com

5875 Landerbrook Drive, Mayfield Heights, Ohio 44124. North American Coal:
www.nacoal.com
Transfer Agent and Registrar Hyste}r1 North America:
National City Bank www.hiyster.com
Corporate Trust Operations Hyster Europe:
P.O. Box 92301, Dept. 5352 www.hyster.co.uk
Cleveland, Ohio 44193-0900 Yale North America:

1-800-622-6757

Investor Relations Contact

www.yale.com

Hamilton BeachOProctor-Silex:
www.hamiltonbeach.com or www.proctorsilex.com

Investor questions may be addressed to: Kitchen Collection:
Ira Gamm, Manager of Investor Relations www.kitchencollection.com

NACCO Industries, Inc.
5875 Landerbrook Drive

Mayfield Heights, Ohio 44124

(440) 449-9676

E-mail: gamm®@naccoind.com

Dzta Book
The Company has compiled a data book that provides
detailed information about NACCO and each of its
operating subsidiaries. Copies can be requested by the same
means listed for the Form 10-K.

Glossary of Return Measures

The Company’s management analyzes and monitors performance through understanding the return on equity in propetly capitalized
tangible assets and the return on equity in total assets. The mechanics of the calculations are described below. Return on equity in
properly capitalized tangible assets represents the return provided by the working assets deployed in the businesses without consideration
of acquisition-related goodwill, if any. Return on equity in total assets measures the performance of the businesses on the total equity
invested in the business including goodwill. The Company’s goal is to generate a consistent, competitive return on tangible assets over
time, and at least a market return on total assets over time.

Return on equity in total assets

Return on equity in properly
capitalized tangible assets

Adjusted net income

Adjusted stockholders’ equity

Financing costs after tax
Tangible assets

Tangible assets’ financing costs
after tax

Equity in properly capitalized
tangible assets

Adjusted net income

Adjusted stockholders” equity

Adjusted net income-+minority interest+financing costs after tax
—tangible assets’ financing costs after tax

Equity in properly capitalized tangible assets
Net income-+goodwill amortization expense

Average of stockholders equity+accumulated goodwill amortization for the current month-end balance
and the previous 12 month-end balances

Interest expense for the previous 12 months x an effective after-tax rate of 62%
Weighted average of (total assets ~ goodwill) — (total liabilities — debt)

Tangible assets x 35% x 8% x 62%

65% x tangible assets

NOTE: The returns presented for consolidated NACCO Industries, Inc. and Subsidiaries exclude the effects of Bellaire’s UMWA obligation.
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